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ST A TEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY 
FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT 

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent w ith the annual financial 
statements audited by the Auditor General. 

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions. 

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as 
issued by National Treasury. 

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the GRAP standards ap
plicable to the public entity. 

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and 
for the judgements made in this information. 

The accounting authority is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal con
trol has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the per
formance information, the human resources information and the annual financial statements. 

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 
statements. 

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the 
human resources information and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2018. 

Yours faithfully 

Waseem Carrim 
Chief Executive Officer 
NYDA 

1\: 
Sifiso Mtsweni 
Executive Chairperson of Board of Directors 
NYDA 
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INTRODUCTION TO THE NATIONAL YOUTH DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
The National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) 
was established in 2009, following a merger be
tween theUmsobomvu Youth Fund (UYF) and the 
National Youth Commission (NYC). 

The NYDA was formally launched on 16 June 2009, 
as pronounced by His Excellency, President Jacob G 
Zuma in his 2009 State of the Nation Address. The 
launch formed part of the National Youth Month 
events championed by The Presidency. 

The Agency derives its mandate from the legislative 
frameworks, including the National Youth Develop
mentAgency Act, 2008 (Act 54 of 2008) (NYDA Act) , 
the National Youth Policy (NYP) (2009-2014) and the 
draft Integrated Youth Development Strategy (IYDS). 
The Agency assumed and improved the operational 
platform developed by both the UYF and the NYC, 
which rendered the Agency operational with imme
diate effect. In addition, the staff component of its 
predecessors was also incorporated into the NYDA. 
The activities of the NYDA could be summarised as 
follows: 

a) Lobbying and advocating for integration and 
mainstreaming of youth development in all 
spheres 
of government, the private sector and civil 
society 

b) Initiating, implementing, facilitating and 
coordinating youth development programmes 

c) Monitoring and evaluating youth development 
intervention across the board and mobilising 
youth for active participation in civil society 
engagements. 

The NYDA is a South African-based agency estab
lished primarily to address challenges faced by the 
nation 's youth. The Agency was established by an 
Act of Parliament (Act 54 of 2008). The institution was 
established to be a single, unitary structure address
ing youth development issues at national , provincial 
and local government level. The Agency should be 
seen within the broad context of South Africa 's de
velopment dynamics. 

According to Statistics South Africa (2016) , young 
people constitute 36,2 percent of the country 's pop
ulation. This represents a powerful resource for the 
country, provided the youth are supported and able 
to become active members of society. The National 
Development Plan (NDP) states the following: 
"Having a relatively young population can be ad
vantageous, provided the majority of workingage 
individuals are gainfully employed ... The challenge 
is to convert this into a demographic dividend. This 
will only be possible if the number of working-age in
dividuals can be employed in productive activities 
(2012:98). 

Yet, social norms continue to sideline young South Af
ricans, treating political and economic participation 
as the prerogative of older people, which is why 
there is a continued need for policies and implemen
tation frameworks that are deliberately aimed at 
youth concerns. 

Given the youthful nature of the South African popu
lation, many of the socio-economic challenges 
faced by the nation, for example, poverty, inequal
ity, joblessness and poor health, are borne by the 
youth. The gravity of the challenges requires multi
pronged efforts that simultaneously promote the de
velopment of sustainable livelihoods; reduce poverty 
and inequality; and prioritise the formulation of poli
cies which create an enabling environment for youth 
development. 

The NYDA plays a leading role in ensuring that all 
major stakeholders, i.e. government, the private 
sector and civil society, prioritise youth development 
and contribute towards identifying and implement
ing lasting solutions which address youth develop
ment challenges. 

Furthermore, the NYDA designs and implements pro
grammes aimed at improving the lives of youth and 
the opportunities available to them. These pro
grammes may be clustered as follows: 

• At an individual level (micro-level) , the NYDA pro 
vides direct services to youth in the form of provid
ing information, career guidance services, mentor
ship, skills development and training, entrepreneuri 
al development and support, and grant funding , 
as well as health awareness programmes and 
involvement in sport. 

• At a community level (meso-level) , the NYDA 
encourages young people to be catalysts for 
change in their communities through involvement 
in community development activities, social 
cohesion activities, National Youth Service (NYS) 
programmes and dialogue. 

• At a provincial and national level (macro-level) , 
through its policy development, partnerships and 
research programmes, the NYDA facilitates the 
participation of youth in developing key policy 
inputs which shape the socio-economic landscape 
of South Africa. 

National Youth Service (NYS) 
The NYS aims to reconstruct South African society by 
developing the abilities of young people through ser
vice and learning. The organisation builds character 
and enables young people to give back to society. 
In addition, it addresses past racial segregation by 
enabling young people to share common space in 
such a way that they recognise a common humanity 
in each other 
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INTRODUCTION TO THE NATIONAL YOUTH DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
NYDA programmes remain focused on the following 
categories of youth when providing its products and 
services : 

• Unemployed youth 
• Young women 
• Youth in rural areas 
• Youth living with d isabilities 
• In-school-youth 
• Out-of-school youth 
• Youth at risk 
•Youth heading households 
• Youth in conflict w ith the law 
• Youth abusing dependence-inducing, narcotic-
based substances, including alcohol. 

Beneficiaries and Target Audiences 
• South African youth aged between 14 and 35 years 
• South African youth, irrespective ofrace, gender, 

colour, creed, geographical location or political 
affiliation. 

The Agency has a predisposition towards: 
• Youth in rural areas 
• Out-of-school youth 
• Youth w ith disabilities 
• Young women 
• Unemployed youth 
• Youth in conflict with the law. 

Vision 
A credible, capable and activist development 
agency that is responsive to the plight of South 
Africa's youth. 

Mission 
• To mainstream youth issues into society 
• To facilitate youth development w ith all sectors of 

society 

Values 
• Integrity and Honesty 
• Excellence 
• Respect and Humility 
• Pro~ ssionalism 
• Accessibility 

NYDA Key Performance Areas 

The NYDA smartly continues with its business of imple
menting youth development programmes directly. 
The focus of the NYDA's business will still be informed 
by imperatives of youth development as conta ined in 
the NYP, 2015-2020, which are: 

Economic participation: To assist and facilitate youth 
participation in the economy, leading to improve
ment of their livelihoods through NYDA grants as finan
cial support and non-financial support interventions. 
The a im is to respond to the challenges o f youth un
employment and low tota l entrepreneurship activity 
among youth. 

Education and skills development: To promote access 
to quality education and skills, to both school-going 
and out-of-school youth, through targeted interven
tions. The NDP outlines South Africa's education vision 
to ensure that , by 2030, South Africans have access to 
education and training of the highest standard pos
sible, producing significantly improved learning out
comes. 

Nation-building & social cohesion: To promote the 
implementation of the NYS across a ll race and class 
groups. 

Policy and research: To create and produce youth 
development information and knowledge that informs 
the public sector, private sector and civil society on 
developing policy, and the planning, implementation 
and review of a ll ( I 00%) of their programmes related 
to 
government p riorities. 

Governance and administration: 
• To p rovide effective IT systems, business processes 

and human resources (HR) capacity development, 
as well as improving the operations of the NYDA. 

• To ensure that a ll NYDA systems and processes 
support NYDA products 
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OVERVIEW OF THE PUBLIC ENTITY PERFORMANCE 
Service Delivery Environment 

The National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) is a South African based agency estab
lished primarily to tackle challenges that the nation's youth are faced w ith. The Agency was 
established by an Act of parliament, act no 54 of 2008. The institution was established to be 
a single, unitary structure for addressing youth development issues at national, provincial 
and local government level. The Act instructs the Agency to promote a uniform approach 
to youth development by all organs of state, the private sector and Non-Government Orga
nizations. 

The NYDA Act (2008) mandates the NYDA to develop an Integrated Youth Development 
Strategy (IYDS) for South Africa and initiate, design, coordinate, evaluate and monitor all 

programmes that aim to integrate the youth into the economy and society in general. These 
initiated programmes should aim to alleviate poverty, urban and rural development, com
bating of crime, substance abuse and social decay amongst youth. NYDA should lobby 
other organs of state to consider national priorities in respect of youth development when 
planning their activit ies and submit, in the prescribed manner, annual reports to the Agency 
regarding their implementation of youth development priorities. The NYDA should continue 
to monitor and evaluate youth development interventions across the board and mobilis
ing youth for active participation in civil society engagements. 

Youth development remains a global phenomenon and South Africa like many other coun
tries, have policy prescripts and implements legislative frameworks that govern how youth 
development occurs. Therefore, while legislators and policy-makers have been cognizant of 
international practice with regards to youth development, they still need to design an ap
proach which addresses the specific, and at times, unique circumstances of South African 
youth. 

Organization Environment 

The NYDA, with the support of the Office of the Presidency, can create the political will and 
momentum within Government, to a llow the Agency to gain the traction that is required for 
successful implementation of its programmes, products and services. 

The. Political environment has become more complex because of changing political dy
namics which could mean more pressure on the NYDA to be seen to address youth devel

opment isswes .. The issue of economic transformation is becoming a central theme on the 
youth agenda requiring further engagements on economic policy. Socio-cultural factors 
s ch as cultural trends, demographics, population dynamics affect the community within 
which NYDA operates. 

NYDA ANNUAL REPORT 2017 /2018 



It is important therefore to develop a multi-level strategy that seeks to build a Private Public 
Partnership with the aim of getting all business and social partners to be involved in the over
arching goal of getting the youths to gain entry into economic activity space. Technology 
evolution is multifold, on the one hand it demands the NYDA to have a paradigm shift on 
programme design, development and delivery approach on the entire youth development 
spectrum, it a lso means that the youth are more attuned to learning and consuming con
tent through available technological platforms. This enables the Agency's environment to 
improve efficiently in provision of programmes, products and services providing real time 
data for measurable impact. The NYDA complies with legislation and regulations that affect 
its environment and has adequately developed policies to ensure proper organization man
agement and regulate staff and youth towards the realization of the organization's man
date. 
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Strategic outcome-oriented Goals 

Strategic outcome Area 1: Improved and sustainable livelihood opportunities for young 
people in south Africa 

This strategic outcome area focused on provid ing a comprehensive suite of interventions 
that leads to decent employment, skills development, education, and entrepreneurship for 
a ll young people in the age group 14 to 35. 

Strategic outcome Area 2: An enhanced enabling environment that promotes youth devel
opment in all sectors of South African society 

This strategic outcome area focused on fostering a mainstreamed, evidence-based, inte
grated and result-oriented youth development approach through relevant research, policy 
development, regulations, monitoring and evaluation, communication and an advisory ser
vice. 

Key Programme Area 1: Economic Participation 

The main goal of the Economic Participation Programme is to enhance the participation of 
young people in the economy through targeted and integrated programmes. Programmes 
that are implemented by the NYDA against th is Key Performance Area (KPA), a im to facili

tate and provide employment opportunities to young people, to enhance the participation 
of young people in the economy aimed at increasing job-creation, entrepreneurship par
ticipation and skills development, and to provijde business support to young people. 

The strategic objective that relate to the KP A are to : 

• Provide Socio-economic empowerment interventions and support for young 
people in South Africa. 

• Provide increased universal access to young people. 

Key Programme Area 2: Education and Skills Development 

The ma in goal of the Education and Skills Development programme is to promote, facilitate, 

and provid e education and skills development opportunities to young people to enhance 
their socio-ec;:onomic well-being, with the objective of facilitating education opportunities 
and community p articipation activism. The aim is to improve access to quality education, to 
facilitate and implement skil ls development programmes and scholarships assistance to 
young peop le participating in social cohesion and nation building. 
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The strategic objectives that relate to the KPA are to: 

• Facilitate and implement skills programmes 
• Facilitate and implement education opportunities to improve the quality education 
attainment for the youth 

• Engage young people in Service activities geared towards fostering patriotism, 
social cohesion and nation. 

Key Programme Area 3: Research and Policy 

The main goal of this key programme area is to create a body of knowledge and best prac
tice in the youth development sectors and to inform and influence policy development 
planning and implementation of the fundamental aim of this area is to ensure that knowl
edge that inform and drive youth development are developed based on facts that are rel
evant to the developmental needs of the youth of South Africa, as well as giving South 
Africa a competitive edge, globally. 

The strategic objective that relate to the KPA are to: 

• Create and produce information and knowledge for better youth development 
planning and decision making. 

• Lobby key stakeholders to support and implement youth development 
programmes 

• Mobilise and leverage financial resources from key stakeholders. 

Youth Development Institute of South Africa Partnership 

The Youth Development Institute of South Africa is a Johannesburg based organisation that 
undertakes youth development research and advocacy to inform and shape policy, pro
grammes and related initiatives a imed at amplifying the full participation of the youth in a ll 
sectors of society. As acknowledged in the National Youth Policy (2020) young people 
should act as agents of social change, innovation and economic growth. As part of NYDA's 
aim to build research and development capabilities, entered an agreement that led to a 
pdrtnership with University of Johannesburg to establish YDISA. In establishing YDISA the part
ners were aware of several realities that the Institute will contribute to: 

• Limited youth development research 
• Absence of a consolidated network of youth focused researches 
• Non- existence of a structure responsible for coordinating activities 
• Limited number and capacity of young researchers 
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The Institute is expected to achieve the following objectives: 

• Conduct youth development research 
• Develop youth development programmes 
• Implement in pilot youth development programmes 
• Develop youth development models for the youth sector 
• Manage and disseminate youth development knowledge 
• Inform youth re lated policies 
• Lobby and advocate for the youth sector within the broader development of 

the policy realm 
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ABBREVIATIONS 
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. : 
AYC 

BSC 

CGU 

CTA 

DIACO 

DPME 

EDP 
EPWP 

ETDP SETA 

EWP 

GDP 

GRAP 

IAS 

IPSAS 

IYDS 

KPA 

KPI 

MIS 

NCR 

NDP 

NHI 

NYC 

NYSP 

NSS 

NYSU 

OHS 

PFMA 

PYWG 

SADC 

SAGAAP 

SAICA 

SASCOC 

SMEs 

TAA 

UYF 

UNIDO 

VSP 

YDISA 

Accounting Standards Board 

African Youth Charter 

Balance Scorecard 

Cash-generating Unit 

Certificate of Theory in Accounting 

Department of International Relations an-d Cooperation 

Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation 

Entrepreneurship Development Programme 

Expanded Public Works Programme 

Education, Training and Development Practices Sector Education and Training Authority 

Employee Wellness Plan 

Gross Domestic Product 

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

International Accounting Standards 

International Public Sector Accounting Standards 

Integrated Youth Development Strategy 

Key Performance Area 

Key Performance Indicator 

Management Information System 

National Credit Regulator 

National Development Plan 

National Health Insurance 

National Youth Commission 

National Youth Service Programme 

Non-State Sector 

National Youth Service Unit 

Occupational Health and Safety 

Public Finance Management Act 

Presidential Youth Working Group 

Southern African Development Community 

South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 

South African Institute of Chartered Accountants 

South African Sports Confederation and Olympic Committee 

Small and Medium-sized Enterprises 

Transitional Accounting Authority 

Umsobomvu Youth Fund 

United Nations Industrial Development Organisation 

Voluntary Settlement Package 

Youth Development Institute of South Africa 
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MESSAGE FROM THE MINISTER 
The triumph over Apartheid some 24 years ago signaled the end of the colonial era on the conti

nent, with the exception of the people of Saharawi. It is the youth who were central in the recording 

of that victory, from the early battles of resistance to the formation of student and youth movements 

throughout the continent. It was these movements that provided support to hundreds of thousands 

of young people in exile, more especially the seventy six and post seventy six generations. It was 

these young people that rallied support throughout the continent and the world. 

Young women and men continue to be at the forefront of our fight against the triple challenges of 

unemployment, poverty and inequality that confronts our post-Apartheid society. The National 

Youth Development Agency (NYDA) serves as an important coordination and support organization 

to this fight. The NYDA has a lso been at the epicenter of government's efforts to address these triple 

challenges. This 2017 /18 Annual report details the NYDA's contribution to those efforts. It also details 

the steps taken towards the economic liberation of the youth, who constitute a significant majority 

of our country and continent. These contributions have been recorded with yet another clean 

audit, despite the challenges related to resources available to the Agency. 

The NYDA is further charged with ensuring youth inclusion, economic development, entrepreneur

ship development, and social support for initiatives driven and/or owned by young people . Educa

tion, skills development, and innovation have been at the center of the NYDA's efforts. 

In deepening their programmes and reach the NYDA will require further partnerships from the pri

vate, academia, c ivil society and labour sectors. The NYDA intends to also increase the impact of 

their programmes and outreach, for this they will need the support of all the spheres of governance 

and our partners on the continent as well as in the developing and developed world . 

All of us have the responsibility to ensure that the world we bequeath to this and future generations 

is one which is better than the one we found. The youth also have the responsibility to ensure that 

the world they leave behind is one which is better than the one they found. Taking up such responsi

bilities and leaving behind a far better world will be a true tribute in honouring Tata Nelson Mandela 

and Mama Albertina Sisulu, whose centenaries we celebrate under the respective themes of "Be 

the Legacy" and "Woman of Fortitude" . 

Dr. NC Dlamini Zuma 

Minister in Hie Presidency: Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation 

ate: 24/09/201 8 
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MESSAGE FROM THE EXECUTIVE CHAIRPERSON OF THE NYDA BOARD 
I am delighted to present the NYDA Annual Report for the 2017 /18 financial year. 

This is a historic report in that it details the fourth successive c lean audit of the organization, but im
portantly a first clean audit opinion by the Auditor General of South Africa (AGSA) under the new 
Board of Directors. 

The National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) has a mammoth task of p lacing youth develop
ment at the epicentre of the countries' developmental agenda. This is because young people con
stitute the majority of the population and the most affected by the triple challenges of unemploy
ment, poverty and inequality. 
The current Board of Directors assumed office following a Transitional Accounting Authority (TAA), 
which performed exceptionally well. We committed at the start of our term that we shall endeavour 
to continue the legacy of clean governance and a high performance culture. A commitment that 
we have maintained through introduction of necessary changes in vision and strategy of the 
agency. 

Critical to the vision of the new Board is the expansion of the NYDA's footprint by establishing new 
branches and service centres. The NYDA Goes Rural campaign introduced two mobile outreach of
fices, operationalised six information kiosks, and turned our office into Wi-Fi hotspots ensuring access 
to information about products and services of the NYDA. 

In the year under review, we have also made pronouncements, which have begun to receive an 
ear from government. Part of that being our call for more inclusion of young people in positions of 
authority and responsibility. We have successfully persuaded authorities, to scrape experience as 
an entry requirement for all entry-level vacancies in both private and public sector. This will ensure 
the absorption of an outrageous number of unemployed graduates in the country indicative of a 
ticking time bomb. Furthermore, we have produced a framework that will enable smooth imple
mentation of the National Youth Policy (2020). The Integrated Youth Development Strategy (IYDA) 
will ensure that as we review the youth policy we look at practical ways of socio-economically em
powering young people. 

We are thankful to the newly appointed Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Mr Waseem Carrim, a 
former Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and his excellent team of Executive Directors for implementing 
the vision of the Board. Most importantly, we thank our dedicated employees for achieving our set 
targets and empowering the youth of South Africa. Well done and keep up the excellent work! 

To the youth of our motherland, we are indebted to you and shall continue pulling all strides and ef
forts to ensure the socio-economic emancipation of all young people. 

Mr Sifiso Mtsweni 

Executive Chairperson of the Board 

12 NYDA ANNUAL REPORT 2017 /2018 





CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT 
This year as government and the country we celebrated the centenary of the father of our nation, 

Tata Nelson Mandela and the centenary of Mama Albertina Sisulu. 

As reflect on the life and times of these outstanding stalwarts it is important for us to introspect on 

how we as young people can live the legacies that we have been afforded and how we are con

tributing to making South Africa a better place to live in. 

Young people today face the brutal face of the unemployment crises in South Africa with the shock

ing statistic of 7.5 million young people Not in Education, Employment and Training. Our economy 

needs fundamental structural change to ensure we meet our bold targets set out in the National De

velopment Plan of reducing unemployment, poverty and inequality. 

The third NYDA Board of Directors who were appointed by the His Excellency the President commit

ted in their strategic review to the universal access of the NYDA by young people. We recognise that 

based on our current service delivery model, our presence remains mainly in metropolitan and 

urban areas and we remain distant from young people who may need our services most. We have 

taken to decision to partner with district and local municipalities for the establishment of NYDA ser

vice centres which can bring services of government to young people. With no considerable in

crease in the baseline funding of the NYDA this will require us to think innovatively and creatively but 

we remain committed to bring this vision of the Board to life. 

Our implementation strategy remains focussed around the areas of entrepreneurship, jobs and Na

tional Youth Service. This allows us to be streamlined and to avoid duplication of activities across the 

wider government. In the 2017 / 2018 financial year I am satisfied that we have achieved the follow

ing targets: 

• More than 800 young start-ups w ith funding to bring their entrepreneursh ip journey to life; 

• 21 000 young people provided with the fundamentals for success; 

• 7 4 000 young people trained for job preparedness and life skills; 

• 8 500 young people placed in job opportunities; 

• 14 500 young people enrolled in NYS programs 

• R120 million in third party funding sourced. 

• Achievement of a fourth consecutive clean audit opinion. 

During the 2017 / 201 8 financial year, I acted for a period of five months with my appointment as the 

CEO being confirmed on 1 April 2018. 

f ogether with my team our intensive focus in the next financial year will be to raise additional fund

ing for. youth development to meet the expectations of our youth. We also intend to ensure that the 

wider 90.(ernment is implementing youth development as part of our strategy to ensure that there is 

active mainstreaming of youth development programs. 
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I wish to thank the Board of Directors led by the Executive Chairperson, Mr Sifiso Mtsweni for the sup

port and confidence in me and for allowing young people a chance to lead. To my Executives, 

Office and Staff for the tireless efforts in making the Agency work and for making youth develop

ment happen on a daily basis, thank you. 

In conclusion, I would like to reflect to young people that as we celebrate the centenary of Nelson 

Mandela and Albertina Sisulu we remember leaders with the eyes of strategists and the hearts of a 

warriors. They had the confidence to fight for what they believed in, the courage to risk their own 

lives and liberty for the sake of ours. History did not fall into their laps -- they seized that moral arc 

and bent it with bare hands in the direction of justice. 

As young people, we must seize the present to shape our future. We must define the South Africa 

we want to live in. I've never been optimistic -- as optimistic as I am now that we're going to create 

an Agency and a country where everybody, no matter who they are or what they look like or where 

they come from can make of their lives what they will. And together, we can build a South Africa 

and a world that's more just and more prosperous and more free. 

Mr Waseem Carrim 

Chief Executive Officer 
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NATIONAL YOUTH DEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2018 

Executive Chairperson 

Mr Sifiso Mtsweni 

Executive Deputy Chairperson 

Ms Bavelile Hlongwa 
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BOARD MEMBER 

Mr ltiseng Kenneth 
Morolong 

BOARD MEMBER 

Mr Yershen Pillay 

BOARD MEMBER 

Ms Khomotjo Joy 
Maimela 

BOARD MEMBER 

Mr Ndumiso Thokozani 
Mo ko ko1Res1GNED) 

BOARD MEMBER 

Ms Zandile Majozi 
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Sifiso Mtsweni 

Mr Mtsweni has a qualification in sports management and a short 
course in SMME Management and Project Management. He has ex
tensive experience in youth development related areas with a spe
cific focus on politics, sport and economic development, especially 
on SMME development. He holds significant public sector experi
ence and his clients and projec ts that he has overseen and men
tored have gone on to receive numerous awards. As the NYDA Ex
ecutive Chairperson, he has championed new and innovative 
youth development proposals including the reduction of work expe
rience in order to enhance employability and has undertaken to re
define the accessibility and reach of NYDA. 

Bavelile Hlongwa 
Ms Hlongwa studied at the University of Kwazulu Natal (UKZN) 
Howard College where she obtained her Bachelor's of Science 
Degree in Chemical En,gineering. She started her career at Shell 
Downstream SA. Ms Hlongwa has been exposed to leadership posi
tions since 1999 and has served on the Local Community Develop
ment Committee. In 2011, Ms Hlongwa was elected into the South 
African Institute of Chemical Engineers (KZN Branch) and in 2013 
she served as the Treasurer for the structure. 

In May 2017, Ms Bavelile Gloria Hlongwa was appointed as the Ex
ecutive Deputy Chairperson of the Board of the National Youth De
velopment Agency. 

Khomotso Joy Maimela 

Ms Maimela completed NCV Level 4 in Civil Engineering and 
Building Construction at Mopani FET College and has further 
obtained the following certificates: 

• Workplace Discipline with Commission of Conciliation, Me -
diation and Arbitration in 2013. 

• Skills Development with Mining Qualification Accreditation in 
2016. 

• Love Life Ground breaker in 2007. 

Ms Maimela is currently completing her BA Degree in Gover
nance, Public Administration and Development with the Uni
versity of South Africa. 
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Y ershen Pillay 
Mr Yershen Pillay studied at the University of Cape Town (UCT) where 
he obtained his Socia l Sciences Degree majoring in Politics and Eco
nomics. In 2005, Mr Pillay received a Deputy Vice-Chancellors Lead
ership Award. From 2006 until 2009 he served as a member of the Na
tional Executive Committee (NEC) of the South African Union of Stu
dents (SAUS) and was a lso part of the Policy Unit responsible for the 
development of the National Student Policy on Curriculum Develop
ment and Transformation. 

In 201 0, Mr Pillay was appointed to serve on the Human Resource De
velopment Council of South Africa and in 2013 he went on to serve on 
the Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment (BBBEE) Council of 
South Africa. Mr Pillay has also served on the Board of the National 
Student Financial Aid Scheme and has recently been appointed to 
the Board of ACSA. 

Zandile Majozi 
Ms Majozi holds a National Diploma in Human Resources and a Cer
tificate in Youth Career Development. In 2008, she commenced her 
career at City of Johannesburg as a Coordinator for Youth Career 
Development Pro@ramme. In 2013, she served as a Board Member 
for the National Youth Development Agency and was re-appointed 
in 2017. 

Ndumlso Mokako 

Mr Ndumiso Mokako obtained his Bachelor of Commerce (Financial 
Accounting, Internal Auditing and Financial Management) from the 
University of Pretoria (UP). He also holds a certificate in Government 
Media Essential Tools for Editors from Rhodes University. At Wits Busi
ness School he completed two Certificate Programmes in Manage
ment Development for Municipal Finance and Advanced. Mr 
Mokako went on to complete a Certificate in Municipal Financial 
Management in 2015. He is currently completing his BA Honours in 
Public Administration at the University of Stellenbosch. 

Kenny Morolong 

Mr. Morolong has played a major role in various initiatives and devel
opment programmes aimed at building and empowering young 
people. From 2008 he led and managed IKM Trading Enterprise as 
the CEO. During this period, Mr Morolong provided strategic direc
tion that led the organization to achieving its goals, w hic h ultimately 
resulted in growth and profitability. 
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OPERATIONS EXECUTIVE STRUCTURE 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2018 

Chief Financial Officer 
(Vacant) 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: 

Chief Executive Officer 

Mr Waseem Ca rrim 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: 
NATIONAL YOUTH SERVICE 

Ms Ankie Motsoahae Maepa 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: 
CORPORATE STRATEGY & PLANNING CORPORATE SERVICES 

Ms Juliet Tshoke Mr Lwazi Mboyi 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: 
PROGRAMME DESIGN. DEVELOPMENT & DELIVERY 

--- Ms Nthuseng Mphahlele 
(RESIGNED) 

I 
Full Service Branches 

I 
Local Youth Offices 

NYDA ANNUAL REPORT 2017 /2018 



FULL SERVICE BRANCHES 

NYDA Full Service Branches 

21 

JOHANNESBURG 
Ms Hlengiwe Cele 

EMALAHLENI 
Mr April Motloung 

SECUNDA 
Ms Jackie Sindane 

CAPE TOWN 
Mr Stephen Curry 

PORT ELIZABETH 
Mr Siyabulela Zondani 

BLOEMFONTEIN 
Mr Boitumelo Dithebe 

TSHWANE 
Ms Motlalepula Monja 

EAST LONDON 
Ms Princess Faku 

SOWETO 
Mr Tshepo Manyama 

DURBAN 
Mr Sabelo Ntuli 

(RESIGNED) 

THU LAMELA 
Mr Jerry Shirinda 

NELSPRUIT 
Ms Jabulile Mkhwanazi 

KIMBERLEY 
Dr Lebogang Moremedi 

(RESIGNED) 

RUSTEN BURG 
Mr Michael Phokela 

POLOKWANE 
Mr Percy Madziwo 
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WASEEM CARRIM CA (SA) 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Waseem attended the University of Pretoria and received his BCom Honours degree in Ac
counting Sciences in 2009. He began his career at the same university, spending one year 
as an academic article trainee lecturing first to third-year students in Accounting. He com
pleted his article traineeship with KPMG and was admitted as a member of the South Afri
can Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA) in 2013. Waseem also holds a Master's 
degree in Taxation from the University of Pretoria. 

After completing his articles, Waseem joined KPMG's Department of Professional Practice, 
where he served as a specialist in public sector accounting and assurance matters, and 
served on committees and initiatives related to the public sector. He also served on com
mittees relating to social integration, as well as driving transformation initiatives in the Char
tered Accounting profession. He held a portfolio of audit clients, which he managed within 
the public sector space, one of which was the NYDA. Waseem led the turnaround of the fi
nance and supply chain management divisions that culminated in the three clean audits 
and a fundamental reduction in irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure. 

In 2016, Mr Carrim was named one of the Top 35 under-35 Chartered Accountants by the 
SAICA. 
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ANKIE MOTSOAHAE MAEP A 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: NATIONAL YOUTH SERVICE 

Ankie Motsoahae Maepa holds a Masters Degree in Management- Public and Development Man
agement from the University of the Witwatersrand, and a post graduate Diploma in Public and De
velopment Management. 

Ms Motsoahae Maepa has passion for Youth Development, Gender Mainstreaming and Public 
Policy. Her Masters thesis was focused on the analysis of the disjuncture between policy intentions 
and implementation in the Public Sector. 

Her involvement in the Youth Development sector began in the early 90s as a youth and gender ac
tivist. Her participation in the sector lead to het representing South Africa in different international 
women and youth development Forums, such as the United Nation's 4th World conference On 
Women that was held In Beijing China, China. 

In 2004, she moved on to join the public sector, working for the Gauteng Department of Public 
Transport Roads and Works (DPTRW), responsible for Transformation, Youth and Gender Main
streaming. Part of her responsibilities was to advice the Department on progressive youth develop
ment and gender sensitive policies. 

From DPTRW, Ms Motsoahae Maepa joined the Presidency- the National Youth Commission (NYC) 
as the National Manager for the National Youth Service Programme (NYSP). It is in this position that 
she elevated the NYS programme to being a priority programme of government of South Africa, 
and ensured that there were structures in place to anchor the programme at the highest level of 
g0vernment. 

She was responsible for political championing of the programme and vigorously advoca ted for the 
programme to be implemented by government departments such as the Department of Public 
Works and the Department of Human Settlements. She served as a youth representative in the 
Social Cluster of the South African government. She was also part of the collective that drafted the 
prescripts guiding the implementation of the NYS in her capacity as a youth activist as well as an 
employee of the NYC. 

Ms Motsoahae Maepa also had the opportunity to work for the National Department of Transport 
as the Director in the DGs office responsible for Transport Infrastructure Investment. 

In her current position as the Executive Director- National Youth Service, she is responsib le for estab
lishing the NYS Unit within the NYDA, scaling up the p rogramme, and to ensure tha t there is an effec
tive coordination mechanism of the programme a t all levels of society. Part of this is to ensure that 
there is implementation of the programme by the three spheres of government, civil society and the 
private sector and importantly to create supporting structures for the implementa tion of the pro
gramme. 
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\ JULIET TSHOKE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: CORPORATE STRATEGY & PLANNING 

Juliet Tshoke is an Executive Director in Corporate Strategy and Planning. She is currently 
studying her MBA w ith Henley Business School.. She has completed her undergraduate qual
ification w ith the University of the Western Cape (Higher Diploma in Education) and Post 
Graduate Dip loma in Management Practice with Henley Business School. 

She has played a major role in other influential projects both in public and private sector en
vironments. She has grown within the Human Resources and Group Talent Management 
career paths and delivered on key init iatives aligned to Organisational Turn around strate
gies. 

Ms Tshoke joined the NYDA as part of the restructuring team and now moved into Corpo
rate Strategy and Planning where her previous change management experience provides 
value add to aligning government's youth development policy objectives at Global, SADC 
and National levels. 
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LWAZI MBOYI 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: CORPORATE SERVICES 

Mr Lwazi Mboyi has extensive business and management experience, having served in various 
senior management roles across different industries in both the public and the private sector. He 
possesses a wealth of experience, and knowledge in executive management, strategy develop
ment, business development, enterprise transformation, youth development and investments in in
frastructure . 

His last executive role was that of Head: Special Project at the Department of Transport (DOT), fo
cused on transport investment strategy and execution for the department, and was part of the Ex
ecutive Committee. Prior to that, he served as the Senior Consultant for JMJ Associates, a US Com
pany working on various massive infrastructure projects across the African continent. He worked in 
the Enterprise Transformation space in Ghana and Nigeria, and led the West African Gas Pipeline 
project strategy and implementation. 

Before Mr Mboyi's role a t JMJ, he was at EOH Consulting, which forms part of the EOH Group, as 
Head of Operations for the Free State, and served on the MANCO. He was responsible for business 
development and strategy. 

In terms of his experience within the youth development space, Mr Mboyi served as the Chief Ex
ecutive Offieer of the National Youth Commission (NYC) for a period of eight eight years. His respon
sibilities included strategy development and execution, as well as overseeing the operational de
partments of the organisation and key functions such as HR, Finance, IT and Communication. 

Mr Mboyi possesses the following qualifications: 

• Honours Degree in Industrial Psychology(University of KwaZulu-Natal) 
• Senior ExecutiveProgramme (Wits&HarvardBusinessSchool) 
• Currently completing a Master's Degree in Development Finance (University of 

Stellenbosch Business School) 
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NTHUSENG MPHAHLELE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: PROGRAMME DESIGN, DEVELOPMENT & DELIVERY 
(RESIGNED: 31 JANUARY 2018) 

Nthuseng Mphahlele holds an MSc in Development Planning from the University of the Witwa
tersrand and a BA in Economics from the National University of Lesotho. 

She has more than 14 years' experience in the development sector, having worked in both the 
public and civil society sectors, specifically in youth development, housing and infrastructure, local 
government, environment, gender and poverty. 

In her current position at the NYDA, Ms Mphahlele has been mandated to oversee the implementa
tion of the operations, which include economic participation, education of skills development and 
the service delivery channel 
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Performance Information Summary 

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN 2017-2018 

In the financial year under review the NYDA had two Annual Performance Plans, 
where the first approved APP was applied from April to September 2017 whilst the 
amended APP was applied from October 2017 to March 2018. This was due to the 
new Board that was appointed in June 2017. A new strategic direction for the NYDA 
that focuses on maximising impact and providing increased access of NYDA prod
ucts and services to young people was introduced. 

The new strategic direction was informed by a two-day strategic session where the 
Board reflected on the challenges confronting the youth in our country and how the 
agency needs to respond and pursue its mandate of advancing youth development 
in South Africa over the next three years. Strategic objectives and enablers were 
identified that would ensure maximum impact in all programmes design, develop
ment, mobilizing stakeholders and creating opportunities for the youth in the various 
sectors of South African economy. 

An amended APP was therefore developed with 2 new strategic objectives, 8 new 
KPls and rewording of 1 KPI. Governance was also removed from the APP as a key 
performance area, and it had 1 strategic objective and 5 key performance indica
tors. 

Key performance Area Strategic Objective Key Performance Indicator 

Economic To enhance the participation of young Number of youth owned enterprises created 

Participation people in the economy (original) through Business Development Support Services 

Economic 

Participation 

29 

(original) 
To provide Socio-economic 

empowerment interventions and Number of youth owned enterprises supported 

support for young people (new) through the Grant Programme (reworded) 

Establishment of the Youth Fund (new) 

Establishment of the NYDA Skills Fund (new) 

Number of new Branches operationalised for 

young people to access NYDA information (new) 
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To provide access to information and Number of new Satel lit e Offices operationalised 

creat e awareness on youth development fo r young people to access NYDA information 

programmes (original) (new) 

To provide increased universa l access t o Number of Outreach Vehicles procured for young 

young people (new) people to access NYDA information (new) 

Number of new Information Kiosks 

operationalised for young people t o access NYDA 

information (new) 

Education and Skills To engage young people in service Number of young people enrolled and 

Development 

Governance 

(removed) 

act ivities gea red towards fost ering pa rticipating in the NYS Category 1 (new) 

patriotism, social cohes ion and nation 

build ing 
Number of young people enrolled and 

participating in NYSP Cat egory 2 and 3 Expanded 

Volunteer Programme (EVP) implemented (new) 

To establish a credible, efficient and ICT Road Map implemented (removed) I 
effect ive organ ization (removed) 

Human Resources (H R) Strategy review ed and 

implemented (removed) 

Year 1 of t he 3-year Tra ining Pla n implemented 

(removed) 

Implement an integrated Marketing and 

Communications Strategy (removed) 

Payment of legit imate service provider invoices 

wit hin th e 30-day period (removed) 

In the year under review (2017-2018 financial year) the NYDA had 24 KPls, of which 
14 are met and exceeded and 10 met their targets. 
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KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 1- Economic Participation: 

• A total of 87 4 youth owned enterprises or youth received NYDA grant funding, 
where individual entrepreneurs, enterprises and cooperatives benefited. 

• A total of 21 808 beneficiaries were supported with key fundamentals for success 
offered by the NYDA. These are key fundamentals in ensuring entrepreneurial suc
cess and creation of jobs. The KPI covers programmes such as; Market Linkages, 
Mentorship, Business Management Training, BBBEE and Sales Pitch, Voucher 
Programme and Governance Training. 

• A total of the 4071 jobs were created and sustained through Grant Programme, 
Market Linkages and Business Consultancy Voucher Programme. 

• A total of 8586 jobs were facilitated where young people were placed in various 
job opportunities. 

• The NYDA conceptualised, designed and conducted external consultations to es
tablish the National Youth Fund and NYDA Skills Fund. The Youth Fund aims to serve 
as a vehicle to ensure that young people are empowered to participate fully in 
national and international economies by owning and managing profitable and 
competitive enterprises. Whilst the NYDA Skills Fund aims to make education and 
training available to young people not in education, employment and training 
(NEET) because they are not easily reached by the currently available funding. 

• An estimated 1 542 919 number of young people received information on youth 
development through NYDA access points during the period under review. 
However, the confirmed number of verified young people provided with youth 
development information is 87 673 

• The bulk of the information dissemination was done through branch outreach, 
followed by branch CRM and then LYO CRM. 

• A total of 2 branches, namely; Richardsbay and New Castle, were opened and 
operationalised for young people to access NYDA information. 

• A total of 20 new satellite offices were operationalised for young people to access 
NYDA information. 

• A total of 2 outreach vehicles were procured for young people to access NYDA 
information. 

• A total of 6 new information kiosks were operationalised for young people to 
access NYDA information. 

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 2 - Education and Skills Development: 

• A total of 7 4 386 young people received Life Skills training and Job Preparedness 
Training which prepared them to enter the job market. 

• A total of 504 young people were supported through the Solomon Mahlangu 
Scholarship Programme. 
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• NYS structure was approved by the Board and 95% of funded vacancies were 
filled 

• Norms and standards were approved by NYDA Exco and 17 capacity building 
interventions were conducted to inform stakeholders on the NYS norms and 
standards. 

• Concept and functional specification for the management of the Central 
Information System approved by the NYDA Exco. 

• National Youth Service Programme Annual Planning Framework developed. 
Finalised the 2018/2019 plans NYS project plans. 

• National Youth Service Programme Communication and Marketing Plan was 
developed and phase 1 of the Marketing Plan implemented. 

• A total of 68 National Youth Service projects registered. 
• A total of 7 65 people enrolled and participated in NYS Category 1 project. 
• A total of 13 778 young people enrolled and participated in National youth 

Service category 2 and 3 expanded volunteer programme. 

KEY PERFORMANCE AREA 3 - Research and Policy: 

• A total of 8 programme evaluations and stakeholder satisfaction surveys were 
conducted. 

• A total of R 120 million funds were sourced from the public and private sectors to 
support the youth development programme base. 

• A total of 17 public and private key stakeholders were lobbied to implement 
youth development programmes. 
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PERFORMANCE AREA 1: ECONOMIC PARTICIPATION 
STRATEGIC-~ KEY PERFORMANCE 2017/2018 ANNUAL 2017/2018 ANNUAL REASON FOR VARIANCE l OBJECTIVE INDICATOR 201612017 TARGET ACHIEVE.MENT 

ACHIEVEMENT 

To provide socio- Number of youth owned 698 800 801 Target was overachieve<! due to 
economic enterprises supported partnership wi1h KZN government 
empowerment through Grant Programme Department of Economic 
interventions and Development which provided 
support for young 
people in South additional funding that enabled the 

Africa NYDA to issue more grants to 

support entrepreneurs 

Number of beneficiaries 63407 18000 21803 Target was overachieved due to the 
supported with key high demand of BBBEE and Sales 
fundamentals for success Pitch training that was the b i-
offered by lhe IIIVOA product of outreach interventions 

where NYDA pro<lucts and services 
were presented. 

Number of jobs created 3718 3200 4071 Target overachieved due to more 
and or sustained ihrough grants issued from additional funds 
supporting entrepreneurs received from the Economic 
snd enterprises Department in KZN. This target is 

linked to the number of jobs that are 
created by grant funding 

beneficiaries 

Number of jobs facilitated 5 114 5000 8586 Target was over achieved due to the 
through placements in job partnership wi1h Lulaway and 
opporiunities Catalyx which assisted in Job 

placements 

Establishment of the NIA NYOA Youth Fund INYOA Youth Fund Annual target achieve<! 
NYOA Youth Fund estabijshed established 

{concepfualiza6on. de,;ign ( concepluar1Zation. design 
and consultafions) and consultations) 

Establishment of the NIA NYOA Skills Fund NYDA Skills Fund Annual target achieve<! 
NYOA Skills Fund established established 

(conceptualization, design ( conceptuar1ZStion, design 
and coosultaiions) and consultations) 

To provide Number of young people 1 4444e6 1 500000 87673 Tareget was not met as outreach evi-
increased provided with youth dence was based on estimates which are 
universal access development information not accurate du" to the size and nature 
to young people of events that were covered. 

However the achievement on estimated 
outresch was 1 475 367 

Number of new Branches NIA 2 2 Annual target met 
operationar.*d for young 
people to acc:ess NYOA 
information 
Number of new satellite NIA 20 20 Annual target met 
offices operalionelised for 
young people to access 
NYOA inlormation 
Number of new outreach NIA 2 2 Annual target met 
vehicles procured for 
young people lo access 
NYOA informsbon 
Number of new NI A 4 6 Target was overachieve<! due to high 
information kiosks demand by municipalities for NYDA 
operationalised for kiosks to provide information to 
young people to access young people 
NYDA information 
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TO ENHANCE THE PARTICIPATION OF YOUNG PEOPLE IN THE ECONOMY 

During the year under review, a total of 801 youth owned enterprises or youth re
ceived NYDA grant funding. A total of 569 enterprises were supported, 112 individual 
youth were supported and 120 cooperatives were supported. 

600 

500 

400 

300 

200 

100 

0 

GRANT PROGRAMME 

Grants individuals Grants companies 
(enterprises) 

Grants Cooperatives 

Under beneficiaries supported with key fundamentals for success offered by the 
NYDA a total of 21 808 young entrepreneurs were supported through NYDA Business 
Development Support services. High demand of the products and services offered in 
the Business Development Support services led to the over achievement of the KPI by 
121%. 

34 

Beneficiaries supported with key fundamentals 
for success offered by the NYDA 
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During the period under review, a total of 4071 jobs were created and sustained 
though the Grant, Voucher and Market Linkages Programmes. Most jobs were from 
the Grant Programme at 58%, followed by the Voucher Programme at 36% and then 
Market Linkages Programme at 6%. 

JOBS CREATED AND SUSTAINED 

Grant 
Programme; 

2373 

Market 
Linkages; 251 

Programme; 
1447 

A total of the 8586 jobs were facilitated through placement of young people in job 
opportunities. The partnerships that the NYDA has with various stakeholders led to the 
over achievement of the target by 172%. 

2500 

1000 

1500 

1000 

500 

0 

220 

2126 

1210 

JOB PLACEMENT 

658 686 

jj 427 lfil 
% 134 106 

198 

0 
z 300 292 

C'l z 

NYDA ANNUAL REPORT 2017 /2018 



To provide increased universal access to young people a total of 87 673 young people 
received youth development information through walking into NYDA Branches and 
enrolling in NYDA outreach programmes. 

Young people provided with Youth Development 
Information 

• CRM • OUTREACH 

• A total of 2 branches, namely; Richards bay and New Castle, were opened and 
operationalised for young people to access NYDA information. 

• A total of 20 new satellite offices were operationalised for young people to 
access NYDA information. 

• A total of 2 outreach vehicles were procured for young people to access NYDA 
information. 

• A total of 6 new information kiosks were operationalised for young people to 
access NYDA information. 

PROVIDING INCREASED UNIVERSAL ACCESS 

Outreach 
Vehicles; 2 

Information 
Kiosks; 6 

Branches; 2 

Satellte Offices; 
20 
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 

To facilitate and 
implement skills 
programmes 

To facilitate and 
implement education 
opponunities to 
improve the qual ity 
education attainment 
for the youth 
To engage young people 
in service activities 
geared towards 
fostering patriotism, 
social cohesion and 
nation building 

37 

PERFORMANCE AREA 2: EDUCATION AND SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 

KEY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR 

Number of young people 
stilled to enter the job 
marke 

Number of youth 
supponed to access 
higher education 

National Youth Service 
unit reeon rured to 
deliver on its manda e 

2016/2017 
ACHIEVEMENTS 

71 306 

444 

N/ A 

Norms and standards for N/A 
National Youth service 
Programme (NYSP) 
developed and capacity 
building interventions 
provided 

National Youth Service N/A 
Programme (NYSP) 
Central Information 
Management System 
developed 

Annual planning N/A 
Frameworlc developed 
and 2018/ 19 NYSP p ns 
finalised 

NYSP comm nica ion N/A 
and Marketing plan 
developed and 
implemented 
Number of National S4 

Youth service 
Programme projects 
registered 

Number of young people 11446 
enrolled and 
pa rticipating i the NYS 
Category 1 

Number of young 
people enrolled and 
panicipating NYSP 
category 2 and 3 
expanded volunteer 

44962 

7 2017/2018 TARGET 

64SOO 

500 

NYS structure submitted or 
approval 

Approved norms and 
standards by NYOA EXCO 

10 capacity building 
interve tions reJX)rts 

Approved concept and 
functional specification or 
the management of the 
Central Information 
Management system by 
NYDA Exco 
Developed NYSP Annual 
Planning Framework and 
finalization of the 2018/ 19 
plans 

Developed the NYSP 
Commu ica · n and 
Marlee ·ng plan a d p ase 1 
implemented 
ss 

500 

10000 

2017 /2018 ANNUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT 

74313 

S04 

The NYS structure was 

approved by NYDA Board 

95% of funded vacancies 

filled. 

Norms and standards 
approved by NYDA EXCO 

17 capacity building 
interventions 

Concept and functional 
specification for the 
management o" the central 
lnforma · n Mano=gement 
System appro•1ed by NYDA 
Exco 

NYSP Annual Planning 
Frameworlc developed and 
2018-19 plans fina lised 

NYSP Comm nication and 
Marte · ng plan developed 

and p ase 1 imp emented 

68 

76S 

13778 

I REASON FOR VARIANCE 

Target was overachieved due to a high 
demand for the life ski lls programme by 

panners fike the National Depanment of 
Rural Development 
The target was overachieved because 
Solomon Mahlangu family had to add 
people eligible for the scholarship 

Target was overachieved as a result of a 
board decision to elevate the NYS 
programme and approve the structure to 
deliver on the mandate 

Target was overachieved due to 
government departments' appetite to 
gain a better understanding of National 
Youth service 

Annual target met 

Annual target met 

Annual target met 

Target overachieved due to an increased 

appetite for government depanments to 

register projects and al ign with NYS 

norms and standards 

Target overarched due to a concerted 

effon by the NYDA to engage 

government departments to implement 

NYS category 1 

7 Target was overachieved due to the 

introduction of the NPO incubator 

programme and its alignment to category 

2 and 3 expanded volunteer programme 
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Education and skills development 

TO FACILITATE AND IMPLEMENT EDUCATION OPPORTUNITIES TO IMPROVE THE QUALITY 
EDUCATION ATTAINMENT FOR THE YOUTH 

During the period under review, a total of 7 4 313 young people were skilled to enter 
the job market through being capacitated by Life Skills Training (43 102), Job Pre
paredness Training (29 725) and Technical Training (1 486) . There was a high demand 
of these training by young people hence the target was overachieved by 115%. 

Young people skilled to enter the job market 

2 % 
Technical 

40% Job 
Preparedness 

Skills 

58% Life Skills 

A total of 504 young people were supported to access higher education through the 
Solomon Mahlangu Scholarship. 
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On the National Youth service Programme a total of 68 projects were registered. 
Most registration were done in Gauteng ( 17) and the least were registered in Lim
popo, KwaZulu Natal and Mpumalanga (2). 

NYS PROGRAMME PROJECTS REGISTERO 

20 l • 15 111 15 ,,1 -

10 
5 
0 

A total of 7 65 young people enrolled and participated in NYS Category l programme 
where they were trained on both soft and technical skills. North West had the highest 
number of participants, followed by Limpopo and Gauteng. 

NYS CATEGORY 1 
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In the year under review a total of 13 778 young people enrolled and participated 
in the National Youth Service Category 2 and 3 Expanded Volunteer programme. 

NVS Category 2 and 3 Expanded Volunteer 

2s7 J 
• North West Western Cape • Northern Cape Limpopo • Eastern Cape 

• Free State • KwaZulu Natal Mpumalanga Gauteng 
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Research and Policy 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 

To create and produce 
information and 
knowledge lor bener 
youth development 
planning and dedsion 
making 

To mobilise and leverage 
financial re.sources from 

key stakeholders 

To lobby key 
.stakeholders to support 
and implement youth 
development 
programmes 

KEY PERFORMANCf 
INDICATOR 

Number of programme 
evaluations and stakeholder 
satlslaction surveys 
conducted 

Total value of funds sourced 
from the public and private 
sectors 10 support the youth 
development pr02ramme 
base 

Number of public and 
private key stakeholders 
lobbied to implement 
youth development 
programmes 

- - -
PERFORMANCE AREA 3: RESEARCH ANO POLICY 

2016/2017 
ACHIEVEMENTS 

13 evaluations 

R113 400 000.00 

29 

2017/2018TARGET 

8 

R108million 

10 

8 

2017 /2018 ANNUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT 

Rl20 million 

17 

REASON FOR VARIANCE 

Annual target met 

Tarj!et overachieved due to willin£ness 
of investors in the NYOA products and 
services 

Target overachieved due to willingness 
of stakeholders to partner with the 

NYOA 

In the year under review 4 programme evaluations and 4 customer satisfaction sur
veys were produced. The topics covered under the evaluations were as follows: 

1. Evaluation of increased Bandwidth at NYDA Branches 
2. Evaluation of free Wi-Fi at NYDA Branches 
3. Impact evaluation of Voucher Management System 
4. Impact evaluation of the Entrepreneurship Development Programme 

For customer satisfaction surveys the following were conducted: 
1. Customer satisfaction survey report 4th Quarter 2016-2017 
2. Customer satisfaction survey report 1st Quarter 2017-2018 
3. Customer satisfaction survey report 2nd Quarter 2017-2018 
4. Customer satisfaction survey report 3rd Quarter 2017-2018 

The value of funds that were sourced from public and private sectors to support 
youth development was R 120 million and was sourced from the following organiza
tions and Government Departments: 

• KwaZulu Natal Department of Economic Development, Tourism and 
Environmental affairs 

• TOSACA Media Group 
• Flemish government (Flanders) 
• MTPRO-Mountain Top Production 
• NSFAS 
• lnqaba Yokulinda 
• Lulaway 
• Catalyx foundation 
• MSquareP 
• Services SETA 
• Depar,tf(lent for Arts and Culture 
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• Ebutsini Swazi Traditional Council 
• Department of Small Business Development 
• Msulwa Trading and Projects 

In the year under review 17 public and private key stakeholders were lobbied to 
support and implement youth development programmes 

l Private or Public Company lobbied 
DAC, DIRCO, DPME 
LEAP (South 32) 
Central energy fund 

lnsika foundation 

NSFAS 

SETA, SOC 
SAYCC, LGSETA, SALGA, Afrika leadership, SAYC 
Adcock Ingram, SANAC 

BEE in Bin cleaning 

Hope factory 
Bathengele Agri 

African Women's Movement 
Bonafide 

Black Business Council 

SAYiMC 

Running business today 
Fluor 
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Intent for lobbying 
To discuss the youth development Africa-China youth festival 
To discuss a match between LEAP's business funding and NYDA voucher programme. 
To engage on areas of mutual interest around youth development and establish a 

artnershi 
To establish a formal relationship with the NYDA for the following programmes 

• Jobs database 
• Market linkages 
• Job preparedness training 

To discuss possible working relationship between NYDA and NSFAS for an internship 
_programme. 
Green Youth lndaba conference towards touth development 
Local government youth development conference_Qr1_Youth development 
A partnership event implemented with Adcock lngrams, the purpose of the outreach was 
to create awareness on the various programmes that are available to assist young people 
To discuss areas of partnership to fund youth to participate in the BBE in Bin cleaning 

2roject 
To discuss areas of collaboration for a bin cleaning project 
To engage on areas of mutual interest in development of youth in agriculture & to 
establish a partnership 
To engage on a collaboration for a bin cleaning project 
To engage on a collaboration of mutually beneficial projects that will benefit the 
ob·ectives of both arties. Bonafide to assist businesses with financial coaching_. _ 
To engage on a collaboration on mutually beneficial project that will benefit the 
objectives of both parties. 
To engage on a collaboration on mutually beneficial project that will benefit youth in 
mining. 
Engage on_[:>OSSible collaboration on training in the entrepreneurship space 
To present the products and services of the NYDA, find synergies for a collabora tion 
between the two arties. 



Performance information financial disclosure actual against budget 

Key Performance Area Budget Actual Expenditure 

Economic Participation R 187,523,500 R 184,253,739 

Education and Skills R 46,981,000 R 45,575,64 1 
Development 
National Youth Service R 47,412,500 R 47,593,301 
Research and Policy R 9,726,000 R 7,624,218 
Governance and R 147,663,000 R 146,662,068 
administration 
Capital expenditure R 16,500,00 R 16,256,000 
Total R 455,806,000 R 447,964,000 

Key Policy Development and Legislative Changes 

In the year under review, the NYDA developed the Draft Integrated Youth Develop
ment Strategy (IYDS) considering its legislative responsibility in terms of the NYDA Act. 
The IYDS is an all-encompassing strategy and implementation plan to bring life to the 
vision set out in the National Youth Policy 2020 and the National Development Plan 
2030. It sets ambitious targets for youth development which cuts across all govern
ment departments. The IYDS will be submitted during 2018 / 2019 for the consider
ation of the Minister in the Presidency for Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation. 

The NYDA Act remains under review with the Department of Planning, Monitoring 
and Evaluation leading the process of the review. It remains unlikely that the Act will 
reach the fifth parliament and its proposed amendments will most likely be tabled 
during the sixth Parliament. 

The NYDA has formed part of the task team which is considering the amalgamation 
of Chapter Nine institutions of the Constitution based on the Kader Asma I report. The 
former National Youth Commission, prior to the merger was considered part of the 
review process. The NYDA has made significant inputs to the task team 

In 2018 / 2019 the NYDA will table the Status of the Youth Report as part of its legisla
tive requirements. 

The Treasury Regulations are currently being revised, which may introduce several 
new requirements once effective. 

Strategy to overcome underperformance 

The methodology to address the underperformance is as follows: 

• Internally divisions debate the nature of the underperformance and rigorously 
interrogate the underperformance to determine the root cause thereof. 
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• Underperformance which have similar root causes are pooled within the same 
area for further analysis. 

• Once the root cause is determined, the failure is linked to either a people, process 
or systems failure. 

• An action plan is put in place to respond to the root cause. 
• The action plan is cascaded for further deliberation and input to a forum of man

agers, senior managers and executive directors. 
• Inputs and further recommendations are sourced from the internal and external 

audit function. 
• Recommendations are consolidated towards the final management letter action 

plan. 
• A summary plan is developed for ease of reference and for continuous monitor

ing purposes. 
• If necessary consequence management is implemented against employees 

where there may have been negligence in the achievement of the target. 
• The targets are red flagged for additional monitoring and evaluation. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk Management Strategy in NYDA aims to create a coordinated, systematic and 
focused framework for the management of risk within the Agency. The strategy in
cluded the following: 

• a plan of action to improve the Institution's risk management maturity 
• a focus on the prevention of fraud and corruption 
• the Institution's risk management architecture and reporting lines 
• details of review and assurance of the risk management process. 

It set out the criteria and framework to assist NYDA in meeting its objectives its objec
tives to satisfy the needs of its service providers, strategic partners and clients, as well 
as its other stakeholders in all circumstances. 

Legislative Mandate 

Public Finance Management Act 

Section 51 ( 1) (a) (i) of the Public Finance Management Act requires that "The Ac
counting Authority must ensure that the public entity has and maintains effective, ef
ficient and transparent systems of financial, risk management and internal control". 

The focused Risk Management areas for the 2017 /18 were to: 

• Embed Enterprise Risk Management to such an extent as to lead to a higher level 
of maturity as per the expected maturity curve; 

• Embed the standardization of compliance terminology, framework and 
methodology and approaches; 

• Improve the Risk Management Information System; 
• Be consistent in the application of risk management principles; 
• Focus on emerging risks and opportunitjes in terms of strategic risk initiatives 

across the business; 
• Embed Insurance policies and procedures; 
• Ensure alignment to Turn Around Strategy. 

Risk Management Plan 

In the 2017 /2018 Financial Year, the risk activities undertaken by the Risk Manage
ment plan included the following: 
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Enterprise Risk Management 

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) is a process, effected by an entity's board of di
rectors, management and other personnel, applied in strategy setting and across 
the enterprise, designed to identify potential events that may affect the entity, and 
manage risks to be within its risk appetite, provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the achievement of entity objectives through: 

• Continuous monitoring of reviewed strategic and operational risk registers 
• Reporting on risk profiles and risk mitigation plans 
• Appointment of Risk Management Champions 
• Integration of Risk Management into performance contracts for senior 

management 

Compliance with Laws and Regulations 

The Agency is committed to a philosophy of Integrated Compliance Risk Manage
ment as a core managerial capability, which is aligned to the principles of the King 
Report, the standards set by the Compliance Institute of SA and the legislative re
quirements of the PFMA. In addition, the Audit Committee oversees and provides 
advice on the Agency's compliance activities. 

Fraud Risk Assessment 

The Agency has an approved Fraud Prevention strategy and Fraud Prevention plan 
that are updated on an annual basis. The Agency's toll-free hotline number (0800 
203 240) is used to report any suspicious and corrupt activities within the Agency. All 
allegations received are followed up and, if necessary, investigations are conduct
ed. To proactively mitigate the risk of fraud, a fraud risk assessment is conducted an
nually on high-risk areas. Fraud Risk Assessment on Supply Chain Management was 
conducted 

Internal Controls 

The Agency places special emphasis on control activities within the financial, supply 
chain management, compliance and performance information process areas, and 
these areas are subject to robust audits from both internal and external audit: 

• Closed all outstanding audits finding 
• Planned for internal audit maturity review 
• Monitoring & Reporting on the implementation of Combined Assurance results 
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Risk Insurance 

The Risk Unit ensured insurance requirements of the Agency are met. During the 
2017 /2018 FY, an invitation to interested insurance brokers to submit tenders for insur
ance broking services was placed in the government bulletin. The appointment of 
the new broker was finalised for a period of three years. To this end, limits are re
viewed annually and claims managed monthly. 

Minimizing Conflict of Interest 

The Risk Management Unit was tasked with an exercise of determining if whether em
ployees have conflict of interests as defined by the Code of Conduct and NYDA 
Fraud Prevention Policy. 

• Completion and submission of declaration of interest form on a yearly basis by all 
officials of the NYDA. 

• CIPC Verification on all employees 
• Signing of declaration of interest forms by all Bid Committee members involved in 
the procurement process in the Agency to avoid any potential conflict 

Business Continuity Management 

The Risk Management and Information Communication Technology(ICT) Units em
barked on a process to update the business continuity. They conducted the business 
continuity process by developing Business Continuity Management Governance 
framework, strategy and policy. The ICT Unit finalized IT Disaster Recovery Plan, Disas
ter Recovery Policies 
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PARTNERSHIPS FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT 

The NYDA as the government agency that is at the center of youth development in 
South Africa, has the huge and most important task of designing and developing, 
coordinating and implementing youth development programmes that have a last
ing impact on the sustainable development of young people. This huge mandate 
that the NYDA must carry out requires significant resources, and the NYDA has made 
it is a policy to partner and collaborate with entities in the private, public and civil so
ciety sectors that also care about the plight of our youth. 

From a private sector perspective, during this financial year the NYDA partnered and 
collaborated with several companies. The NYDA worked with Tocasa Media in their 
implementation of the annual Green Youth lndaba. The purpose of the lndaba is to 
present a platform where information about the agricultural and green economy 
sectors can be disseminated. The Agency also partnered with Monyeng Multipur
pose (Pty) Ltd in order to train youth in the Film and TV training, Entrepreneurship De
velopment as well as in Social Cohesion. This training and development intervention 
benefitted about 200 young people. The Agency further partnered with Lulaway 
Holdings (Pty) Ltd in order to train 3000 youth in work readiness and the placement of 
5000 youth into employment opportunities. Muselwa Trading and Projects (Pty) Ltd 
also partnered with the NYDA to contribute to an implement a youth technical skills 
training programme. IBA Global also partnered with NYDA for the implementation of 
Technical Skills internship projects. 

In the local government space, the Agency has partnered with several municipali
ties. The purpose of these partnerships is to assist with the expansion of the NYDA 
branch network. In col laboration with these municipalities, the NYDA is able to set up 
youth centers where NYDA products and services are made available to the youth 
of the of the locality. The Agency also continues to partner with several higher edu
cation institutions for the implementation of its Solomon Mahlangu Scholarship Fund. 
These partnerships continue to assist young people to access higher education at 
these institutions. This was also done in collaboration with the National Student Finan
cial Assistance Scheme, which has placed an important role in augmenting the ser
vices that the Solomon Mahlangu Scholarship Fund provides. 

On the public sector front, the NYDA partnered with the National Department of Arts 
and Culture for the Young Patriots Programme. The aim of the programme was to ad
dre5s issues facing the youth of South Africa and the Nation like crime, racism, unend
ing poverty and overwhelming unemployment. The focus of this programme was on 
nation builG:ling and socia l cohesion. 
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Furthermore, the NYDA collaborated with the Department of Small Business Develop
ment to support the establishment of fifteen ( 15) Youth Cooperative Micro-Franchises 
on the Cape Flats and surrounding areas, like Khayelitsha, Fisantenkraal, Mbekweni, 
Delft, Michels Plain, Eersterivier, Hanover Park, Manenburg, Phllipi and Saldahna to 
operate the Braai Cafe Micro- franchise Restaurant stores. The NYDA also partnered 
with Kwa-Zulu Natal Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environ
mental Affairs in supporting businesses which required funding for amounts between 
R50 000-R l 00 000. The Department has pledged to allocate R2 000 000 annually to 
the NYDA grant programme. NYDA also partnered with Services SET A to roll out a 
youth apprenticeship programme. 

On the international front, NYDA partnered with the Flemish government for a Civil 
Society programme. NYDA also organised the Africa-China Youth Festival with the 
aim of exchanging ideas on entrepreneurship, culture and education. 
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BRAAI CAFE PROJECT (WESTERN CAPE) 

Background 

Department of Small Business Development (DSBD), partnered with the National 
Youth Development Agency (NYDA), Small Enterprise Development Agency (SEDA) 
in funding of Braai cote project. 

The project aims to establish 15 cooperatives at a cost of R42 l, 680 per co-op which 
will be opened in pre-identified areas i.e. Khayelitsha, Gugulethu, Mandalay, 
Mitchell's Plein, Lango, Nyanga, Strandfontein and Greenfields to operate Braai 
Cafe Stores that will be youth owned. 

NYDA and DSBD co-funded this project to a tune of R35, 000 per co-op (store) and 
R350, 000 per store respectively with R825, 000 which is projected for mentorship and 
coaching by TABBS a private company that will be responsible for setting up each 
store, monitoring and reporting for a period of three years as well as area manager 
(operations training) of R500, 000. The total investment for the project is R7, 149, 151. 

Purpose 

The main purpose of this project is to promote the most efficient and cost-effective 
fast food micro enterprise stores for small-scale start-up enterprises. 
This project also serves to achieve the following:-

• Capacity Building (Technical skills, Governance, Business Management, and Life 
skills) 

• Facilitate access to market opportunities; 
• Facilitate access to funding; 
• Provide Technical Support; 
• Mentorship and coaching 
• Support at least 15 Cooperatives, Create and sustain at least 90 jobs 

These objectives will be achieved by collaborating with other stakeholders in the pri
vate sector and DSBD. 

Collaborations: The Agency is collaborating with the following Stakeholders: 

• N-YDA: Co-funding, co-operative governance training , business management 
trainiQg, Life skills, Business Consultancy Vouchers, Branding, After-care and 
Summative Assessment. 

• DSBD: Funding 

• SEDA: Branding, business plan development, marketing material, website design 
and all other business development support. 

• TABBS: FacilitatiGn, mentorship and coaching of youth co-operatives 
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BACKGROUND 

The Johannesburg Summit o f the Forum on China-Africa Cooperation {FOCAC) was 
successfully held in December 2015, during which the Johannesburg Action Plan 
{2016-2018) of FOCAC was adopted. It was agreed that the Chinese and African 
sides will take turns to host the China-Africa Youth Gala annually. In April 2017, South 
Africa and China launched the South Africa -China High Level People-to -People 
Mechanism {PPEM) to create new highlights in bilateral cultural and people-to 
-people pragmatic cooperation. 

On 23 August 2016, China hosted the first China-Africa Youth Festival which was at
tended by delegates from member countries of China-Africa Cooperation Forum. It 
was during this forum that a decision w as taken for South Africa to host the next Afri
ca-Africa Youth fest iv al. 

In order to implement the Action Plan and enrich the cooperation connotation of 
the mechanism, the National Youth Development Agency {NYDA) and the Chinese 
People's Association for Friendship with Foreign Countries {CPAFFC) co-hosted the 
2nd China-Africa Youth Festival in South Africa from 23rd to 26th April, 2017 under the 
theme Unity, Responsibility for Common Prosperity. 

The Festival aim was to, among others, renew the friendship between Africa and 
China, and to look into the future, enhance mutual understanding and strengthen 
exchanges and mutual learning, so as to inject youthful vitality in to the everlasting 
friendship and mutually beneficial cooperation between Africa and China. 

OBJECTIVES OF THE FESTIVAL 

• To have a conversation on issues of common interest; 
• To exchange ideas entrepreneurship, diplomatic, cultural and education 

concepts as they relate to youth; 
• To share best practice models. 

OUTCOMES OF THE FESTIVAL 

• A clear understanding of youth development among African youth and those of 
China; 

• Exchanged knowledge on the thematic areas {Students and Teachers, Young 
Diplomats and Entrepreneurship); 

• Cultural and historical knowledge exchanged. 
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PARTICIPANTS DELEGATES 

A total number of three hundred (300) participants were invited, and two hundred 
and sixty one (261) delegates participated in the festival. The festival was constituted 
as follows: 

• 100 South African delegates; 
• 114 Chinese delegates; and 
• 47 delegates from the African Continent. 

These participants were drawn from the following sectors: young entrepreneurs, 
young diplomats, students, young artists, youth political formations, young people in 
government. And youth focal point. 

CONCLUSION 

The conference was a success. It further strengthened the relationship between 
China and South Africa, Africa as a whole. Looking forward to the next conference 
to be held in China in 2018. The last day of the conference was held at the Depart
ment of International Relations and Cooperation (DIRCO). The Chinese Vice Premier, 
Minister Edna Molewa and Deputy Minister Manamela closed the conference. 

56 NYDA ANNUAL REPORT 2017 /2018 



NYS PROGRAMME 

NYDA ANNUAL REPORT 2017 /2018 





National Youth Service 

The financial year 2017 /18 began with the final approval of the National Youth 
Service (NYS) Framework by Cabinet. The strategic objective of the NYS remains to 
engage young people in service activities geared towards fostering Patriotism, Social 
cohesion and Nation Building. 

The performance areas and indicators for the National Youth Service Unit (NYSU) 
focused on the reconfiguration of the National Youth Service Unit (NYSU) to deliver on 
its legislative and policy mandate as per the provisions of the NYS National Coordina
tion Framework which sought to reposition the NYS Programme and ensure its main
streaming across all sectors of society. 

One of the important areas of the annual performance p lan was to develop tools of 
engagement with partners & stakeholders to create opportunities for them to partici
pate in the implementation of the programme and take it to scale. It was also impor
tant to popularize the programme through the development and implementation of 
a communications and marketing strategy. Tools such as Norms and Standards, the 
Annual Planning Framework and an Information Management System had to be de
veloped as part of repositioning the programme. The year under review saw the 
NYSU achieving all and exceeding some of its performance targets as illustrated 
below: 

Key Performance 
Indicator 

deliver on its 
mandate. 

Norms and standards 
(N&S) for NYSP 
developed & capacity 
buildine done. 

NYSP Central 
Information 
Management System 
(IMS) developed. 

Annual Planning 

framework 
developed & 2018/19 
plan!. finalised. 

NYSP communication 
& mar-keting plan 
developed & 
implemented. 

Number of NYS 
projects registered 

Number of young 
peoiple enroled & 
paiticipate in 
Category 1. 

Number of young 
peoiple enr-oled & 
pa iticipate in 
Category 2&3. 
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Annual Target 

approval. 

Approved N&S & 
10 capacity building 
int~vensions don~. 

Approved concept 
& functional spec 
for IMS by Exco. 

Develop 

Framework & 
finalise 
2018/19 plans. 

Develop plan 
& phase 1 
implemented. 

SS project 
registered. 

500 young 
people 
enrolled. 

10 000 young 
people 
enrolled. 

Performance 
Achievement 

Structure approved 
by NYDA Board & 
95% funded po<.ts 
filled. 

Approved N&S & 
17 capacity 
buil ding 
inteventions. 

Approved 
concept & 
functional spec 
for IMS. 

Planning Framework 
developed & 2018/19 
finalised. 

Com ms & Marketing 
plan developed with 
phase 1 implemented. 

68 projects 
reet~tered. 

765 yo .. ng people 

enrolled. 

13 n8 voung people 
enrolled. 

Reason for Variance 

Target exceeded due to 
Bord's decision to 
elevate NYS & approved 
new structure. 

Target exceeded due to 
continued lobbying of 
partners &departments 
by NYSU. 

Target met with the 

intei:ration of the IMS 
into the NYDA EIP. 

Target met with more 

departments lobbied. 

Target met through 
branding exposure at 
the NYS events with 

partners. 

Target exceeded due to 
increased interest by 
departments to rceistcr 
& align to NYS N&S. 

Target exceeded due to 
NYSU efforts to engage 
depts & partners to 

implement NYS. 

Target exceeded due 
to efforts by NYSU to 
mobilise & lobby more 

partners. 
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BACKGROUND AND EVOLUTION OF THE PROGRAMME 

The NYSP in the main aims to reconstruct South African society by developing 
the abilities of young people through Service. The NYSP builds character and 
enables young people to give back to society. In addition, it addresses past 
racial segregation by enabling young people to share common spaces such 
that they recognise common humanity in each other. 

In 2015 the South African government demonstrated its long standing commit
ment to youth development by adopting the National Youth Policy 2015-2020 
(NYP 2020). In the NYP 2020, the NYSP was highlighted as one of the key inter
ventions outlined in the five priority intervention areas with a role to play in 
strengthening social cohesion and bringing excluded youth into the social 
mainstream. It was seen as a key programme that contributes to enabling 
young people to make the transition towards active citizenry. 

Through the two anchor programmes of the NYS, namely, the Volunteer and 
Skills programme, young people participated in projects that directly improve 
race relations and enhances community development and civic engage
ment. Arguably, these are central tenets to Nation Building and Social Cohe
sion. The NYSP, as a flagship programme of government continues to evolve 
and is yielding positive results. The ultimate priority of the NYSP is the prioritisation 
of the participation of youth in voluntarism as a mechanism to building Patrio
tism and Social Cohesion, with the ultimate goal of a nation with a shared 
future. 

The table below illustrates projects and partners who participated in the imple
mentation of the different categories of the programme. These partners cre
ated opportunities for young people to serve their communities and gain criti
cal skills that enhance their chances to be employed. 
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Partners 

The Department of Public Works, Roads and Transport (North West); 
The Department of Culture, Arts and Traditional Affairs (North West); 

• The Department of Public Works and Infrastructure (Free State); 
The Department of Cooperative Governance, Human Settlement and 
Traditional Affairs (Limpopo); 
The Department of Agriculture (Limpopo); 

• The Department of Social Development (North West); 
• The Department of Human Settlement (North West) 

The Department of Infrastructure Development (Gauteng) 
• Transnet 

EXPANDED VOLUNTEER PROGRAMME 
Partners 

Mopani District Municipality; Greater Tzaneen Local Municipality; Belabela 

Local Municipality; Waterberg District Municipality; Vhembe District 

Municipality; Capricorn District Municipality; Ngaka Modiri Molema District 

Municipality; JB Marks Local Municipality; Dr Kenneth Kaunda District 

Municipality; South African Youth Council; Department of Transport; 

Department of Economic Development; Sol Plaatje Local Municipality; 

Mantsopa Local Municipality; Mafube Local Municipality, Ehlanzeni 

Municipality, City of Joburg, Tshwane Metro, Ekurhuleni Metro, Buffalo City 

Metro, Nelson Mandela Metro, Emthanjeni Municipality, John Taolo Gaitsiwe 

Municipality, Umgungundlovu District Municipality; Bojanala District 

Municipality, Gert Sibanda District Municipality, Chris Hani Municipality, 

Alfred Nzo Municipality; OR Tambo District Municipality, Moses Kotane. 

FLAGSHIP AND NEW PARTNERSHIP PROGRAMMES 

Skills acquired 

Construction; 
• Social/Community 

development; 
Arts and culture; 
Environmental cleaning 
and Nature conservation; 

• Artisan development. 
• Contractor development 

Nature of Service 

Young volunteers were 
engaged in the following 

activities; 

Community development 
action; 

Arts and culture 
campaigns; 

Environment clean up 
and 

Dialogues on community 
development. 

The following programmes were also implemented in the year under review: 
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The Collins Chabane School for Artisans 

This is one of the NYDA's pilot projects aimed at developing best pract ice models. 

The school offers a technical skills development programme focussed on youth who are 

unemployed and have fallen through the cracks of the education system. This is a cohort of young 

people classified as not in employment, not in education nor any form of training, the NEET 

group, as referred to by our development policy documents. This group had a bleak future prior 

to their participation in the school. They now have a fighting chance going into the future. The 

participants are aged between 17 to 35 years. 

The first phase of the pilot programme has concluded with the participants graduating with NQF 

level 3 qualifications. 

There are important lessons drawn from the first phase. These lessons will be integrated into 

future programmes to increase efficiency and effectiveness. 
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The SA-Namibia Youth Exchange Programme 

This is one of the important programmes of the NYS in the context of the need for bilateral 

corporations within the SADC region. The previous phases generated a lot of interest amongst t he 

participants to participate in the development of the continent through service. 

• The programme exchange activit ies had to be suspended in 2017 /18 due to financial 

constraints on both the Namibian and South African sides. 

• The two partners have however agreed to resume the implementation of the programme in 

t he 2018/19 financial year. 

Category 1: TYPP Flag verification is schools 

The NYDA/ Department of Arts and Culture Young Patriots Programme (TYPP) 

The TYPP is a flagship programme of the Department of Arts and Culture and the NYSU. It allows the 

NYS Program access into the Arts and Culture sector. The TYPP programme aims to create a cadre of 

young people who are proud and car ing South Africans. Programme act ivities are intended to build 

awareness on the South African history and instil a sense of patriotism amongst the recruited 

patriots. 

Key programme activities include: 

• Popularising nat ional symbols such as t he national flag in schools, 

• Undertaking audits of human treasurers in communities 

• The installation of flag poles in schools. 

The programme recruited 303 yout h into the programme and 286 youth were stil l in the 

programme by end of March 2018. A stipend was paid to enable them to participate in the activities 

of the programme. 
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SOUTH AFRICA FLEMISH COOPERATION 

This remains one of our very successful programmes. 

The cooperat ion is celebrating 20 years of existence between the Government of South Africa and 

Flanders. A celebration documentary was produced which highlights the achievements of the 

Cooperation since the incept ion. 

The f lagship programme of the Flemish Cooperation in the 2017 /18 financial year was the NPO 

Incubator programme, which proves to be a significant vehicle to increase the Unit's access into 

communities, particularly rural and marginalised ones. 

2017 /18 saw the finalisation of the translation of tlhe Volunteer Management Tool Kit into 6 Official 

Languages, and the recruitment of youth led/youth focused non -profit organisations in all the 9 

provinces to participate in this NPO capacity building programme. 

The yea r ended with 300 of these organisations trained on how to use the Volunteer management 

tool kit in preparation for their implementation of volunteer programmes in 2018/19. 

As a result of the mature stage at which t he programme is, t he NYS unit has begun to lobby other 
foreign partners to increase the scope of this Incubator programme and create more opportunities 

for more organisations and by extension more young people. 

Under the Cooperation, t he processes of developing a volunteer policy in South Africa commenced. 

Plans are afoot to conduct st udy tou rs to like-minded countries to begin t he process of the 

development of the policy in the next financial year. 

Activities under the International Volunteer Day were implemented as declared by UNESCO for the 

5th of December. Youth were mobilised to participate in volunteer activities ranging from the 

refurbishment of public buildings, the development of food gardens and cleaning campaigns in all 

nine provinces. 
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PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS 

Transnet School of Engineering 

The cooperation with Transnet School of Engineering (TSE) is on the development of technical 

engineering skills. The school has 18 campuses in various provinces. The primary focus of the 

project is to enhance the technical skills development work that is being undertaken by the 

school. The NYSU offers soft skills such as Mental Toughness Learners are equipped with technical 

ski lls training on trades covering both the mechanica l and electrical engineering fields. Learners 

are equipped with Business Communication and Computing Program to improve access to exit 

pathways. TSE's t raining centres are accredited by TETA and M ERSETA to deliver the trades. TSE 

also offers Recognition of Prior Learn ing (RPL) and Recognition of Current Competencies (RCC) in 

these t rades. 

De Beers 

A partnership with De Beers Mining (Voorspeod) in Kroonstad, recruited 25 unemployed young 

women enrolled in a Community Skills Programme. The programme is providing the following 

skills: 

Rope Rescue 
First Aid Level 1-2 
Fire Fighting 
Plumbing 
Water Treatment a 
Welding 

De Beers covers the cost for training and lodging for these young women for 6 months of the 

training. After training the youth are placed in the Local Municipa lity as well as the nearby M ine 

for practical training On exit, the mine helps the young women to set up businesses while some 

are placed in available work opportunities within the mine. 

NYDA ANNUAL REPORT 2017 /2018 



KEY DEVELOPMENTS 

The NYS Funding Model 

In the period under review, the NYS funding model has been implemented follow
ing recommendations made by the National Coordination Framework. The frame
work proposes that Government Departments fund the bricks and mortar costs of 
implementation which includes materials and supervision costs during community 
service. The other costs covered by partner departments are technical training, 
participants' stipends. 

NYS is making inroads into securing private sector funding. This area of work will be 
escalated to strengthen programme reach to ensure that larger numbers of young 
people access development opportunities. 

The NYS Skills Fund 

The NYDA has set up the Skills Fund with an intention to fund skills development pro
grammes coordinated by the NYSU. The Fund targets young people who are not in 
education, employment and training. The strategy is to take into account challeng
es experienced by the existing models of funding education and training to en
hance efficiency and impact. 
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NYDA OPERATIONS 

Service Delivery points 

The NYDA increased its number of branches from fifteen ( 15) full service branches lo
cated in all provinces to seventeen ( 17) . The Agency is further partnering with munici
palities to open district offices that will deliver products and services to the youth with 
a focus on rural municipalities. The Agency has also increased its outreach mobile 
fleet with an additional two vehicles in order to increase its rural reach. 

The Agency has modernized three full service branches to be more customer centric 
which are namely: 

• Rustenburg 
• East London 
• Mbombela 

All branches have free Wi-Fi to enable young people to access the internet for free. 

Economic participation 

The grant program continues to be the Agency flagship programme that stimulate 
entrepreneurship in the country amongst youth, especially in a country with one the 
lowest entrepreneurship barometers in the world for young people. Young people in 
South Africa continue to in many cases hold the perception that to escape poverty 
and become employed, the solution lies in obtaining education and entering the 
labor force. Young people continue to fear entrepreneurship. 

Over 801 businesses have been supported through the grant programme which has 
created 4 071 new jobs. An amount of R41,4 million (grant amount was R34,6 million 
and vouchers was R6.8 million) has been spent on the programme which equates 
the cost o f each job created to approximately at R 10 200 in the 2017/2018 financial 
year. 

The programme has seen 65% of businesses succeeding beyond year 1 after the 
grant stimulus funding with the NYDA continuing to provide financial support through 
its voucher programme and non-financial support through its post disbursements and 
mentorship support. The grant programme has seen substantial demand amongst 
young people and has become the most popular programme of the Agency. 
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Education and skills development 

In the financial year under review the Department of Higher Education announced 
free higher education for the poor and working class students. This has necessitated 
for the Education and Skills Development area to be consolidated over the medium 
term, the scholarship fund will be wound down over the next three years to fund 
other items on the baseline such as universal access to opportunities. The agency is 
now going to priorities job placement opportunities for youth through jobs place
ment programme and economic development programme. We will also assist stu
dent to access the government scholarship programme as facilitated by the Nation
al Student Financial Aid Scheme by making available information communication 
technology tools and resources for student to apply online. 

National Skills Fund (NSF) 

The partnership between NYDA and NSF continues to yield positive results. In the cur
rent year under review forty (40) students that were funded under this partnership 
completed their studies. An additional twenty-four students also completed their 
studies under the Solomon Mahlangu Scholarship Fund. 

Services SETA(SSETA) 

The Services Seta awarded the NYDA grant funding to implement apprenticeship in 
empowerment and skills development of 583 previously disadvantaged people 
through skills training over a period of three years 
Below is a breakdown of trades and number of young people on the programme: 

Province Artisan Trades Number 
Of Youth 

Electricia n 
Gauteng 

Plumber 256 

Boiler Marker 

Bric kla yer 

M pumala nga Boiler Maker 

Fitter a nd urner 
73 

Limpopo We lder 

Electricia n 
155 

Electricia n 

Diesel Mecha nic s 

Carpentry 

Eastern Cape Electricia n 30 
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Free States Boiler Marker 

Automotive Mo tor Mechanic 80 

Kwa-Zulu Natal Electrician 

Diesel Mechanics 94 
Plumbing 

Northern Cape Bricklayer 24 

TOTAL 583 
. 

FAO internship programme 

The NYDA partnered with the Food and Agriculture Organisation of the United Na
tions (FAO) to implement the Internship programme for unemployed graduates in the 
field of Agriculture. The main objectives of the programme are: 

• To equip graduates with the necessary, appropriate and practical skills to im 
prove their chances of accessing sustainable economic opportunities. 

• To assist in developing the agriculture industry in South Africa to benefit from the 
knowledge and skills of qualified graduates. 

• To boost human resources capacity for the Agriculture industry. 

Five South African graduates received international exposure on working for a multi
national organization and received the opportunity to learn more about the work of 
the FAO. The aim of the partnership is to increase the pool of South Africans who par
ticipate and benefit from FAO programmes. 
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Mbombela Full service Branch 
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NYDA Mobile Office 
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Our vision, which is to be a credible, capable and activist development agency that 
is responsive to the plight of South Africa's youth, continues to drive us in ensuring we 
make a meaningful and lasting positive dif ference in the lives of the youth. 

Our most important asset, our employees, remain at the centre of our everyday 
action. The Agency recognises and places our staff at the forefront of everything we 
do. 

The journey to greatness continues to be centrally dependent on our staff. 
The year under review was characterised by development of a comprehensive three 
year Human Resources strategy and plan. This exercise, we believe, shall enable the 
Agency to transform into an effective and efficient public entity focusing on youth 
development as our core mandate. The HR strategy and plan supports the overall or
ganisational and departmental strategic objectives, assist in improving current effec
tiveness and efficiencies of the department and finally improve the service level. 

Set HR priorities for the year under review 

A journey of a thousand miles begin with one step indeed. To that end, we needed 
to prioritise key HR deliverables into 3 different phases. For the year under review, 
phase one included the following deliverables: 

• Appointment of capable staff into critical positions 
• Development and approval of the HR strategy and plan 
• Implementation of the year 1 of the 3-year training plan 
• Review and approval of all HR policies 
• Re-grading of al l positions 
• Improved labour relations 

Phase 2 and 3 will be extensively covered in the HR strategy and p lan. 

Workforce planning and key strategies to attract and recruit skilled and capable 
workforce. 

A critical component of the Agency in delivering against its mandate is our ability to 
continually align our needs and priorities with those of our workforce. This enables us 
to meet legislative, regulatory and service requirements as well as the Agency's ob
jec tives 

Highlights 

• Wellness Day across all Branches and Head-Office 
• Appointment of OHS Representatives and Committee 
• c;:onsultative Forum meetit1gs and 
• Ba gaining Forum meetings (where successful salary negotiations were 

undertaken and implemented) 
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During the year under review, priority was on placement of capable staff into identi
fied critical positions. A total of 20 critical positions were identified, prioritised and suc
cessfully recruited and appointed on time. Internal staff are always prioritised when 
there is a vacancy. It is only when the required skills set could not be internally found, 
an external recruitment advertisement would be placed on the Agency's website 
and through recruitment agencies as well as national newspapers. 
The process we follow in recruiting skilled and capable workforce is open, 
transparent and rigorous. 

Employee Performance Management Framework 

The Employee performance management framework is embedded within the NYDA 
Performance Management Policy. The performance management cycle guides the 
coordination of performance management strategies and is inclusive of the follow
ing elements: 

• Performance Planning 
• Performance Contracting 
• Employee Capacity Building 
• Monitoring performance appraisals 
• Evaluating performance 
• Employee Reward and Recognition 

For the year under review, focus continued to be placed on high performance. As 
the Agency prides itself in achieving 100 percent of its Key Performance Areas (KPl' s), 
performance contracting became a key focus. To that end, all performance con
tracts were duly signed off by all staff on time. This ensures that there is a consistent 
and fair practice in rewarding those who have performed above 
expectations while encouraging others to improve. 

Employee Wellness Programme 

The purpose of the Employee Wellness Policy is to: 
• Promote and enhance personal and occupational health and wellness of the 

Agency 
• Ensure that the Agency is compliant with the legislation regulating employee 

health and sa t ety 

The key ac tivities implemented for the year under review include: 
• 64 employees were reached through counsel ling and advisory services. 
• 218 individwals particip ated in the NYDA annual Health and Wellness Road Show 

(Health Risk Assessments) . 
• 1 ~ mployees attended the EWP Induction/information sessions conducted at all 

NYDA 0ffices nation,.0 lly. 
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Future HR plans/ goals 

The future HR plans and goals are informed by the approved HR strategy and plan 
and can be summarised as: 

• Continued staff capacity building (Job based training, Personal Development 
Plans training and Leadership Development) 

• Living the NYDA values 
• Change Management 
• Talent Management 
• HR Toolkit for Managers and Executives 
• Employee Hand-Book 
• Recognition, Rewards and Benefits 
• Continued performance management refresher workshops 
• Communicating the HR strategy 
• Conducive and enabling environment for all staff 

Code of Conduct and Ethics, and Policy update 

The Agency's Code of Conduct and Ethics policy continues to be implemented and 
monitored. The purpose of the policy is to: 

• Provide guidance in relation to ethical conduct of employees about their 
relationship with the Agency, other employees and the public, 

• Promote the spirit of accountability, fairness and transparency amongst 
employees in the execution of their duties and responsibilities, 

• Ensure that employees always act in the best interest of the Agency, 
• Set out standards of conduct expected from NYDA staff, 
• Serve as a brief description of the NYDA's core values 
• Provide a framework for identifying conduct that is ethical and acceptable for 

NYDA staff who, effectively, act as its agents at all levels, 
• Create the context for the ethical use of authority, 
• Support a ll efforts aimed at curbing moral degeneration and 
• Promote the principle of open government and welcome opportunities to share 

information with relevant stakeholders. 

The following HR policies were approved: 

l. Performance Management Policy 
2. Recruitment and Selection Policy 
3. Learning and Development Policy 
4. Code of Conduct and Ethics Policy 
5. Leave Policy 
6. Attendance Policy 
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7. Employee Safety and Wellness Policy 
8. Grievance Process and Procedure Policy 
9. Disciplinary Process and Procedure Policy 
10. Remuneration and Benefits Policy 

Health, Safety and Environmental Issues 

The Agency is committed to comply with applicable South African legislation pertain
ing to occupational health & safety management and safety standards. With the 
co-operation of each employee of the Agency, it ensures that a healthy, safe and 
secure working environment is maintained. 

During the year under review, the following activities happened: 

• Appointment of representatives for all full-service branches 
• Training of representatives 
• Committee meetings 
• First Aid refills 

Learning and Development 

The Agency is entrusted with the mandate of transforming young people in South 
Africa. The country is faced with a high rate of unemployment and the high rate of 
undergraduates. For NYDA to position itself better, it is undergoing a transformation 
phase which demands a change in culture, mind-set and the attitude of the staff. 

The Agency was phased with tremendous challenges where staff members are de
motivated, slacking and showing negative attitude towards their work. This has a 
negative impact on the overall performance of the organisation and as far as serving 
young people is concerned. A more improved customer experience was needed to 
provide better service to the youth of South Africa. 

To address some of these challenges, the organisation saw it fit invest in the develop
ment of staff. It is believed that the investment in the development of staff especially 
through the learning programmes and the implementation thereof, the staff morale 
will be improved and have a ripple effect on the overall customer experience, staff 
performance and improved service to clients. 

Due process was followed where a training service provider was appointed to con
duct a series of training to staff members which aim at improving the behaviour and 
therefore the overall performance of the organisation. While NYDA acknowledges 
that training only will not change staff morale, management agreed that staff devel
opment is key in upskilling staff. 
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The following were outlined as the critical trainings to be conducted as per job 
level: 

ADMINISTRATORS: 

• Self & Team Mastery 
• NYDA Journey to Greatness 
• Delivering the NYDA Way 
• Customer Services Excellence 
• Enabling Performance 

OFFICERS: 

• Self & Team Mastery 
• Delivering the NYDA Way 
• Engaging and Serving Customers 
• Customer Services 
• Enabling Performance 

SPECIALISTS: 

• Personal Effectiveness 
• Engaging Customers Through Others 
• Thinking ahead and Driving Solutions 
• Enabling Performance 

MANAGERS: 

• Finding a Leadership Voice 
• Growing High Performing Team 
• Managing the NYDA Way 
• Engaging Customers through T earns 
• Enabling Performance 

SENIOR MANAGERS & EXECUTIVES: 

• Crucial Conversations 
• Leading for Excellence 
• Themed/ Team Coaching 
• Individual Executive Coaching 
• Leading the Way and Enrolling 
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Training activities included the following : 

• Facilitation by a team of qualified facilitators 
• Business Environment simulations 
• Role Plays & Case Studies 
• Formative assessments 
• Summative assessment 

The training was compulsory for all staff to attend. The feedback received was all 
round positive and indeed more trainings requested. 

It is also important to highlight in 2017 / 18 ( academic year 2017), the Agency ap
proved ninety-two (92) staff bursaries . Five (5) completed their post-graduate, eight 
(8) degrees, two (2) diplomas and five (5) certificates. 
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Human Resources Statistics 

Reasons for staff leaving 
, I Reason Number " of Total No. of Staff Leaving 

Death 2 1% 

Resignation 15 4% 

Dismissal 0 0% 

Retrenchment 0 0% 

Retirement 0 0% 

111 Health 0 0% 

Expiry of Contract 5 1% 

Voluntary Severance Package 0 0% 

Other 1 0% 

Number of employees per PrOlfamme 

2015/2016 No. 2016/2017 No. 2017/2018 
Employees Employees No. Employees 

14 17 11 

Finance and Suppty Olain 25 20 25 

Corporate Services 34 27 31 

National Youth Services (NYS) 19 17 17 

Programme Development, Oesijn and Delivery 309 25S 266 

Corporate Strateev and Planninc 15 11 u 

Office of the Executive Board 21 0 19 
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Equity Targets and Employment Equity Status 

Occupational L•v•ls Male F•male For•ign Nationals TOTAL 

A C I w A C I w Male Fe mal• 

Executive and Senior Mnagemenl 2 0 1 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 6 

Profe~ ionally qualified 23 1 0 0 16 0 0 0 0 0 40 

Skilled technical 82 4 0 0 117 7 1 0 0 I 212 

Semi-skilled 27 1 1 I 57 4 0 0 0 0 91 

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Undefined 11 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 0 32 

TOTAL PERMANENT 145 6 2 I 211 14 1 0 0 1 38 1 

Performance information financial disclosure actual against budget 

Key Performance Area Budget Actual Expenditure 
Economic Participation R 187, 523,500 R 184,253,739 
Education and Skills Development R 94, 393,500 R 93,168,942 
Research and Polley R 9, 726,000 R 7,624,218 
Governance and administrat ion R 164, 163,000 R 162,918,068 
Total R 455, 806,000 R 447,964,000 

Personnel cost per division 

Office of the CEO R 9,670,894 
Office of the Executive Directors R 6,382,109 
Program Design, Development and Delivery R99,307,292 
National Youth Service Rl0,943,092 

Corporate Services R16,492,833 
Corporate Strategy and Planning Rll,632,669 
Financial Services R13,930,lll 
Total Rl68,359,000 

Personnel cost per salary band 

Executive Management R 10,716,967 

Senior Management R 7,684,381 
Management R 19,679,035 
General staff R 123,896,508 
Board of Directors R 6,382,109 

Total Rl68,359,000 

Performance rewards per band 

Executive Management R 1,561,000 

Senior Management R 1,065,816 
Management R 3,742,034 
General staff R 3,509,150 

Total R 9,878,000 

Training expenditure 

Employee cost Training Training 
expenditure expendi ture as 

percentage of 
personnel cost 

R 168,359,000 R 5,183,394 3.1% 
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The NYDA Secretariat office is pleased to present its Governance report for the finan
cial year ending 31 March 2018. The current Board of Directors were appointed in 
May 2017 by the State President under the NYDA Act of 2008. 

1. The Executive Authority 

The Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation (DPME) led by Hon. Minister 
Nkosazana Dlamini Zuma is the Executive Authority of the National Youth Develop
ment Agency. Since its appointment the Agency has held meetings with the Execu
tive Authority on regular basis, which amongst others intended to approve the 
Agency's annual performance plans and ensuring that DPME also has significant 
inputs into youth development policy. 

2. Portfolio Committee on Public Service and Administration 

Parliament Portfolio Committee on Public Service and Administration conducts over
sight on the work of the Agency and monitors service delivery. The Agency reports 
to this committee of Parliament and has attended its quarterly meetings in the previ
ous financial year. 

3. Board Meetings and attendance 

During the current financial year, ten ( 10) Board meetings were held. The Board 
Members and meeting attendance details during the 2017 /18 financial year were as 
follows: 

Member Appointment date No of Meetings 
attended 

Sifiso Mtsweni (Chairoerson) May 2017 10 

Bavelile Hlonawa (Deoutv Chair) May 2017 8 

Kenny Morolong May 2017 10 
(non-exec Member) 

Yershen Pillav (non-exec Member) May 2017 7 

Zandile Maiozi ( non-exec Member) May 2017 8 

Ndumiso Mokako May 2017 6 
(non-exec Member) Resigned in March 
2018 

Jov Maimela ( non-exec Member) Mav 2017 10 

Khathu Ramukumba 2014 (ex-officio member without 6 
(Appointed as CEO in 2014- resigned in voting rights) 
Oct 2017) 

Waseem Carrim 01 Nov 2017 (ex-officio member 2 
(appointed as acting CEO from 01 Nov without voting rights) 
2017-31 March 2018 
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3.1 The Board has in the last financial year deliberated and approved the follow
ing strategy documents and 
Policies. 

• Integrated Marketing and Communication Strategy aiming to enhance the 
practical implementation of the Board strategy and build relationships. The 
Strategy intend to focus on brand visibility as the foundation of the NYDA brand, 
furthermore ensuring the presence of the Agency where young people are. 

• Human Resource Strategy with the aim of enhancing HR functionality and 
address competency challenges within the organisation. The strategy would 
ensure that Employee Value Proposition is designed including value, training, as 
well as reward and recognition thus ensuring that high performing employees 
are acknowledged and celebrated. 

• Amongst HR Policies approved, the NYDA Code of Conduct & Ethics policy was 
deliberated approved in the quest to regulate the Agency's employees 
behaviour aligning to its mission, values and principles, linking them with 
standards of professional conduct as well as the following in HR space 

o Grievance Policy & Procedure 
o Employee Safety and Wellness Policy 
o Leave Policy 
o Learning and Development Policy 
o Performance Management Policy 
o Recruitment and Selection Policy 
o Remuneration and Benefits Policy 
o Attendance Policy 

• In the quest to improve ICT Governance, the Board also approved the following 
ICT policies as recommended by ICT Steering Committee. 

84 

o Backup and recovery Policy with the primary objective protecting the Agency 
data and also seeks to outline the data backup to ensure that the data is 
correctly and efficiently backed up and recovered in line with best practice 

o Patch Management Policy aiming to proactively prevent the exploitation of 
vulnerabilities on computing and related devices. 

o IT User Access Management Policy with the aim of ensuring that the Organisa
tion conforms to standard user access management controls in order to 
achieve legislative compliance, best practice controls, service efficiency as 
well as mitigating the risks associated to the management of user access 
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o Antivirus Policy with the purpose of providing guidance on how to protect the 
environment from vulnerability to malice and all viruses 

• Other policies approved were the following as recommended by Social and 
Ethics Committee 

o Grant Policy 
o JOBS Policy 

3.2 The Board has, as per section 12 of the NYDA Act of 2008, resolved to establish 
the following Committees in their 28th July 2017 Board Meeting. 

3.2.1 Human Resource & Remuneration Committee 
The primary objective of the HRR Committee is to assist the Board to discharge its 
responsibilities particularly in the area of human resource management within the 
Agency. The Committee is required as per the Charter to have the Independent 
Specialist as additional member whose role is to provide the Committee with 
technical and professional advice. The Committee has in the last financial year 
reviewed and recommended HR Policies for Board Approval. 

The Committee has during the 2017 /18 financial year, seven (07) meetings were 
held. The Committee membership and meeting attendance details were as follows 

Member Appointment date Number of Meetings 
attended 

Kenny Morolong July 2017 07 
(Chairperson) 

Joy Maimela July 2017 06 
(additional member) 

Aobakwe Leepile August 2017 OS 
Ondeoendent member) 

3.2.3 Social & Ethics Committee 
The Committee has during the 2017 /18 financial year, four (04) meetings were held. 
The Committee membership and meeting attendance details were as follows 

Member Appointment Number of Meetings 
date attended 

Ndumiso Mokako July 2017 01 
(Chairperson) 

Kenny Morolong July 2017 04 
(additional member) 

Zandile Majozi July 2017 04 
(addit ional member) 
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The Chairperson of the Committee, Mr Mokako, had poor meeting attendance due 
to work commitments. In his absence, the meetings were chaired by one of the addi
tional members, Mr Morolong. 

3.2.4 Investment Committee 
The Committee's primary role is to provide oversight to Resource Mobilisation in Cor
porate Investment Unit and review debt collection as well as recommending valua
tion methodology for investments to the Board. 

The Committee has during the 2017 /18 financial year, four (04) meetings were held. 
The Committee membership and meeting attendance details were as follows 

Member Appointment date Number of Meetings 
attended 

Bavelile Hlongw a (Chairperson) July 2017 04 

Yershen Pillay July 2017 03 
(additional member) 

Joy Maimela (additional member) July 2017 04 

3.2.5 ICT Steering Committee 
The Committee's primary role is to oversee the execution of the IT related decisions 
across the NYDA within the authorities delegated to the Committee by the Board. 
The Committee is required as per the Charter to have an Independent Specialist as 
additional member whose role is to provide the Committee with technical and pro
fessional advice. It has in the last financia l year reviewed and recommended the ICT 
Policies for Board Approval in the quest to address Audit findings and enhance ICT 
Governance. 

The Committee has during the 2017 /18 financial year, five (05) meetings were held. 
The Committee membership and meeting attendance details were as follows 

Member Appointment date Number of Meetings 
attended 

Zandile Majozi July 2017 05 
(Chairperson) 

05 
Yershen Pillay 
(additional member) 

July 2017 

Nhlamulo Ndhlela November 2014 01 
(Independent member - resigned 
September 2017) 

03 

Lufuno Marwala November 2017 

<Indeoendent member) 
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3.2.6 Audit Committee 
The NYDA Audit Committee is governed by the Public Finance Management Act No. 
1 of 1999 (as amended) (PFMA), the Treasury Regulations and Standards for the Pro
fessional Practice of Internal Auditing (IIA Standards) 

The Committee is chaired by the Independent Chairperson and also include one 
additionally independent member as well as non-executive Board member as addi
tional member of the Committee. 

The Committee has during the 2017 /18 financial year, seven (07) meetings were 
held. The Committee membership and meeting attendance details were as follows 
Member Appointment Number of Meetings 

date attended 

Rachel Kalidass March 2012 07 
Ondeoendent Chairnerson) 

Tayron Tshitaudzi March 2012 07 

(Independent Member) 

Yershen Pillay July 2017 04 
(NYDA Non-Executive Board /additional 
Member) 

3.2.7 Executive Management Committee 

Executive Management Committee is a standard working Committee consists of the 
Chairperson, Deputy Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer. Unlike other Com
mittees, it was established in the 19th May 2017 special Board Meeting. The Commit
tee is required to meet monthly. 
Among other responsibilities, the Committee should monitor performance of the 
Organisation as well as reviewing and approval of monthly NYDA programmes as 
well as financial Performance. 

The Committee has during the 2017 /18 financial year, seven (07) meetings were 
held. The Committee membership and meeting attendance details were as follows 

Member Appointment date Number of 
Meetinas attended 

Sifiso Mtsweni (Chairperson) May 2017 07 

Bavelile Hlongwa (Deputy Chair) May 2017 07 

Khathu Ramukumba (resigned in 2014 02 
Oct 2017) 

Waseem Carrim (appointed as 01 Nov 2017 03 
acting CEO from 01 Nov 2017-31 
March 2018 
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The 34-year-old Sedzani Netshitenzhe is the Founder and Managing Direc
tor of Nzalo Careers. which is based in Hatfield. Pretoria. 
Nzalo Careers is a company that specialises in career guidance and lead
ership development for learners from disadvantaged communifi,es. The 
company prepares disadvantaged learners and equip them with skills to 
better manage their careers. It creates an environment and platform 
wherein learners can access quality information, mentors, funding and op
portunities. 
Sedzani Netshitenzhe received the NYDA Grant Funding of R44 000, under 
Community Development Facilitation Projects category, from the NYDA 
Tshwane branch. The funding was used to purchase equipment such as 
speakers, mixer, projector screens and microphones. Sedzani no longer 
spend money on hiring equipment when she needs to contribute to better
ment of her community. She currently works with three young people on a 
full-time basis and one employed as a temp. 

The 27-year-old Thato Ditsele's love for fashion began at an early age, as a result 
of countless trips to clothing boutiques in Johannesburg with her grandmother. 
She is from North West Province and holds a National Diploma in Business Manage
ment from University of Johannesburg. 
The travel and exposure to boutique outlets cultivated her love and passion for 
clothes and attire. Thato decided to establish her own fashion design business and 
contacted the NYDA for start-up capital, where she applied and received a Grant 
Funding of R39 614, 45. Her business, Armor Clothing Boutique produces items for 
an audience that has an appreciation for quality-stylish designs. 

During the official Youth Month launch held in Soweto on 04 June 2018, Thato had 
an opportunity to display her latest women designer clothes that caught the eyes 
of many. She creates luxurious and unique designs for everyday wear and her 
business has two (2) full-time employees. The young entrepreneur also wants to 
employ more graduates who can design for her. Thato's dream is to open differ
ent shops across the country and the continent. Armor Designs garments can be 
purchased at various areas including Vilakazi Street in Soweto, Johannesburg 
CBD, Rosebank and Menlyn Malls. 

L&T Bay Carwash. based at Mossel Bay in the Western Cape, was estab
lished in 2014. Two (2) young men who currently employ six (6) additional 
young people own the L&T carwash. 
After successfully completing the Business Management Training, the 
young aspiring entrepreneurs applied and received the NYDA Grant 
Funding of RSO 000.00 to purchase uniform and equipment for efficient 
and effective productivity. The young people also received non-financial 
support for branding, business profile and business p lan. through the 
Agency's Voucher Programme. 
"We would like to expand to various areas around the Western Cape and 
employ more young people. The NYDA has improved our business in a 
much better way. The experience was great and helpful. I would like to 
thank the NYDA Cape Town branch for their excellent service and assis
tance," said Mr. Lungelo Sothafashe. 
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Deli Take Aways is a Fast Food and Leisure outlet . which is owned by the 
26-year-old Evodia Masego Du-Toit from Galeshewe in Kimberley. 
Masego began her journey as a street vendor w here she sold fat cakes, 
popularly known as Magwinya. She offered her services to the public with
ou t having a permanently built structure for a period of 3 years. Driven by 
her passion to serve and a desire to expand, the young aspiring entrepre
neur decided to approach the NYDA Kimberley branch for funding. 

She strongly believed that she had acquired adequate skills and experi
ence to serve her customers effectively. The NYDA approved a Grant 
Funding to the value of R44, 000 to buy equipment a fter Masego had un
dergone all the required application processes. Deli Take Aways currently 
employs three young people on d full-time basis. 
Her future goals involve seeing her business further expand into a fully func
tional restaurant and to continue w ith her studies, as she believes in con
tinuous personal growth and development. "We need to set achievable 
and reasonable goals for ourselves and lear;n how to create jobs for fellow 
young people; young people should be equipped to start cooperatives 
and business,' ' said Masego. 

Noluthando Shangase is a 27 year old woman who was born and raised in deep 
rural Ndwedwe in Kwa-Zulu Natal by her grandparents through subsistence farm
ing. Nothando grew up helping out in the small farm performing duties such as 
planting, harvesting, weeding and watering the plants. The family also had live
stock which they would sell to make a living and pay school fees for her and her 
siblings. 

"This is how I developed the skills and passion for agriculture from a very young age 
and decided to further my studies in the agricultural field in order to make a living 
out it. I also had a vision to play a role in my community to create jobs and contrib
ute positively to the local economy, which I hope will improve the lives of many 
and also become a role model. It is for this reason that after hearing about the 
NYDA, I decided to take a long journey to Durban and met Pumla Sipamla who 
outlined the products and services offerings and assisted me through the applica
tion process". says Noluthando. 

The NYDA assisted Noluthando to register her business called Dukathole Youth for 
Economic, Social and Rural Development and with developing the Business Plan. 
Noluthando applied and was awarded the NYDA Grant Fund to install an irrigation 
system, buy seeds, fertilizers and stationery to the value of R48 389 .80 which was 
approved. The business now employs seven young people, five women and two 
men. 

Meet some of our beneficiaries who attended Business Management 
Training at our Johannesburg Branch and registered at our Maponya 
Branch to attend the Cooperative Governance Training. 

Rosy Vision Multipurpose Cooperative was funded by the NYDA; R44 000 
to purchase, equipment which included: 2 Industrial Washing machines, 
l Industrial dryer, 4 irons, 3 ironing boards, clothing stands, a scale, 4 bas
kets and l big bucket 
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Ntokozo Mbata is a young, creative and motivated young person who is 
passionate about design, branding and pjlotography. He owns a small 
business which focuses on graphic design, photography and web design 
based in White River outside Mbombela. 

The idea of starting a business was ignited while he was studying towards 
his degree at Rosebank College. He learned and understood form his stud
ies what being in business was all about. The first thing he did was to design 
a logo for his business and thereafter he went on to register in 2013. 

Struggling with office equipment and other business requirements Ntokozo 
heard about the NYDA from her mentor and visited the Mbombela Branch 
where he met with Jabu Shongwe who took him through the products and 
service offerings. He then applied for the NYDA Grant Funding to the value 
of R50 000.00 to purchase a computer, studio equipment, camera and 
lenses and was approved. Ntokozo is now in a process to employ a dynam
ic individual to help him with the day to day running of the business. 

I 

Themba Mkwane from Kroonstad, Free State, was awarded the NYDA Grant Fund 
to the value of R44 000 for his business. Preximent. He also received the NYDA 
Voucher for branding and marketing as part of the non-financial business support 

, through the NYDA Bloemfontein Branch. 

His business currently has four full-time young employees who are responsible for 
over-all administration and customer care. Preximent provides visual marketing 
services, with its main focus on local businesses across Free State including Kroons
tad, Welkom, Bethlehem and Sasolburg. One of the long-term plans involve ex
panding the operations of the business to other Provinces. 

The business also offers business support and development to other entrepreneur 
by assisting start-ups and small businesses to comply with all relevant regulations 
set in order to ensure free-flow of business activities such as Business Registrations, 
Business Documents Request and Business Advisory and Consultancy. 

Katlego Rachoene is studying towards a Bachelor's degree in Account
ing Science at the University of Witswatersrand through NYDA Solomon 
Mahlangu Scholarship Fund (SMSF). 

"I am from a family with a single parent and 3 siblings. I was fortunate to 
be awarded the opportunity go to university. Receiving the SMSF has 
changed my life and I was able to enroll for a course I have always 
wanted to do."- Katlego Rachoene 
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Amanda Dinge whose dream was to become an entrepreneur decided to 
enrol in the NYDA Entrepreneurship Development Programme training 
which took place in her hometown in Somerset East organised by the Port 
Elizabeth branch. During the training, she learned about other NYDA prod
ucts and services that can assist her to grow her informal salon business that 
she had a lready started where she relied on customer referrals by word of 
mouth. She barely made any profits and couldn't grow her business. 

After she completed the trainfng, she dedded to apply for the NYDA Grant 
funding with the Port Elizabeth Branch and was approved to the value of 
RS0 000,00 to buy stock and other necessities for the hair salon business. 
With the NYDA financial assistance she could grow her business and her 
client base and went on to become the main fibre hair distributor in the 
area. 

"I am very grateful for the assistance that the NYDA has afforded me, the 
regular updates on my application status and the business advise I re
ceived has all helped to grow my business", says Amanda Dinge. 
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Keorapetse Moshe Sebusi is a 35-year-old young man who is also the founder and 
owner of Quintos Pizza, a fast food business situated in Thaba Nchu in the Free 
State Province. He believes that as most young people from Thaba Nchu should 
not move to big cities for better opportunities, but should identify opportunities in 
their area that would benefit other young people in the area which is exactly what 
he did. 

With the aim of running a successful business, Keorapetse decided to approach 
the Bloemfontein branch to enroll in Business Management Training, which is a re
quirement before one can apply for the NYDA Grant Funding. After participating 
on the programme, he applied and was approved an amount of R47 000.00 to 
purchase business equipment. Keorapetse initially conducted door-to-door en
gagements and utilised online platforms to market his product. He further ap
proached local establishments providing accommodation and other services for 
travellers, for partnerships. 

Thembeka Gumede received the NYDA Grant Fund to the value of R48 
507.00 to purchase equipment for her business, Nosihe Professional Ac
countants and Tax Consultants. 
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Five young people from previously disadvantaged community in Kwa-Zulu 
Nata l decided to work together to form a co-operative business called 
Youth Empowerment RMS Cooperative. Speaking on behalf of the coop
erative, Siphelele Memela says that they struggled to secure funding to es
tablish their business. After hearing about the NYDA products and services 
offered by the organisation, they decided to approach the Durban Branch 
to enquire. 

The Durban Branch took them through the process of applying for the 
Grant Fund to the value of R3 I 000,00 to buy staff uniforms, food processing 
tools, seed, compose, weed controller, green house materials amongst 
others. Over and above th e receiving the NYDA Grant, they a lso got assis
tance with branding of their business, business profile and plan through the 
Voucher Programme. 

Mashike Mangoale, 32-year-old guy who hails from Polokwane and is the sole 
owner of the Thabelang Jewelers (Pty) Ltd, specialising in manufacturing and re
pairing of jewelry products. Mashike has over seven years of experience in this in
dustry. Driven by his dream of owning his own business, he went on to register his 
own business in 2010. Therafter he leant about the NYDA and was reffered to his 
nearest branch in Polokwane where he successfully applied for the Grant Funding 
to the value of R50 000.00. 

The grant assisted him to purchase the necessary equipment for his business such 
as the jewel astrosonic machine. The grant was a lso used to purchase some raw 
materials such as silver, "My business is going from strength to strength and has 
been able to secure partnership b ig business such as Game Stores to do their jew
elery repairs and manufacture jewelery for Jemco Art, Shann Moss Wholesalers 
and Tesh Diamonds" says Mashike Mangoale. 

Nompumelelo Xulu , a 29-year-old female from uMlazi in Kwa-Zulu Natal. 
Raised by a single mother with 2 siblings, her dream was to start her own 
business so she can be able to make a living and assist her mother and 
provide for her family. After finding out about the NYDA through a friend, 
she decided to approach the NYDA branch in Durban to enquire about 
the products and services offered by the agency. 

Nompumelelo went through the process of applying for the NYDA Grant 
Funding to the value of RS0 000 to buy office equipment, office furniture, 
branding and office space which was approved in November 2017. She 
now runs a Property & Conveyancing Law Firm called NS Xulu Attorneys 
situated in the upmarket Umhlanga in north of Durban. She currently em
ploys 3 people on a full -time basis and intends to grow the business and 
open another branch in Gauteng 

93 



Siphosethu Jam Jam (23) applied and received Grant Fundit)g of R50 000 
to buy a container and catering equipment. He is running a small fish and 
chips outlet in Walmer Dunes, a township just behind the Port Elizabeth In
ternational Airport. His dream is to grow the business to a fully-fledged res
taurant, attracting tourists visiting the Nelson Mandela Bay. 

Walmer Dunes is one of the areas where flagship provincial anti-poverty 
and economic growth programmes will be implemented through partner
ship w ith private and non-governmental organisations. Infrastructural de
velopment work is a lready underway, creating an enabling environment 
for Siphosethu to realise his dream. 

The launch was a ttended by the Ward Councillor, representatives of the 
Youth Forum, NYDA Staff and community members. The councillor ex
pressed his appreciation to the agency for the positive contribution into 
what he called "the resuscitation o f the township economy". 

Marvin Fumani Shingange (20) from Bushbuckridge in Mpumalanga, Thulama
hashe is studying towards a Bachelor's Degree in Accounting (Chartered Accoun
tancy Stream) at the University of Limpopo through Solomon Mahlangu Scholar
ship Fund (SMSF). He is currently enrolled at first year level. 

"I wouldn ' t have been able to pay for tertiary education if it wasn't for SMSF, as 
they cannot afford at home. I would like to study my MBA at Harvard University and 
Launch my own Accounting Firm in the future. I urge all youth to apply for the SMSF 
to make their aspirations come true. Thank you NYDA!"- Marvin Fumani Shingange 

The Solomon Mahlangu Scholarship Fund covers books, food, tuition fee and ac
commodation. 

Melissa Cupido from Wellington, a small town in the Western Cape, com
pleted her Animal Sciences Degree at Stellenbosch University through 
the Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu Scholarship Fund (SKMSF). She graduated 
in 2017. 

"NYDA has funded me since my first year in 2014, until my graduation last 
year December. The programme has been amazing! It took such a mas
sive burden off my parents' shoulders and truly made my university expe
rience much more enjoyable. It's been such a blessing to only have the 
stress of passing modules during these last four ( 4) years. I never once had 
to worry about how we were going to pay for my studies or accommoda
tion. 

The only advice I can give to young people starting out is that they do 
what they love. Choose something that will make you happy and work 
at. Be kind to others and use what you've learnt to better the lives of the 
people around you," said Cupido. 
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Mute Mode Entertainment operate from Port Elizabeth in the Eastern Cape 
and have a local and regional client base. Its principle operations involve 
the provision of DJ and sound equipment hire. 

The DJ qnd sound equipment hire business has traditionally been com
posed of goods and services that allows the growth of the customer base 
and takes the advantage of opportunities to broaden their service profile. 
Mute Mode Entertainment approached the NYDA for a grant funding and 
were approved an amount of R44 438, 00. Since then the cooperative has 
enjoyed a turnover of R53 000, 00 with the net profit of about 
R28 000, 00. 

Tshenolo Guesthouse has a modern African-style with a warm and welcoming 
spirit. The guesthouse has 9 standard rooms all equipped DSTV, bar fridge, and 
tea/coffee amenities. In addition to accommodation, breakfast and scrump
tious lunch is also offered to guests as per their booking requirements. Tshenolo 
Guesthouse is in the quite area of Rustenburg Noord which makes it an ideal 
breakaway venue for both business and leisure travellers. 

The guesthouse was assisted with grant funding of R49 997, 00 to purchase flat 
screen TVs and to refurbish the furniture. This assisted the guesthouse to receive 
a Three Star grading from the Tourism Grading Council. 

XOB PTY LTD (2013/041164/07) is a wireless Internet provider business es
tablished and managed by Kamohelo Mzangwa and Ignacius Shaba
la la. The business idea was inspired by the clients' struggle to access inter
net at a reasonable cost. 

XOB PTY LTD received funding to the value of R 48 273, 30 to purchase 
equipment. Prior to funding, XOB PTY LTD provided service to 30 student 
houses within Bloemfontein. ITs• · 

• 
Post funding by the NYDA. XOB PTY LTD managed to install and maintain r 
106 student homes and grew his turnover from R20 000, 00 to R60 000, 00 
per month. The proceeds were invested back in to the business to install 
wireless internet into more homes. 

To date, XOB PTY LTD services up to 170 homes, has an annual turnover of 
R 800 000, 00 and employs five people excluding the owners. 
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The Box Learning Studio Pty Ltd (Co Reg: 2016/416575/07) is an educational 
institution unlike any other. The learning studio, as it is called provides much 
needed up skilling, training and education to individuals' young .& old by 
offering a variety of learning solutions within a studio environment focused 
towards a specific career. 

The learning studio continues to work hard to partner up with higher edu
cation institutions, corporate sector & professional practice to provide stu
dents with a variety of opportunities. Learners at the Box Learning Studio 
are provided with the best service and value through utilization of best re
sources available and providing a great learning environment as well as 
excellent quality of education to produce high quality candidates for insti-
tutions & companies. 

The Box Learning Studio received g rant funding of R48 356, 00 from the 
NYDA and their revenue per annum is R387 952, 00 with a net profit of Rl 49 
169, 00. 

Five young people from previously disadvantaged community in Kwa
Zulu Natal decided to work together to form a co-operative business 
called Youth Empowerment RMS Cooperative. Speaking on behalf of 
the cooperative, Siphelele Memela says that they struggled to secure 
funding to establish their business. After hearing about the NYDA prod
ucts and services offered by the agency, they decided to approach 
the Durban Branch to enquire. 

The Durban Branc h took them through the process of applying for the 
Grant Fund and were approved an amount R3l 000, 00 to buy staff uni
forms, food processing tools, seed, compose, weed controller, green 
house materials amongst others. Over and above the receiving the 
NYDA Grant, they also got assistance with branding of their business, 
putting together their company profile and plan through the Voucher 
Programme. 

Ntando Mthethwa from Durban received the NYDA Grant Fund to the 
value of R33 000, 00 to buy sewing materials and machinery for her busi
ness, NYM. Her establishment specialises in the manufacturing of hand
bags made of A frican prints and artwork. 



Cedindlala Brojlers Chicken (Pty) Ltd is a start-up broiler production com
pctny which was registered in June 20 15. It is a l 00% women youth black 
owned company founded by Ms Goodness Nhlapo. The company special
ises in broiler production using the six weeks cycle chicken production _ 
system. They have a lready constructed a 12m x 13m chicken structure 
which can ctccommodate about 1500 chickens with a 5% mortality rate. 

The company submitted a letter of ihtent from Roots Meat and Chickens lo
cated at Emba Mall. The company currently employs one permanent em
ployee who assists the owner of the company. The owner enrolled for the 
NYDA Entrepreneurship Development Programme. Poultry Production at , _,.,..._-"""" 
Buhle Farmers Academy. Environmental and Health Awareness at University i' 
of Limpopo and N3 Engineering at Gert Sibande FET College. The business is 
operating a t Helpmqkaar Form l 68 Carolina, a farm which is owned by her ,..__..,_..~,._._~ ..., 
father, Mr Paulus Nhlapo. Ms Nhlapo received assistance from NYDA to pur-
chase chicks. solar light and feeds. 

Elohtis Media (Pty) Ltd T/A Elo Events is an operational events management com
pany which was formally registered in 2008 and situated in Betha! Mpumalanga. 
The entity is l 00% owned by a young energetic man known as Mr Arthur Sithole. Mr 
Sithole enrolled for Bcom Honours in Communication Management, Marketing 
Management and has over 6 years' experience in the corporate world in financial 
management, business development and sales management. He is currently en-

~· rolling for the Sasol Siyazenzela Youth Programme. The business employs five fu ll
!\. time employees and intends to hire two more to assist with the day to day opera
•· tions of the business. He a lso attended Business Development from Toyota SA Grad-

uate Training Programme 

Elo Events will establish itself is a top high end events management company in 
Betha l, Mpumalanga. Their main customers are unmarried 
couples (weddings), corporate events, youth for 21st birthday parties, funerals and 
traditional events. They are currently operating from home owned premises lo
cated at stand number 23A Chris Hani Street Bethal. Elo Events received NYDA 
voucher to the value of R7,425.00. 

Ebutsini Primary Co-operative is a l 00% youth co-operatives made up 
by six (6) members raging from the ages of 27 to 32 years who formed 
themselves into a cooperative with the sole aim of creating employ-
ment opportunities for their members. The cooperative was funded on 
2018 to renovate, buy equipment, beds and coversheets for upgrade of 
six huts (African houses) for tourist accommodation as the Ebutsini is an 
outskirt place next to the mountains and where African dances and in
ternational people come to see nature or traditions of the Swazi. 

Ebutsini Lodge's unique experience is created by traditional layout and 
structure of this Swazi Village. Accommodation is available either in 
Swazi hurts, luxuriously appointed with all facilities ensuring great com
fort for guests to experience with evenings spent around cosy fires with 
Swazi dancing and excellent traditional food. Other activities include 
the well -known Ebutsini 4x4 route and Medicinal Plant Nursery. The 
region consists of South Africa, Namibia. Zimbabwe. Botswana, Zambia 
and Mozambique. 
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Vhaleya Supplier (Pty) Ltd is a l 00% youth owned company. The owher of 
the business is 30 years old female, Priscilla Selete Mukondeleli. Ms Selete 
has signed a 12 months' renewable lease agreement with Gdteway Au
thority Limited to operate a kiosk a t Gateway Airport in Polokwane. The air
port handles 5000 flights per year and 38 000 passengers per a nnum. The 
kiosk is selling products such as snacks, pies and soft drinks. Her target mar
kets includes flight passengers~ airport employees, employees o f compa
nies operating from the airport premises and school kids vislting the airport. 
Ms Priscilla Selete obtained a National Diploma in Cost and Management 
Accounting from the University of Johanpesburg in 20 l l . 

Vhaleya Supplier (Pty) Ltd was funded by NYDA an amount of R47 804.00 
to purchase equipment. The company currently have two employees. 

KMM Butcher trading as KM Mothupi Butchery was established as a family business 
until 2016 when Miss Paulina Mothupi decided to quit her job and run the business 
on full time basis. She is being mentored by her mother who was actively involved 
in the business operations. Their products are Chicken, Red meat, Pork, Wors, 
Minced meat and biltong. 

She is also offering spit braai service for events, meat storage deliveries for restau
rants and resorts situated at nature reserves owned by Department of Economic 
Development, Environment and Tourism. The business received funding to the 
value of R47 657.42 from to purchase stock, equipments and uniform in 2017. The 
company currently have 3 employees. 

Thabelang Jewellery (Pty Ltd) is a 100% youth owned Company. The 
company is based in Polokwane busiest Indian Centre Complex opposite 
taxi rank. Thabelang Jewellery is a manufacturing and repairing enter
prise company that provides quality services and products. Mr Mangoale 
Brenden has served the jeweller industry for seven years and has man
aged to create employment for two young people. Thabelang Jewellers 
(Pty ltd) received grant funding to the value of R48226.05 from NYDA. The 
grant funding assisted the business to get contract with the following 
wholesalers: Game Store (repairs; Jemco Art (manufacturing) ; Shann · 
Moss Wholesaler (supply) ; Mr Pillay Wholesale and Tesh Diamond 
(supply]. The company currently have 3 employees. 
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Ms Nobuhle Mfuphi 

I am very privileged to have received an opportunity with the TYPP. The 
project has widened my intellectual capacity. I became attached to the 
NYDA and the Department of Arts and Culture through the project. The 
project has changed my life and the lives of the p eople I have interacted 
with in the community. I eve11 had an opportunity to be a guest in the Presi
dentia l house w here I met with various political leaders who inspired me to 
forge ahead with my education. I now understand that education is the 
key to success and am now studying. I became aware of the meaning of 
the national symbols through this project. I learned how to install the nation
a l flag and the African Union. I undertook research on the AU on how it 
was formed and read the book The United States o f Africa. The programme 
has transformed how I look at my country and community. 

One of my proudest work is transforming Artists. I am now experienced in 
Adjudicating, Facilitating, Script Writing, Directing and Choregraph ing. I 

am confident to walk around my community because of my good work, 
am highly recommend in the offices of Arts and Culture. The programme 
has touched the souls of the yolJng people who have taken part in it. 

Ms Wilma Kekana 

Mr Sahlako Tekana 

As an NYS-TYPP Provincial Team Leader I appreciate the leadership opportunity 
and the skills given by the entire NYS team. I have accessed people from d i
verse professional backgrounds with great management, guidance, mentor
ship and above a ll love shown to me. Not forgetting our partners Department 
of Sports, Arts, Culture and Recreation and our beloved Patriots for a ll the sup
port 

My name is Wilma Kekana, a 31-year-old young woman living in Mah
welereng Zone l, Mokopane in Limpopo Province. I enrolled in an NYS 
project, which was implemented in partnership with Mogalakwena Local 
Municipality during 2017. Before I joined the programme I was one of the 
young people who were unemployed without hope and on the brink of 
giving up searching for opportunities. We were trained in Plumbing Level 
3 and I grdduated in August 2017. 

After completing the NYS Skills Development programme, I established 
my own business using the skills I gained from the programme to serve my 
community. I currently have regular clients in my neighborhood whereby 
I do maintenance work on their p lumbing systems. I am now looking for
ward to access an NYDA Grant funding to grow my business 
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Andries Sabelo Ndlovu a 21 year old from Nkomazi Municipality in Mpuma
langa studies a BA Journalism at the University of Johanesburg. 

"I managed to obtain 5 distinctions which qualified me for the Solomon 
Kalushi Mahlangu Scholarship Fund, but during the early days of my rife was 
hectic in such a way that I was about to quit University since I knew very 
well that end of the month of February 2015, I was not going to receive 
money for rent and food . 

Thanks to my redeemer, the NYDA took the responsibility to pay for my fees, 
accommodation and meals until I finished my three-year BA Journalism 
course. 

Today I would like to swallow my pride and extend my gratitude to NYDA 
for contributing a prominent role throughout the tough times. Had it not the 
aid I received from NYDA. today I wouldn't be having a qualification in 
hand.'' Says Andries 

Kopano Percyval Motlapele is a 20 year old from a small village called Mothanth
anyaneng, Taung District in the North West. He completed his BSc in Data Science 
at the Sol Plaatje University. 

"All of this wouldn't be possible without the utmost support of NYDA which turned 
my burdens into a blessings, gratitude is not only the greatest of virtues, but the 
parent of all others. I don't even have words to show how grateful I am to the Solo
mon Kalushi Mahlangu Scholarship Fund for the financial support and motivational 
talks they provided. I am very grateful to NYDA and would like to thank them for 
providing me with the resources and tools to help me prosper in life and for that I 
am very grateful and I THANK YOU", Says Kopano 

Makhanani Christine Ngoveni is a 21 year old from Giyani, obtained a Na
tional Diploma in Plant Production in 2017 at the Mpumalanga University. 

"Growing up I had dreams to be the youngest most successful black 
female farmer in our country and in the world. My fear was that my mom 
would not be able to help me to achieve this dream, but help came in a 
form of a Scholarship from NYDA and I want to thank the NYDA team", 
says Makhanani 



Malebo Kekana is a 20 year old from Soshanguve in Pretoria, d id her BSc in 
Qualitative Management a t the North West University. 

"I am the daughter of a hardworking mother who strives to provide for the 
family from the little that she earns at Shoprite and also an unemployed yet 
supportive father who was retrenched years back Due to these circum
stances they were not able to assist me financially in pursuing my dreams. 
Growing up in a black family and being the first child to go to university you 
have to shoulder the burden of pulling the family out of the quagmire of 
poverty. 

Malebo Miyambu is a 21 year old from a small village called Majosi in Limpopo. 
She is a Chemical Engineering Graduate from University of Johannesburg. 

"I come from an impoverished background and that's one of the reasons that 
made me work hard in school. I completed my matric in 2013 and I was the best 
student in my school and I was also in top 5 of the top achievers in the regional cir
cuit having achieved 5 distinctions. 

In 2015 enrolled for the chemical engineering program and I applied for the Solo
mon Kalushi Mahlangu Scholarship Fund, two months la ter (4th of March 2015) I re
ceived a letter saying I had been offered the scholarships. This was the best day of 
my life", says Malebo 

Mandisa Witty Zitha is a 22 year old from a small township called Majika in 
Mpumalanga. She completed her Degree in Agricultural extension and 
Rural Resource Management at the University of Mpumalanga. 

"In 2015, I started studying at University of Mpumalanga with the help of 
NYDA, through the Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu Scholarship Fund. I am 
also an a lumni of Enactus University of Mpumalanga. A ll Thanks to NYDA", 
says Mandisa 
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Sithole Manelisi is a 21 year old from Nhlazatshe Elukwatini who completed 
her Diploma in Agriculture a t the University of Mpumalanga. 

"I'm very grateful to NYDA who helped me to complete my Diploma 
through the Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu Scholarship. My parents never had 
to worry about anything because the Scholarship covered everything. 

To other students out there I'm saying don't give up on your dreams just be
cause you lack funding, NYDA helped me to fulfil my dreams, and I' ll be 
graduating SOON", Says Manelisi 

Nokuthula Mabena is a 21 year old from Pretoria, in Silverton. She studied a Bach
elor of Arts in International Relations and Media Studies at Wits University. 

"The NYDA programme, has given me the opportunity to fulfil my dreams, they of
fered me a full scholarship in 2015 for my entire degree and at the time I was al
ready registered at Wits university and my father was only able to fund my first year 
of schooling and not my entire degree, therefore I was very hopeless and did not 
know what I was going to do, but that did not stop me because the results I had 
obtained in my matric year were good enough to secure me something eventu
ally. When my father called me in March if I am not mistaken to let me know that I 
had received the scholarship , that honestly gave me new perspective and filled 
me up with hope. Today I am a Wits Graduate (Alumni) because of the Solomon 
Kalushi Mahlangu Scholarship Programme. 

I am forever grateful to the NYDA team, they are a source of hope to many hope
less young South Africans." Says Nokuthula 

Siphephelo Freedom Siyabonga Mdluli a 33 year old from Empangeni, 
Kwazulu Natal. He did his Bachelor of Social Science (Community Develop
ment and Political Science) at the University of Kwazulu Natal (Howard Col
lege Campus). He's currently completing is Master of Development Studies. 

"It was only after I applied and was awarded the Solomon Kalushi Mah
langu Scholarship Fund in 2014, then I was able to return to school and pur
suit a degree of my choice. Through the fund, I was able to complete my 
Bachelor of Social Science degree, majoring in Community Development 
and Political Studies at the University of Kwazulu-Natal (Howard College). I 
am currently pursuing a Master's degree in Development Studies. Thank 
you NYDA", says 

102 



Thabang Motaung Godfrey is a 21 year old who was born and raised in 
QwaQwa, Free State. In 2015, he enrolled a t the University of Free State to 
study Bachelor in Agriculture, majoring in animal production. 

"After I h.ave passed my matric w ith flyirig colour I was met with sad reality 
of lack funds to further my education Solomon Mahlangu scholarship 
came to my rescue. I was able to complete my degree in record time with 
not less than 16 distinctions. 

I am very grateful that I was g iven a chance to enrich myself although un
dergradua te degree is not enough in today's competitive job market. In 
addition I would like to express my gratitude to NYDA and interli-mali team 
who worked tirelessly to make sure that we study we are comfortable and 
we study in harmony." Says Thabang 

Trevor Morepje a 21 year old from Motetema who studied his Bachelor of Agricul
ture (Agric Extension & Rural resource Management) at the University of Mpuma
langa. 

"When I was doing my Matric both my parents were not working and we were de
pending mostly on Social Grant (which was R640).) I didn't know how am going to 
pay for my studies, but in March 2015 NYDA (Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu Scholar
ship) came to my rescue. The NYDA covered my accommodation, books, tuition 
fees and meals. 

To young people who are still doing their Matric or are already in tertiarycinstitu
tions, all I can say is, study hard so that you can be able to qualify for funding and 
change the financial status of your family", says Trevor 

Tsepiso Motemekoane a 21 year old from Sharpville completed her Informa
tion Technology Diploma at the Vaal University of Technology. 

"I first heard of the Solomon Kalushi Mahlangu Scholarship Fund in 2013. I was 
doing grade 12 at lsizwe Setjhaba Sec School. It was common for us to wel
come visitors for the 67 minutes of Nelson Mandela, that year we were hon
oured by the presence of the late Collins Chabane. 

The minister promised us 10 scholarships from the NYDA for top 10 leaners, I 
made top 10 and I managed to qualify for the scholarship", Says Tsepiso 
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Report of the auditor-general to Parliament on the National Youth 

Development Agency 

Report on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the National Youth Development Agency set 

out on pages 123 to 188, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 

March 2018, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net 

assets, cash flow statement and the statement of comparison of budget and actual 

information for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of the National Youth Development Agency as at 31 March 2018, and 

its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice(GRAP) and the requirements of the Public 

Finance Management Act of South Africa,1999 (Act No.1 of 1999)(PFMA).  

Basis for opinion 

3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). 

My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s 

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of this auditor’s report.  

4. I am independent of the Public Entity in accordance with the International Ethics 

Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA 

code) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have 

fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 

IESBA code. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for my opinion. 

Emphasis of matter 

6. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Material Impairments  

7. As disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements, material impairments to the amount 

of R4 435 000 (2017: R3 355 000) were incurred in the current year as a result of the 

impairment of loans advanced by the NYDA. At 31 March 2018 of the total gross loans 
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receivable of R132 701 000, R132 701 000 had been impaired as the recoverability of 

these loans are doubtful. 

Responsibilities of the Accounting Authority for the financial statements 

8. The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority is responsible for the 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with GRAP 

and the requirements of the PFMA, and for such internal control as the accounting 

authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

9. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for 

assessing the National Youth Development Agency’s ability to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless the accounting authority either intends to 

liquidate the Public Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 

do so.  

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance 

is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 

or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

11. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 

included in the annexure to this auditor’s report. 

Report on the audit of the annual performance report 

 Introduction and scope 

12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) 

and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material 

findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for 

selected programmes presented in the annual performance report. I performed 

procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance. 

13. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based 

on the approved performance planning documents of the public entity. I have not 

evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators/ 

measures included in the planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to 
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any disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information 

in respect of future periods that may be included as part of the reported performance 

information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.  

14. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in 

accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and 

reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected 

programmes presented in the annual performance report of the public entity for the 

year ended 31 March 2018: 

Programmes Pages in the annual 

performance report 

Programme 1 – Economic Participation 33 – 36 

Programme 2 – Education and Skills Development 37 – 40 

Programme 3 – Research and Policy 41 – 42 

 

15. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information 

was properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved 

performance planning documents. I performed further procedures to determine 

whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and 

assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether 

it was valid, accurate and complete. 

16.  I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported 

performance information for the following programmes: 

 Programme 1- Economic Participation 

 Programme 2 - Educations and Skills Development 

 Programme 3 - Research Policy 

Other matter 

17. I draw attention to the matter below.  

Achievement of planned targets 

18. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 29 to 44 for information on the 

achievement of planned targets for the year and explanations provided for the 

under/overachievement of a number of targets. 

Adjustment of material misstatements 

19. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for 

auditing. These material misstatements were on the reported performance information 
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of Programme 1 - Economic participation and Programme 2 - Education and Skills 

development key performance areas. As management subsequently corrected the 

misstatements, we did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of 

the reported performance information. 

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation 

Introduction and scope 

20. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a 

responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the public entity with 

specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to 

gather evidence to express assurance.  

21.  I did not raise material findings on compliance with the specific matters in key legislation 

set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA. 

Other information 

22. The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the annual report which includes the, 

chairpersons report and audit committee’s report.  The other information does not 

include the financial statements, the auditor’s report and those selected programmes 

presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported in this 

auditor’s report.  

23. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance 

information and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and I 

do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

24. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in 

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

financial statements and the selected programmes presented in the annual 

performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to 

be materially misstated.  

25. The other information I obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report is Human 

Resource annual report and Governance report, and the General information 

(including a report from the accounting authority and audit committee) are expected 

to be made available to me after 31 July 2018  

26. If, based on the work I have performed on the other information that I obtained prior to 

the date of this auditor’s report, I conclude that there is a material misstatement in this 

other information, I am required to report that fact.  
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27. After I receive and read the General information (including a report from the 

accounting authority and audit committee) and if I conclude that there is a material 

misstatement, I am required to communicate the matter to those charged with 

governance and request that the other information be corrected. If the other 

information is not corrected, I may have to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an 

amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this will not be necessary. 

Internal control deficiencies 

28. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported 

performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my 

objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. I did not identify any significant 

deficiencies in internal control 

Other reports 

29. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, 

or could have, an impact on the matters reported in the public entity’s financial 

statements, reported performance information, compliance with applicable legislation 

and other related matters. 

Investigations 

30. During the 2011 financial year, an investigation was initiated by the Public Protector to 

probe whether the hosting of the World Festival of Youth and Students held in December 

2010 was within the NYDA’s mandate, if the allocated funds were not misappropriated 

and whether the relevant supply chain management prescripts were followed. The 

investigation has not yet been finalised as at the date of this report. 

 

 

 

Pretoria 

31 July 2018 
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Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit 

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and 

maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and 

the procedures performed on reported performance information for selected 

programmes and on the public entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject 

matters. 

Financial statements 

2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in 

this auditor’s report, I also:  

 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control 

 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the public entity’s internal control 

 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the board of directors, 

which constitutes the accounting authority 

 conclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors, which constitutes the 

accounting authority’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 

preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the National Youth Development 

Agency ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the 

related disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if 

such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial statements. 

My conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this 

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause a public entity to 

cease continuing as a going concern 

 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation 

Communication with those charged with governance 

3. I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.  
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4. I also confirm to the accounting authority that I have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and communicate all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my independence and, 

where applicable, related safeguards.  
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Audit Committee Report  

The committee is pleased to present its final annual report for the financial year ending 31 

March 2018.  

This report is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Public Finance 

Management Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended and the recommendations contained in the 

King Report on Governance for South Africa and the King Code of Governance Principles 

(King IV).  

Audit Committee Members and Attendance  

The National Youth Development Agency has a constituted Audit Committee for the 

financial year under review.  

During the current financial year, five audit committee meetings were held. Interactive 

meetings are held between the Chairperson and Management as the need arises. The 

meeting attendance details during the 2017/2018 financial year were as follows: 

 

 Audit Committee responsibility  

We report that we have adopted appropriate formal terms of reference in our Charter in 

line with the requirements of Section 51(1) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations 27.  

The audit committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference 

as its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this Charter, and 

has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.  

The effectiveness of internal control  

The system of internal controls is designed to provide cost-effective assurance that assets 

are safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. The 

system of internal control applied by the NYDA over financial and risk management is 

partially effective, efficient and transparent.  

In accordance with the PFMA and the King IV Report on Corporate Governance 

requirements, Internal Audit provided the Audit Committee and management with 

assurance that the internal control environment are appropriate and effective.  

This is achieved by means of the risk management, as well as the identification of corrective 

actions and suggested enhancements to the internal controls and processes.  
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In the past financial year, internal control environment related audit findings (leadership, 

management and governance) are reflected as below:  

 Regression in financial management from 93% to 86%  

 Regression in performance information reporting from 79% to 58%  

 Stability in compliance at 92%  

Irregular expenditure has significantly reduced over the years - from R133 million in 2011/12 

to R62 million in 2012/13, reduced further to R16 million in 2013/14, to R580 000 in 2014/15, 

R74 000 in 2015/16, R600 000 in 2016/17 and now stands at R3000 (2017/18).  

From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the Auditor General Report on the Annual 

Financial Statements and the Management Letter of the Auditor-General, it was noted that 

there has been a 2 stabilisation of the organisations internal control environment which has 

culminated in the NYDA sustaining the clean audit again for the 2017/18 financial year (four 

years in succession).  

Accordingly, we can report that the general system of internal control for the period under 

review was partially effective and efficient, with only Performance Information and 

Information and Communication Technology as well as material impairment of the loan 

book.  

The quality on in-year management and monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms of the 

PFMA and Division of Revenue Act  

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of monthly reports prepared 

and issued by the NYDA during the year under review, noting that there has been significant 

improvement around performance information compilation and reporting.  

The Audit Committee will continue to monitor the achievement of all planned targets for 

the forthcoming financial year for 100% achievement of planned targets.  

Evaluation of financial statements  

The Audit Committee has:  

 Reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements to be included in the 

Annual Report, with the Auditor-General and the Accounting Authority  

 Reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa’s management report and 

management’s report thereto  

 Reviewed the Agency’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions  

 Reviewed significant adjustment resulting from the audit  

 Review of the information on predetermined objectives to be included in the annual 

report  
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Internal audit  

We are satisfied that the Internal Audit function is operating effectively, with the support of 

its co-sourced internal auditors, and that is has addressed the risks pertinent to the NYDA in 

its internal audits.  

Auditor-General of South Africa  

We have met with the Auditor-General of South Africa to ensure that there are no 

unresolved issues.  

Conclusions  

The Audit Committee received allegations through the whistle-blowing hotline. These were 

referred to Internal Audit to determine their validity thereof, and for further investigation. The 

Audit Committee on a regular basis receives progress reports on the status of these 

investigation and reviewed these forensic and investigation reports, ensuring that the 

necessary correction action is taken by management.  

We would like to extend our appreciation to the Accounting Authority, Management, and 

Internal and External Auditors for their tireless efforts in supporting and co-operating with us 

during the year. We look forward to another successful year ahead. 

 

Ms Rachel Kalidass  
Chairperson: Audit Committee 
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Abbreviations 

 

  

DBSA Development Bank of South Africa 

FNB First National Bank  

IDC Independent Development Corporation  

IDT Independent Development Trust 

SA GAAP South African Statements of Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice 

GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

MTN Mobile Telephone Networks 

NYC National Youth Commission 

NYDA National Youth Development Agency 

PFMA Public Finance Management Act 

SETA Sector Education Training Authority 

UYF Umsobomvu Youth Fund 

VSP Voluntary Settlement Package 
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CEO Report: Annual Financial Statement 

It gives me pleasure to present the Annual Financial Statements of the National 

Youth Development Agency for the 2017 / 2018 financial year. Our commitment 

as an Agency has always been towards good governance, prudent financial 

management and aggressive cost containment to ensure that the budget of the 

NYDA is maximised for young people of South Africa. It is heartening therefore 

that the Auditor General of South Africa has awarded the Agency its fourth 

consecutive clean audit report which is a testament to the systems and controls 

implemented.  

Highlights from the annual financial statements include: 

 An increase in revenue from R445 million to R459 million mainly because of 

the increase in the transfer payment from R405 million to R432 million. 

 68% of spending directed towards projects, while 32% directed towards 

operations. 

 Employee costs which constitute 35% of the total revenue.  

 Increase in grant disbursements from R30 million to R34 million. 

 Increase in capital expenditure from R14 million to R16 million. 

 Only R3 000 of irregular expenditure reported reduced from R600 000 in the 

prior financial year.  

 

The increase in capital expenditure was mainly due to the rollout of the mobile 

outreach vehicles, and replacement of equipment which had reached the end 

of its useful life. The outreach vehicles are mainly aligned to the strategy of being 

more accessible to young people.  

There was a decline in donor funding, mainly because of the reduction of the 

Expanded Public Works Program by the Independent Development Trust. We 

have committed to a distinct focus on donor funding to maximise government 

resources towards supporting young people. This donor funding is lobbied for on 

the following basis: 

 NYDA has infrastructure across the country to be able to deliver services to 

young people. This is in line with our vision of creating universal access to 

young people. 

 NYDA has qualified staff who can deliver on programs and support young 

people through their journey.  

 We have developed models, templates and strong monitoring and 

evaluation over time that ensure best practice in how we execute. 

 The Agency has received its fourth successive clean audit from the AGSA. 

We can fully account for donor funds in real time.  
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 We have access and databases of young people most affected by the 

triple challenges of poverty, unemployment and inequality. 

 Established procurement processes with all models having been tested 

through open competitive bidding processes.     

 

In the new financial year, our focus will be on increasing the baseline of the 

Agency from the National Treasury, growing our donor funding, increasing capital 

expenditure as we roll out new service centres and increasing our project based 

expenditure.  

I further wish to thank the internal and external auditors for their efforts in 

continuous improvement of the control environment in this era of rapid change, 

my finance team for their ongoing contributions, the audit committee for their 

oversight role and the Board of Directors for the direction that they have provided.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

117 
 

 

The National Youth Development Agency (NYDA), Section 3A Public Entity was 

established by the National Youth Development Agency Act, 2008 (Act No.54 of 

2008) (NYDA Act) through the merger of the National Youth Commission (NYC) 

and the Umsobomvu Youth Fund (UYF).  

 

The merger was pursuant to section 21(2) of the NYDA Act, effective from 1 

October 2009. This report and the accompanying financial statements cover the 

period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018. The NYDA is governed through the NYDA 

Act and focuses on youth development between the ages of 14 & 35 through the 

Key Programmatic Areas of Economic Development, Education and Skills 

Development and Research and Knowledge Management.  

 

The NYDA is established within the Department of Planning, Monitoring and 

Evaluation which is the transferring Department of the Agency and represents the 

Executive Authority.  

 

The Accounting Authority is the NYDA Board of Directors. 

 

The Accounting Authority is required by the Public Finance Management Act No. 

1 of 1999 (PFMA), as amended, to maintain adequate accounting records and is 

responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and the 

related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure 

that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the NYDA as at 

the end of the financial period, and the result of operations and cash flows for the 

period then ended, in conformity with Standards of Generally Recognised 

Accounting Practice (Standard of GRAP), and directives and guidelines issued by 

the Accounting Standard Board (ASB). The external auditors are engaged to 

express an independent opinion on the financial statements and are given 

unrestricted access to all financial records and related data. 

 

The annual financial statements were prepared in accordance with the 

Standards of GRAP, including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued 

by the ASB. These annual financial statements are based upon appropriate 

accounting policies which were consistently applied and supported by 

reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. The Accounting Authority 

acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial 
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control established by the NYDA, and places considerable importance on 

maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Accounting Authority to 

meet these responsibilities, the authority sets standards for internal control, aimed 

at reducing the risk of errors in a cost effective manner. The standards include the 

proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective 

accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties, to ensure an 

acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored by the NYDA and all 

employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standard in ensuring that 

the NYDA's business is conducted in a manner that is above reproach, in all 

reasonable circumstances. The focus of risk management is on identifying, 

assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the NYDA. While 

operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the NYDA endeavours to minimise risk 

by ensuring the appropriate management and application of infrastructure, 

controls, systems and ethical behaviour, with predetermined procedures and 

constraints. 

 

The Accounting Authority was of the opinion that the system of internal control 

provided reasonable assurance that the financial records were reliable for the 

preparation of these annual financial statements. However, any system of internal 

control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute assurance against any 

misstatement or loss. The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 

2018, which were prepared on a going concern basis, were approved for issue 

by the Accounting Authority and were signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Mr Sifiso Mtsweni  

Chairperson of Board of Directors  

30 July 2018  
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The Accounting Authority of the National Youth Development Agency is pleased 

to submit its report, together with the NYDA’s annual financial statements for the 

year ended 31 March 2018. 

 

1. Establishment, mandate and operations of the NYDA 

 

The NYDA was established by the South African government through the NYDA 

Act. This Act, section 21(2), made provision for the merger between the UYF and 

NYC to form the NYDA. It is classified as a national public entity under Part A of 

Schedule 3 of the PFMA, as amended. The NYDA’s mandate is to lobby and 

advocate for integration and mainstreaming of youth development in all spheres 

of government, the private sector and civil society. The mandate also includes 

initiating, implementing, facilitating and co-ordinating youth development 

programmes as well as monitoring and evaluating youth development 

interventions across the board, and mobilising for active youth participation in 

civil society engagements.  

 

2. Review of financial results and activities 

 

The financial and position of the NYDA for the period under review are set out in 

the annual financial statements. 

The salient results of youth development funding are as follows: 

 

Disbursements 31 March 

2018 

R ‘000 

31 March 

2017 

R ‘000 

Project disbursements R239 621 R246 305 

Grant disbursements R34 611 R30 486 

Capital disbursements R16 256 R14 973 

Amounts disbursed R290 488 R291 764 

 

Capitalisation and going concern: 

Through the Medium-term Expenditure Framework process the NYDA was 

capitalised by R432.8 million for the year ending 31 March 2018.  
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The Accounting Authority assessed the NYDA’s ability to continue as a going 

concern, and is satisfied that the NYDA has adequate resources and measures in 

place to continue operating as a going concern in the next twelve months, after 

the approval of the annual financial statements. At the time of making this 

assessment, the Accounting Authority was not aware of any intention of the 

government either liquidate or curtail the operations of the NYDA in the next 

twelve months. Consequently, the NYDA has adopted its viability as a going 

concern as the basis for preparation of these financial statements 

 

3. Significant matters 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Accounting Authority has noted the continuous significant amounts allocated 

to the provision for impairment in the current financial year as in previous financial 

years. The Accounting Authority noted that the key contributors amongst others 

are: 

 Current economic climate characterised by slow recoveries of the global 

economy. 

 Lack of confidence by the markets on the abilities of youth owned 

enterprises to deliver the right quality and quantity timeously. 

 Most importantly, in South Africa which is a developing economy, that 

many young people who apply for enterprise funding are not necessarily 

individuals with a passion for entrepreneurship, but do so as an alternative 

after they cannot find employment, which is their first option in pursuit of a 

better life. 

The Accounting Authority has tasked management to move the loan book 

forward in the 2018 / 2019 financial year by removing loans where there are no 

longer prospects of collection and to focus on the loans and negotiate 

settlements where there remains an enterprise trading or assets that can be used 

as part of the settlement process.  

 

 

Irregular expenditure: 

The Accounting Authority has noted a significant improvement in the reduction 

of irregular expenditure which decreased from R600 000 financial year to R3 000 

in the current year. This is a 99.5% reduction from the previous financial year. While 

the Accounting Authority is pleased with this significant progress, it continues to 

implement measures aimed at total prevention of any irregular expenditure.  
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Subsequent events: 

The Accounting Authority is not aware of any matter or circumstances arising 

between 31 March 2018 and the date of this report, not dealt with in the annual 

financial statements, which would significantly affect the operations of the NYDA 

and are sufficiently dealt with in the financial statements.  

 

Board Committees 

The Board has established the following committees in line with its legislative 

requirements and the recommendations of good corporate governance: 

 

Audit Committee Ms Rachel Kalidass (Chairperson) 

Mr Yershen Pillay (Member) 

Mr Tayron Tshitaudzi (Independent 

committee member) 

 

Human Resources and Remuneration 

Committee  

Mr Kenny Morolong (Chairperson) 

Ms Joy Maimela (Member) 

Mr Aobakwe Leepile (Independent 

committee member) 

 

Social and Ethics Committee Mr Ndumiso Mokako (Chairperson) 

Mr Kenny Morolong (Member) 

Ms Joy Maimela (Member) 

 

Information, Communication and 

Technology Committee 

Ms Zandile Majozi (Chairperson) 

Mr Yershen Pillay (Member) 

Dr Lufuno Marwala (Independent 

committee Member) 

 

Investment Committee Ms Bavelile Hlongwa (Chairperson) 

Ms Joy Maimela (Member) 

Mr Yershen Pillay (Member) 

 

Executive Management Committee Mr Sifiso Mtsweni (Chairperson) 

Ms Bavelile Hlongwa (Deputy 

Chairperson) 

Mr Waseem Carrim (Member) 
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Board remuneration 

 

Mr Sifiso Mtsweni (Chairperson of the Board) R1 070 000  

Ms Bavelile Hlongwa (Deputy Chairperson of the 

Board) 

R914 000  

Mr Kenny Morolong (Ordinary member of the Board) R258 000 

Mr Yershen Pillay (Ordinary member of the Board) R215 000  

Ms Joy Maimela (Ordinary member of the Board) R195 000 

Ms Zandile Majozi (Ordinary member of the Board) R191 000  

Ms. Rachel Kalidass (Independent audit committee 

chairperson) 

R72 000  

Mr. Aobakwe Leepile (Independent HRR member) R45 000  

Mr Ndumiso Mokako (resigned 31 March 2018)  R21 000  

Mr. Tayron Tshitaudzi (Independent audit committee 

member) 

R1 000  

 



 
 

123 
 

  Note 2018 2017 

Assets  R‘000 R‘000 

Current assets    

Receivables from exchange transactions 2 3 153 8 678 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 3 1 394 11 262 

Loan receivables from exchange transactions 8 - 31 

Investment in associate – held for sale 7 - 5 127 

Cash and cash equivalents  4 82 629 46 866 

  87 176 71 964 

Non-current assets     

Equipment 5 23 418 12 423 

Intangible assets 6 13 591 15 077 

Loan receivables from exchange transactions 8 - - 

Rental deposit   3 794 3 806 

  40 803 31 306 

Total assets  127 979 103 270 

Liabilities    

Current liabilities    

Finance lease obligation 9 683 179 

Payables from exchange transactions 10 66 215 69 800 

Employee cost provisions 11 12 441 12 252 

Deferred income 12 6 997 9 287 

Deferred expenses 13 435 2 508 

  86 771 94 026 

Non-current liabilities    

Finance lease obligation 9 706 47 

Deferred expenses 13 4 631 1 270 

  5 337 1 317 

Total Liabilities  92 108 95 343 

Net Assets  35 871 7 929 

Accumulated surplus   35 871 7 929 
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 Notes 2018 2017 

Revenue 

 

 R‘000 R‘000 

Revenue from exchange transactions    

Fair value adjustments 17 42 261 

Interest income 15 7 461 8 922 

Other income 16 876 1 523 

Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities  - 40 

  8 379 10 746 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions    

Transfer revenue    

Grant income – Department of Planning, 

Monitoring and Evaluation 

 432 806 405 766 

Donor funding income 23 18 061 28 438 

  450 867 434 204 

Total revenue  459 247 444 950 

    

Expenditure 

 

   

Operating expenses  18-22 (138 799) (133 370) 

Donor funding disbursements 23 (18 061) (28 438) 

Finance costs  (188) (31) 

Project disbursements 25 (239 621) (246 305) 

Grant disbursements 24 (34 611) (30 486) 

Loss on disposal of asset  (24) - 

Fair value adjustment 17 - - 

Total expenditure  (431 304) (438 630) 

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year  27 943 6 320 
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  Accumulated 

Surplus 

R‘000 

Total net 

assets 

 

R‘000 

Balance at 1 April 2016  1 610 1 610 

Surplus for the year  6 320 6 320 

Balance at 1 April 2017  7 930 7 930 

Surplus for the year  27 943 27 943 

Balance at 31 March 2018  35 873 35 873 

 

 Notes 2018 

R‘000 

2017 

R‘000 

Cash flows from operating activities    

Receipts    

Transfer income  432 806 405 766 

Interest income received  2 858 3 447 

Other receipts  840 1 523 

Fair value adjustment  42 - 

  436 546 410 736 

Payments    

Employee costs  (168 548) (146 961) 

Suppliers  (231 915) (243 278) 

Changes in working capital  10 794 - 

  (389 669) (390 239) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 26 46 877 20 497 

Cash flows from investing activities    

Equipment  (15 594) (3 863) 

Proceeds from disposal of equipment  60 741 

Receipts from loans  96 3 949 

Receipts from investment in associate  5 169 - 

Purchase of intangible assets  (95) (11 109) 

Net cash flows from investing activities  (10 364) (10 282) 

Cash flows from financing activities   (750) (162) 
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Finance lease payments  (750) (162) 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash 

equivalents 

 35 763 10 053 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 

the year 

 46 866 36 809 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 

year 

 82 629 46 866 

 

 

Budget on a Cash Basis 

 Approved 

Budget 

 

 

R’000 

Adjustments 

 

 

 

R’000 

Final 

budget 

 

 

 

R’000 

Actual 

amounts on 

comparable 

basis 

R’000 

Difference 

between 

final 

budget 

and 

actual 

R’000 

Statement of 

Financial 

Performance  

     

Revenue      

Revenue from 

exchange 

transactions 

     

Interest and loan 

income 

13 000 (8 000) 5 000 7 461 2 461 

Fair value 

adjustments 

- - - 42 42 

Other income - - - 876 876 

Gains on 

disposals of 

assets 

- - - - - 

Total revenue 

from exchange 

transactions 

13 000 8 000 5 000 8 379 3 379 
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Revenue from 

non-exchange 

transactions 

     

Transfer revenue      

Department of 

Planning, 

Monitoring and 

Evaluation  

432 806 - 432 

806 

432 806 - 

Donor funded 

income 

30 700 (12 700) 18 000 18 061 61 

Total revenue 

from non-

exchange 

transactions 

463 506 (12 700) 450 

806 

450 867 61 

Gross revenue 476 506 (20 700) 455 

806 

459 246 3 440 

Expenditure      

Administration 

and Overheads 

9 473 6 527 16 000 15 611 389 

Communications 

and Public 

Relations 

11 671 - 11 671 8 529 3 142 

Employee costs 152 461 17 000 169 

461 

168 359 1 102 

Information 

Technology 

21 295 7 000 28 295 27 576 719 

Outsourcing and 

External Services 

12 289 1 000 13 289 13 203 86 

Seminars and 

Training 

6 270 8 00 7 070 6 887 183 

Travel and 

Accommodation 

5 540 3 000 8 540 8 482 58 

Interest Paid - - - 188 (188) 

Project 

Disbursements 

176 285 (44 125) 132 

160 

119 159 13 001 

Impairment, 

write off’, 

- - - 10 638 (10 638) 
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depreciation, 

amortisation 

Donor funded 

expenditure 

30 700 (12 700) 18 000 18 061 (61) 

Grant 

disbursements 

34 820  - 34 820 34 611 209 

Total 

expenditure 

460 803 (21 498) 439 

306 

431 304 8 002 

Capital 

expenditure  

15 703 797 16 500 16 256 244 

Gross 

expenditure 

476 700 (20 701) 455 

806 

447 560 8 246 
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1. 

Basis of preparation 

The NYDA was established by the South African Government through the National 

Youth Development Agency Act, 2008 Act, (No. 54 of 2008). This Act, in particular 

Section 21(2), made provision for the merger between the Umsobomvu Youth 

Fund and the National Youth Commission, to form the NYDA. It is classified as a 

National Public Entity under Part A of Schedule 3 of the Public Finance 

Management Act of South Africa, 1999(Act No. 1 of 1999) as amended. 

Statement of Compliance: 

The annual financial statements were prepared in accordance with the 

Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (Standards of GRAP), 

including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting 

Standards Board. 

The following Standards and Interpretations of GRAP are approved but not yet 

effective: 

GRAP 20 Related Party Disclosures 

GRAP 32 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor 

GRAP 34 Separate Financial Statements  

GRAP 35 Consolidated Financial Statements 

GRAP 36  Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 

GRAP 37  Joint Arrangements 

GRAP 38 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 

GRAP 108 Statutory Receivables 

GRAP 109 Accounting by Principals and Agents 

GRAP 110 Living and Non-living Resources 

IGRAP 17 Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession 

Arrangements Where a Grantor Controls a Significant Residual 

Interest in an Asset 

IGRAP 18  Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Recognition and De-

recognition of Land. 
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IGRAP 19 Liabilities to pay levies 

The Standards in respect of Related Party Disclosures, Joint Ventures, Statutory 

Receivables and Accounting by Principals and Agents are expected to have a 

material future impact on the Agency. Finance senior management shall attend 

training workshops to familiarise with the new Standards once effective and shall 

devise a strategy and implementation plan to ensure adherence to new 

Standards. 

Basic of measurement: 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of 

accounting and are in accordance with historical cost convention, unless 

otherwise specified. The NYDA’s functional currency is the South African Rand and 

the annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand. Assets, 

liabilities, revenues and expenses have not been offset, except where offsetting 

is required, or permitted, by a Standard of GRAP. 

1.1 Significant estimates, assumptions and judgements 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimations, 

and uncertainty at reporting date, which hold a significant risk of causing material 

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 

financial year are discussed below: 

Financial Assets and Liabilities 

Investment in associates 

Management makes assumptions when determining the fair value of investments 

in associates. Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or 

a liability settled between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arms-length 

transaction. The NYDA uses the discounted free cash-flow valuation technique or 

net asset value as the primary basis of valuing investment in associates. The NYDA 

uses discount rates of 20% - 40% to discount estimated future cash flows. Where 

reliable information necessary for the application of the discounted free cash-

flow valuation technique is not available, the investments are carried at cost. In 

circumstances where the NYDA makes a loan to an associate and such loan is 

impaired, this will be regarded as an impairment indicator of the investment. The 

NYDA does not have any financial instruments which are actively traded in the 

financial markets. 
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Determination of recoverable amount and impairment of non-financial assets: 

Cash generating assets 

Where impairment indicators exist, the determination of the recoverable amount 

of non-financial assets requires management to make assumptions on cash 

generating assets to determine the recoverable amount. On each reporting 

date, the NYDA assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be 

impaired. If any such indication exists, the NYDA estimates the asset’s recoverable 

amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less 

costs to sell and its value in use, and is determined for an individual asset. If the 

asset cannot be assessed individually, it will be assessed as part of a cash-

generating unit (CGU). Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds 

its recoverable amount, the asset or CGU is considered impaired and is written 

down to its recoverable amount. In assessing the value in use, the estimated 

future cash flows are discounted to their present value, using a pre-tax discount 

rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the risks 

specific to the asset. 

Non-cash generating assets (services) 

For non-cash generating assets, when an impairment indicators exist, 

management must determine a recoverable service amount. The recoverable 

service amount is the higher of assets fair value less costs to sell or value in use. It 

may not be possible to determine fair value less costs to sell in which case the 

alternative methods may be used to estimate fair value less costs to sell. Value in 

use is the present value of the assets remaining service potential. 

Determination of recoverable amount and impairment of financial assets: 

Where impairment indicators exist, the determination of the recoverable amount 

of financial assets requires management to make assumptions to determine the 

recoverable amount. On each reporting date, the NYDA assesses whether a 

financial asset is impaired. 

Individual financial assets are reviewed for any indicators of impairment. If there 

is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset has been 

incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s 

carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows 

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (the effective 

interest rate computed at initial recognition). When an amount is outstanding in 

excess of 90 days, this is considered by management as objective evidence that 
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an impairment loss has occurred. However, there may be other objective 

evidence, either indicating or not indicating impairment, which management 

considers when assessing a financial asset. 

Equipment  

Depreciation and carrying value of equipment 

Residual values are the estimated amounts that could be currently obtained from 

disposal of the asset after deducting costs of disposal if the asset was already or 

age and condition expected at the end of useful lives. The estimation of useful 

lives and residual values of assets is based on management’s judgment. Any 

material adjustments to the estimated remaining useful life and residual value of 

assets will have an impact on the carrying value of those items 

Change in useful lives of assets 

The useful lives and residual values of equipment and intangible assets were 

assessed at year end and the following adjustments made: 

 Residual value for furniture and fittings will be adjusted to nil effective from 

the 01st April 2018. 

This adjustment will be accounted for prospectively. 

Provision for Bonus 

The provision for bonus is estimated based on management's best estimate of the 

expected bonus pay-out which is based on average employee and 

organisational performance. 

1.2 Equipment 

Definition of equipment 

Equipment is a tangible item that is held for use in the production or supply of 

goods and services, for rental to other of for administrative purposes and is 

expected to be used during more than one reporting period 

Initial recognition of equipment 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset 

when: 

 It is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated 

with the item will flow to the entity; and 
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 The cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Equipment is initially measured at cost. The cost of an item of equipment is the 

purchase price and other costs attributable to bringing the assets to location and 

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 

management. Trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

Where an asset is acquired for no consideration or for nominal consideration, its 

cost shall be its fair value as at date of acquisition. 

When significant components of an item of equipment have different useful lives, 

they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of equipment. 

Subsequent recognition of equipment 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire an item of equipment and costs 

incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement 

cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of equipment, the carrying 

amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

Depreciation and impairment of equipment 

Equipment is depreciated over its expected useful life on a straight-line basis, at 

rates estimated to write each assets down to its estimated residual value over the 

term of the useful life. Depreciation on equipment begin when an asset is 

available for use. Equipment is carried cost, less accumulated depreciation and 

any accumulated impairment losses. 

The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each reporting 

date and, if expectations differ from previous estimates the change is accounted 

for as a change in accounting estimates. 

At each reporting date, all items of equipment are reviewed for any indication 

that they may be impaired. Impairment exists when ab assets carrying amount is 

greater than each recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or 

CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and it’s in value in use. If there is 

an indication of impairment, the assets recoverable amount is calculated. An 

impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit and the depreciation charge 

relating to the assets is adjusted for future periods. 
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Depreciation and impairment of equipment (continued) 

The useful lives of items of equipment for the current and comparative period is 

as indicated below: 

Motor vehicles        Straight line 4-6 years 

Office equipment        Straight line 5-10 years 

Computer hardware       Straight line 3-5 years 

Leasehold improvements      Straight line 

Leasehold improvements are depreciated on a straight line over shorter of the 

term of the lease or the useful life thereof. Useful life is between 5 -10 years while 

lease terms range from 5 – 7 years. 

De-recognition of equipment 

The carrying amount of an item of equipment is derecognised: 

 on disposal 

 when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from 

its use or disposal. 

The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of equipment is included in 

surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from de-

recognition of an item of equipment is determined as the difference between the 

net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

1.3 Intangible assets 

An asset is identifiable if it either: 

 Is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity 

and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or 

together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of 

whether the entity intends to do so; or 

 Arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), 

regardless of whether those rights are transferable or separable from the 

entity or from other rights and obligations. 
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Initial recognition for intangible assets 

An intangible asset is recognised when: 

 It is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service 

potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and 

 The cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 

The cost of an intangible asset acquired for no consideration or for a nominal 

consideration shall be its fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is 

recognised as an expense when it is incurred. 

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of 

an internal project) is recognised when: 

 It is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for 

use or sale. 

 There is an intention to complete and use or sell it. 

 There is an ability to use or sell it. 

 It will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential. 

 There are available technical, financial and other resources to complete 

the development and to use or sell the asset. 

 The expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be 

measured reliably. 

Subsequent measurement of intangible assets 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any 

accumulated impairment losses. 

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on 

all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset 

is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. An intangible asset 

with an indefinite useful life is not amortized. 

Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for 

impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be 
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impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line 

basis over their useful life. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets with 

finite useful life are reviewed at each reporting date. If the expected useful life of 

the asset is different from the previous estimates, the amortisation period is 

charged accordingly. If there was a change in the expected pattern of 

consumption of the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in 

the asset, the amortisation method is charged to reflect the change pattern. 

Each change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimates, in 

accordance with the standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, and Changes in 

Accounting Estimates and Errors. 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line 

basis, to their residual values. The NYDA amortises its intangible asset at a rate of 

14-20% per annum. Developed software is amortised when the software becomes 

available for use. Amortisation of these assets are recognised in surplus of deficit. 

At each reporting date, all items of intangible assets are reviewed for any 

indication that they may be impaired. Impairment exists when an asset's carrying 

amount is greater than its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an 

asset or CGU should be higher than its fair value less cost to sell and it value in use. 

If there is an indication of impairment, the asset's recoverable amount is 

calculated. An impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit and the 

amortization charge relating to the asset is adjusted for future periods. 

De-recognition of intangible assets 

Intangible assets are derecognised: 

 On disposal; or 

 When no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from 

its use or disposal. 

The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an intangible assets is included in 

surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognised (unless the Standards of GRAP 

on leases requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback). 

1.4 Investments in associates 

An associate is an entity in which NYDA has significant influence and which is 

neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture. The NYDA invests in equity of the young, 

rapidly growing companies that have the potential to develop into significant 
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economic contributors and expanding companies that also create jobs in the 

economy. The NYDA meets the definition of the venture capital organisation as it 

invests in new companies with limited operating history and too small to raise 

capital in the public markets and have not reached a point where they are able 

to secure a bank loan or complete debt offering. NYDA has therefore opted to 

elect the venture capital organisation exemption and these investments in 

associates, upon initial recognition, are designated as at fair value through surplus 

or deficit in accordance with GRAP 104. 

Fair value adjustments are recognised through surplus or deficit. The NYDA uses 

the discounted free cash-flow valuation technique or net asset value as the 

primary basis for valuing investments in associates. The NYDA uses discount rates 

of 20%–40% to discount estimated future cash flows. Where reliable information 

necessary for the application of the discounted free cash flow valuation 

technique is not available, the investments are carried at cost. In circumstances 

where the NYDA makes a loan to an associate and such a loan is impaired, this 

will be regarded as an impairment indicator of the investment. 

1.5 Leases 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and 

rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it 

does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 

Finance lease - Initial recognition 

At the commencement of the lease term, the NYDA recognises finance leases as 

assets and liabilities in its Statement of Financial 

Position, at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased assets or, if lower, the 

present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception 

of the lease. 

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease 

payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease, if this is practicable to determine. 

If not, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used. Any initial direct costs of the 

lessee are added to the amount recognised as an asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the 

reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each 
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period during the lease term, so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest 

on the remaining balance of the liability. 

Contingent rents shall be charged as expenses in the periods in which they are 

incurred. 

Classification of finance lease 

The leases are classified as finance leases as the assets will be used for the majority 

of their economic life. 

Operating leases 

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense in 

surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless another 

systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit. 

1.6 Revenue from exchange transactions 

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or 

has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives an approximate equal value to the 

other party in the exchange. 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the 

reporting period, when those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than 

increases relating to contributions from owners. 

Measurement 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 

receivable. 

Interest 

Interest income is recognised in surplus or deficit for all financial instruments 

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. The 

effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a 

financial asset and of allocating the interest income over the average expected 

life of the financial instruments. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 

discounts estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial 

instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of 

the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the NYDA 

estimates cash flows, considering all contractual terms of the financial 

instruments, but does not consider future credit losses. 
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1.7 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. 

In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either receives value from another entity 

without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to 

another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange. 

Government grants 

Government grants are recognised as revenue. 

 When it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential 

associated with the transaction will flow to the entity. 

 When the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

 To the extent that there has been compliance with any restrictions 

associated with the grant. 

The entity assesses the degree of certainty attached to the flow of future 

economic benefits or service potential on the basis of the available evidence. 

Certain grants payable by one level of government to another are subject to the 

availability of funds. Revenue from these grants is only recognised when it is 

probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the 

transaction will flow to the entity. An announcement at the beginning of a 

financial year that grants may be available for qualifying entities in accordance 

with an agreed programme may not be sufficient evidence of the probability of 

the flow. Revenue is then only recognised once evidence of the probability of the 

flow becomes available. 

Grants are measured at the fair value received or receivable 

The government grant received does not have any specific condition attached 

and is recognised as revenue once committed. 

Gifts and donations 

Gift and donations are recognised as revenue when: 

 It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated 

with the transaction will flow to the entity 

 The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

Gifts and donations are measured at the increase in net assets. 
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1.8 Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to legislation, including, but 

not limited to the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and National Treasury 

regulations. 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and could 

have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. 

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when 

confirmed. The amount recorded is equal to the value of irregularity unless it is 

impracticable to determine, in which case reasons are provided in the note. 

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the 

relevant authority or transferred to receivables for recovery. 

1.9 Budget information 

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic 

classification linked to performance outcome objectives. The budget period is 

aligned to the financial statement period.  

The financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting, 

and a comparison with the budgeted amounts for the reporting period has 

therefore have been included in the statement of comparison of budget and 

actual amounts. Comparative information is not required. 

1.10 Related Parties 

The NYDA operates in an economic sector, currently dominated by entities 

directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the South African 

Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three 

spheres of government in South Africa, only entities within the national sphere of 

government within the same Department structure are considered to be related 

parties. 

Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and 

responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. We 

regard all members of the Operations Executive Committee, reporting directly to 

the Chief Executive Officer, as key management individuals. 
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1.11 Financial instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement 

On initial recognition, an instrument is classified as either a financial asset or a 

financial liability and recorded at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets 

and financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through surplus or deficit, any 

directly attributable incremental costs of acquisition or issue. 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a 

timeframe established by regulation or conversion in the marketplace (regular 

way of purchases), are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the NYDA 

commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent measurement of financial instruments carried on the Statement of 

Financial Position is on the following basis: 

Investments 

Investments in equity instruments are designated as at fair value through surplus 

and deficit. All changes in fair value are recognized directly in surplus or deficit. 

Loans receivable 

Loans receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments that are not quoted in an active market. 

Such assets are carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, 

less any allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are recognised through 

surplus and deficit when the loans receivables are derecognised or impaired, as 

well as interest through the amortisation process. 

Receivables from exchange transactions 

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at 

amortised cost, using the effective interest method. 

Where the impact of discounting is not material, receivables are carried at the 

original invoice amount, less any allowance for impairment. 

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 

Trade payables are initially recognised and carried at fair value and, 

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate 
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method. Trade payables are derecognised when the obligation under the liability 

has been discharged. 

Cash and cash equivalents including cash on call 

Cash and cash equivalents, including cash on call comprise of demand deposits 

and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known 

amounts of cash. Cash and cash equivalents, including cash on call, are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

Rental deposits 

Rental deposits include all monies paid by the NYDA as deposits for the rental of 

the buildings. Rental deposits are initially recognized and carried at fair value and 

subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

Investment in associates 

Refer to note 1.4 

Impairment of financial assets 

Assets carried at amortised cost 

At each reporting date, the NYDA assesses whether a financial asset is impaired. 

Individual financial assets are reviewed for any indicators of impairment. If there 

is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset has been 

incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the 

assets’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows 

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (the effective 

interest rate computed at initial recognition). 

When an amount is outstanding for longer than 90 days, this is considered by 

management as objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred. 

However, there may be other objective evidence that may or may not indicate 

impairment. Management considers such objective evidence when assessing a 

financial asset. The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced through use 

of an allowance account, when there is objective evidence that the asset may 

be impaired directly and against carrying value of an asset, when the asset is 

considered irrecoverable. The amount of the loss is recognised through surplus or 

deficit. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases 

and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 

impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is 
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reversed, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its 

amortised cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment 

loss is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

De-recognition of financial instruments 

 If the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. 

 If the NYDA retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has 

assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third 

party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement. 

 If the NYDA has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and 

has either transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

Where the NYDA has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and 

has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 

asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of 

the NYDA’s continuing involvement of the asset. Continuing involvement that 

takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower 

of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of 

consideration that the NYDA could be required to repay. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is 

discharged, cancelled or expires. 

Cash-generating assets and non-cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets held with the primary objective of generating a 

commercial return. As asset generates a commercial return when it is deployed 

in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-oriented entity. Holding an 

asset to generate a “commercial return” indicates that the NYDA intends to 

generate positive cash inflows from the asset (or from the cash-generating unit of 

which the asset is a part) and earn a commercial return that reflects the risk 

involved in holding the asset. Non cash-generating assets are assets other than 

cash-generating assets. 
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1.12 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after 

the service is rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and 

non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in 

which the service is rendered. 

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits which are unpaid at year-end are 

measured at the undiscounted amount that the entity expects to pay in 

exchange for that service and had accumulated at the reporting date. 

Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the entity pays fixed 

contributions into a separate entity. The entity has no legal or constructive 

obligation to pay further contributions, if the fund does not hold sufficient assets 

to pay all employees the benefits relating to services in the current or prior periods. 

The entity’s contributions to the defined contribution funds are established in terms 

of the rules governing those plans. Contributions are recognised in surplus or 

deficit in the period in which the service is rendered by the relevant employees, 

unless the standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost 

of an asset. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a 

cash refund or reduction in future payments is available. 

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within 

12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related 

service, they are discounted, using a risk-free rate, determined by reference to 

market yields at the reporting date on government bonds or by reference to 

market yields on high-quality corporate bonds. 

Termination benefits 

The NYDA recognizes termination benefits as a liability and an expense when, and 

only when, the entity is demonstrably committee to either 

 Terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before 

the normal retirement date, or 

 Provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to 

encourage voluntary redundancy. 
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 The NYDA is demonstrably committed to a termination when, and only 

when, it has detailed formal plan for the termination and is without realistic 

possibility of withdrawal. The detailed plan shall include, as a minimum: 

 The location, function and approximate number of employees whose 

services are to be terminated; 

 The termination benefits for each job classification or function; and 

 The time at which the plan will be implemented. Implementation shall begin 

as soon as possible and the period of time to complete implementation 

shall be such that material changes to the plan are not likely. 

1.13 Project disbursements 

Disbursements to projects are categorised and disclosed as follows: 

Project disbursements are approved grant funding made to third-party service 

providers, who plan, implement, and manage youth development projects, as 

well as payments relating to youth development projects, managed internally by 

the NYDA, using its own capacity. 

1.14 Commitments 

Where a project has been approved, but has not been accrued for, or provided 

for, it is disclosed as commitments in the notes to the annual financial statements. 

1.15 Deferred income 

Deferred income represents revenues collected but not earned, as at reporting 

date. This includes grants from foreign institutions. 

1.16 Joint Ventures 

A joint venture is a binding arrangement, whereby two or more parties are 

committed to undertake an activity that is subject to joint control. 

Joint control is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a binding 

arrangement, and exists only when the strategic financial and operational 

decisions relating to the activity require unanimous consent of the parties sharing 

control (the ventures). The binding agreement establishes joint control over the 

joint venture. Such requirement ensures that no single venture is in a position to 

unilaterally control the activity 

Jointly controlled operations 
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Where the operation of a joint venture comprises the use of the venture’s assets 

and other resources, without the establishment of a separate entity, the joint 

venture is referred to as a jointly controlled operation 

The entity recognises, in its separate annual financial statements and, 

consequently, in its annual financial statements: 

 The assets that it controlled and the liabilities that it incurred 

 The expense that it incurred and its share of the revenue that it earned from 

the sale or provision of the goods or services by the joint venture 

 

Jointly controlled assets 

Where the entity undertakes its activities under a joint-venture arrangement 

directly, the controlling entity’s share of jointly controlled assets, and any liabilities 

incurred jointly with other ventures, is recognised in the statement of financial 

position of the entity and classified according to their nature. Revenue from the 

sale or use of the entity’s share of the output of jointly controlled assets, and its 

share of joint venture expense are recognised in surplus or deficit. 

1.17 Grant disbursements 

Grant disbursements are recognised once the grant has been approved and the 

grant holder has been informed of such approval. 

1.18 Voucher disbursements 

The Voucher Programme results in the following accounting treatment: 

The issue to a young person of a voucher that is not yet redeemed is disclosed as 

a contingent liability as at financial year end, as there is only a possible obligation, 

contingent upon redemption of the voucher and delivery of the product. 

The redemption of the voucher and delivery by a service provider without a 

product having passed all quality assurance create a constructive obligation and 

a provision is determined and accounted for. 

The delivery by a service provider which has passed quality assurance is 

accounted for as a liability. 
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1.19 Non-current assets held for sale 

Non-current assets held for sale are classified and disclosed as current assets when 

there is an approved decision to dispose of the assets, and plans have been 

implemented to market the assets for sale and the sale is expected to be 

concluded within twelve months. 

2. Receivables from exchange transactions 2018 

R’000  

2017 

R’000 

Sundry debtors 1 707 5 692 

Staff loans 707 537 

Prepaid expenses 2 169 2 226 

Fixed asset receivables 12 700 

Interest receivable banks 460 358 

Less: Allowance for impairment (1 902) (834) 

  3 153 8 679 

 

Receivables allowance for 

impairment reconciliation 

2018 

 

    

 Allowance 

for 

impairment 

2018 

Impairment 

expense 

Allowance 

for 

impairment 

2017 

 

Allowance for impairment  835 1 067 1 902  

 

Receivables allowance for impairment 

reconciliation 2017 

   

 Allowance 

for 

impairment 

2017 

Impairment 

expense 

Allowance 

for 

impairment 

2016 

Allowance for impairment  (1 752) 917 (835) 
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3. Receivables from non-exchange transactions 

 

  

Independent Development Trust - 9 976 

Flanders  556 666 

Department of Arts and Culture - 620 

Services Sector Training Education Authority 838 - 

 1 394 11 262 

 

 

4. Cash and cash equivalents 2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:   

Unrestricted cash   

Cash at bank on hand: 80 900 46 043 

Restricted cash    

CIPC 12 351 

Massmart holding limited  - 

Joint venture: University of Johannesburg Institute  1 717 471 

Cash and cash equivalents  82 629 46 866 

 

Restricted cash represent funds earmarked for specific projects where the NYDA 

is in partnership with third parties, hence such funds are restricted and cannot be 

used for any purpose other than the purpose as stipulated in the partnership 

agreement.  

5. Equipment 

 

2018 2017 

 Cost 

 

 

 

R’000 

Accumul

ated 

deprecia

tion and 

impairme

nt 

R’000 

Carrying 

value 

 

 

 

R’000 

Cost 

 

 

 

R’000 

Accumul

ated 

deprecia

tion and 

impairme

nt 

R’000 

Carrying 

value 

 

 

 

R’000 

Motor 

vehicles 

4 207 (1 628) 2 579 1 783 (1 515) 268 
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Office 

equipme

nt 

8 394 (4 856) 3 538 5 825 (3 760) 2 065 

Leasehol

d 

improve

ments 

21 268 (15 628) 5 639 35 484 (31 472) 4 012 

Furniture 13 351 (8 607) 4 744 10 704 (8 489) 2 215 

Compute

r 

equipme

nt  

23 098 (16 180) 6 918 17 995 (14 131) 3 864 

 70 319 (46 900) 23 418 71 791 (59 368) 12 423 
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Reconciliation of equipment – 2018 

 

 Opening 

balance 

R’000 

Additions 

 

R’000 

Disposals 

 

R’000 

Depreciation 

 

R’000 

Impairment 

loss 

 

R’000 

Total 

 

R’000 

Motor vehicles 267 2 424 - (113) - 2 579 

Office equipment 2 065 2 497 - (1 015) (9) 3 538 

Leasehold 

improvements  

4 011 2 644 (7) (1 009) (-) 5 639 

Furniture 2 215 3 395 (34) (754) (78) 4 744 

Computer equipment 3 863 5 202 (43) (2 026) (78) 6 918 

 12 423 16 162 (84) (4 917) (166) 23 418 

 

Reconciliation of equipment – 2017 

 

 Opening 

balance 

R’000 

Additions 

 

R’000 

Disposals 

 

R’000 

Depreciation 

 

R’000 

Impairment 

loss 

 

R’000 

Total 

 

R’000 

Motor vehicles 268 - - - - 268 

Office equipment 2 753 163 (324) (508) (19) 2 065 

Leasehold 

improvements  

1 759 3 051 - (797) - 4 011 

Furniture 3 164 101 (377) (627) (44) 2 217 

Computer equipment 5 083 548 - (1 698) (69) 3 863 
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 13 027 3 863 (701) (3 631) (133) 12 423 
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6. Intangible assets 

 

2018 2017 

 Cost 

 

 

 

R’000 

Accumulated 

amortisation 

and 

impairment 

R’000 

Carrying 

value 

 

 

R’000 

Cost 

 

 

 

R’000 

Accumulated 

amortisation 

and 

impairment 

R’000 

Carrying 

value 

 

 

R’000 

Software 

developed in 

house 

12 

633 

(9 841) 2 792 12 

633 

(8 777) 3 856 

Computer 

software 

purchased 

4 652 (2 841) 1 811 4 558 (2 324) 2 234 

Software 

under 

development 

8 987 - 8 987 8 987 - 8 987 

Total  26 

272 

(12 682) 13 591 26 

178 

(11 101) 15 077 

       

  

 



 
 

153 
 

Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2018 

 

 Opening 

balance 

R’000 

Additions 

 

R’000 

Disposals 

 

R’000 

Transfers 

 

R’000 

Amortisation 

 

R’000 

Impairment 

loss 

R’000 

Total 

 

R’000 

Software developed 

in house 

3 915 - - - (1 123) - 2 792 

Software purchased 2 175 94 - - (458) - 1 812 

Software under 

development  

8 987 - - - - - 8 987 

 15 078 94 - - 1 581 - 13 591 

 

Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2017 

 

 Opening 

balance 

R’000 

Additions 

 

R’000 

Disposals 

 

R’000 

Transfers 

 

R’000 

Amortisation 

 

R’000 

Impairment 

loss 

R’000 

Total 

 

R’000 

Software developed 

in house 

3 054 900 - 1 100 (1 198) - 3 856 

Software purchased 718 1 315 - 384 (183) - 2 234 

Software under 

development  

1 577 8 895 - (1 484)  - 8 988 

 5 349 11 110 -  - (1 381) - 15 078 

 

  



 
 

154 
 

7. Investments in associates – held for sale 

 

Name of 

entity 

Name of 

enterprise 

% 

shar

e 

Cumulati

ve 

investme

nt cost – 

2018 

 

R’000 

Cumulati

ve 

investme

nt cost – 

2017 

 

R’000 

Cumulati

ve 

repayme

nt 

received 

– 2018 

R’000 

Cumulati

ve 

repayme

nt 

received 

– 2017 

R’000 

Accumulat

ed fair 

value 

adjustment 

– 2018 

R’000 

Accumulat

ed fair 

value 

adjustment 

– 2017 

R’000 

Carryin

g 

amoun

t – 2018 

 

R’000 

Carryin

g 

amoun

t - 2017 

 

R’000 

Franchise 

Fund – 

held for 

sale 

Private 

Equity 

Investment 

80% - 101 400 - (100 000) - 5 127 - - 

Chicken 

Kwasa Ltd 

Fast Food 26% - 300 - - - (300) - - 

Vynide 

Investmen

ts 

Manufacturi

ng 

10%  1 000 - - - (1 000) - - 

   - 102 700 - (100 000) - 3 827 - 5 127 

 

Investments in associates 

In respect of the investments above in which the NYDA has less than 20% shareholding, the NYDA has significant 

influence by virtue of having representation on the Board of Directors and also having a right to participate in 

policy-making processes, including participation in decision-making about dividends and other distributions. All 

the above associates have been incorporated in the Republic of South Africa. The cost of investments and fair 

value adjustments less than R1 thousand have been shown as nil. 
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Based on the contractual agreement with Business Partners (Pty) Ltd, the NYDA contributes 80% of the funding 

for Franchise Fund loans. However, the NYDA only exercises significant influence and does not participate in the 

management of the fund. Therefore, it is classified as an investment in associate. The Franchise Fund was classified 

as held for sale throughout the financial year and was disposed of prior to 31 May 2017 through divestment with 

the funds deposited back to the NYDA.  

Fair value adjustment is disclosed in note 17. 

 

Summarised Franchise Fund 2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Opening carrying amount - 4 866 

Repayment received during the year - - 

Fair value adjustment - 261 

Carrying value at the end of the year - 5 127 

Due within more than one year - - 

Due within one year - 5 127 
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8. Loans receivable from exchange transactions  

 

2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Small Medium Enterprise 259 476 259 476 

Micro loans, direct lending and intermediaries 113 565 113 565 

Co-operatives 11 233 11 233 

Gross advances 384 274 384 274 

Add: Interest Receivables 110 030 105 529 

Less: Loans written off (130 956) (130 956) 

Less: Cumulative capital repayment (230 647) (230 551) 

Less: Transfer from loans receivables - - 

Sub-totals 132 701 128 296 

Allowance for impairment (132 701) (128 265) 

Small and medium enterprise (111 749) (108 527) 

Micro, loans , direct lending and intermediaries (9 892) (9 377) 

Co-operatives (11 060) (10 362) 

Net loans receivable from exchange transactions - 31 

Due within one year - 31 

Due within more than one year - - 

 

Loans written off were written off after the following criteria had been met: 

The loan holders had no recoverable assets as surety against which to recover 

loans; the legal process was exhausted against loan holders; loan holders were 

not traceable through debt recovery procedures.  

 

Loans receivable 

allowance for 

impairment 

reconciliation 2018 

 

    

 Allowance 

for 

impairment 

2018 

R’000 

Impairment 

change in 

provision 

 

R’000 

Impairment 

reversal 

 

 

R’000 

Allowance 

for 

impairment 

2017 

R’000 

Small and medium 

enterprises 

108 527 3 222 - 111 749 
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Micro, loans , direct 

lending and 

intermediaries 

9 377 515 - 9 892 

Co-operatives 10 362 698 - 11 060 

 128 266 4 435 - 132 701 

 

Loans receivable 

allowance for 

impairment 

reconciliation 2017 

    

 Allowance 

for 

impairment 

2017 

R’000 

Impairment 

change in 

provision 

 

 

R’000 

Impairment 

reversal 

 

 

R’000 

Allowance 

for 

impairment 

2016 

R’000 

Small and medium 

enterprises 

106 450 2 077 - 108 527 

Micro, loans , direct 

lending and 

intermediaries 

8 694 683 - 9 377 

Co-operatives 9 766 596 - 10 362 

 124 910 3 356 - 128 266 

  

Loans receivable from exchange transactions (continued) 

In assessing its loan book for any indicators of impairment, the NYDA considered 

the following factors over and above the amount in excess of 90 days: 

 Whether the borrower was trading or not; 

 The age of the debt; 

 Progress of the attorneys in recovering the debt and their opinion on the 

recoverability; 

 The reliance of the borrower on the few customers and the loss of this 

customer base; 

 The cash flows of the business as shown on the bank statement and or 

management accounts; 
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 Defaults on expected repayments of interest and principal amounts by the 

borrower. 

 

9. Range of interest rates 2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Small and medium enterprise 6 – 18% 6 – 18% 

Micro, loans , direct lending and intermediaries 6 – 24% 6 – 24% 

Co-operatives 3.5 – 10% 3.5 – 10% 

 

10. Finance lease obligation   

Minimum lease payments due   

- Within one year 683 179 

- In second to fifth year inclusive  706 47 

 1 389 226 

Less: Future finance charges (153) (15) 

Present value of minimum lease payments 1 236 211 

Present value of minimum lease payments due:   

- Within one year 683  179 

- In second to fifth year 706 47 

 1 389 226 

Non-current liabilities 706  47 

Current liabilities 683 179 

 1 389 226 

 

The NYDA has leased photocopiers from Konica Minolta for a period ranging from 

31-36 months for fixed monthly rental payable in arrears with no residual value. 

Ownership of these machines will not pass to the end of the lease term. 

11. Trade and other payables from exchange 

transactions 

 

  

Trade payables 6 844 19 447 

Accruals 59 371 50 353 

 66 215 69 800 
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The NYDA trade payables generally do not exceed a maturity of four months and 

the fair value is considered to be a reasonable approximation of the carrying 

value. 

12. Employee cost provisions 

 

Reconciliation of employee cost provisions 2018 

 

 Opening 

balance 

 

R’000 

Additions 

 

 

R’000 

Utilised 

during the 

year 

R’000 

Reversed 

during the 

year 

R’000 

Total 

 

 

R’000 

Employee 

termination 

1 090 515 - - 1 605 

Provision for leave 4 710 4 417 (5 225) - 3 902 

Provision for 

performance 

bonus 

6 452 9 878 (9 397) - 6 933 

 12 252 14 810 (14 622)  12 441 

 

Reconciliation of employee cost provisions 2017 

 

 Opening 

balance 

 

R’000 

Additions 

 

 

R’000 

Utilised 

during the 

year 

R’000 

Reversed 

during the 

year 

R’000 

Total 

 

 

R’000 

Employee 

termination 

4 810 - (3 720) - 1 090 

Provision for leave 5 293 3 713 (4 296) - 4 710 

Provision for 

performance 

bonus 

6 534 6 452 (5 479) (1 055) 6 452 

 16 637 10 165 (13 495) (1 055) 12 252 

 

Staff bonuses are expected to be paid during the new financial year, the leave 

pay accrual is expected to be utilised when employee takes leave or resigns. 
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13. Deferred income  2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Flemish government – donor funding 340 3 286 

Department of Trade and Industry - 535 

MERSETA - - 

Princes Youth Business International 236 236 

Independent Development Trust 3 359 2 784 

Industrial Development Corporation - - 

Front end fees 9 33 

Education, Training and Development Practices - - 

Kwa-Zulu Natal ETDP 5 - 

The Young Patriots Programme 3 048 2 412 

 6 997 9 286 

 

Deferred income is comprised of the following: 

 Flemish government: Donor support for conferencing, research, 

development and implementation of a National Youth Service volunteer 

programme. 

 Department of Trade and Industry: Donor support for the Economic 

Development programme of the Agency. 

 MERSETA: Donor support for the career guidance programme of the 

Agency. 

 Princes Youth Business International: Donor support by the Princes Fund for 

youth development Economic Development programmes. 

 Independent Development Trust: Donor support for the implementation of 

the youth component of the Expanded Public Works Programme. 

 Industrial Development Corporation: Donor support for the voucher 

programme of the Agency. 

 KZN ETDP: The KZN Provincial Government contributes to the NYDA Grant 

Program. 

 Front end fees: Fees charged at the issuing of a loan and amortised over 

the period of the loan. 
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 Education, Training and Development Practices: Donor support for the 

Education programme of the Agency. 

 The Young Patriots Programme: Donor support by the Department of Arts 

and Culture for the implementation of a National Youth Service 

programme.  

14. Deferred expenses  

 

  

Operating lease deferred expense 2 529 805 

Tenant Installation Allowance – current portion 435 435 

Tenant Installation Allowance – non-current portion 2 102 2 538 

 5 066 3 778 

  

15. Financial Instruments 

Set out below is the classification of financial instruments held by the NYDA at 

31 March 2018 

 

2018 Financial 

assets at 

amortised 

cost 

 

 

R’000 

Financial 

assets at 

fair value 

through 

surplus / 

(deficit) 

R’000 

Financial 

liabilities at 

amortised 

cost 

 

 

R’000 

Total 

 

 

 

 

R’000 

Assets     

Loans and receivables 

from exchange 

transactions 

-    

Short term portion of loans 

and receivables from 

exchange transactions 

- -   

Rental deposit 3 794   3 794 

Investment in associates     

Receivables from 

exchange transactions 

3 153   3 153 

Receivables from non-

exchange transactions 

1 394   1 394 
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Cash and cash 

equivalents 

82 629   82 629 

 90 970   90 970 

Liabilities     

Finance lease obligation   1 389 1 389 

Trade and other payables 

from exchange 

transactions 

  66 215 66 215 

   67 604 67 604 

 

2017 Financial 

assets at 

amortised 

cost 

 

 

R’000 

Financial 

assets at 

fair value 

through 

surplus / 

(deficit) 

R’000 

Financial 

liabilities at 

amortised 

cost 

 

 

R’000 

Total 

 

 

 

 

R’000 

Assets     

Loans and receivables 

from exchange 

transactions 

- - - - 

Short term portion of loans 

and receivables from 

exchange transactions 

31 - - 31 

Rental deposit 3 806 - - 3 806 

Investment in associates - 5 127 - 5 127 

Receivables from 

exchange transactions 

8 678 - - 8 678 

Receivables from non-

exchange transactions 

11 262 - - 11 262 

Cash and cash 

equivalents 

46 866 - - 46 866 

 70 643 5 127 - 75 770 

Liabilities     

Finance lease obligation - - 227 227 
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Trade and other payables 

from exchange 

transactions 

- - 69 800 69 800 

 - - 70 027 70 027 

 

Financial Instruments (continued) 

The primary risks associated with the financial instruments held by the NYDA are 

credit, liquidity, market, interest rate and portfolio risk 

Credit risk 

One of the NYDA’s core business activities was to invest in small and medium 

enterprises. Consequently, the Agency was exposed to credit risk, which refers to 

the risk that loans made to third parties will not be repaid. The objective of credit 

risk management was to minimise financial losses that may arise as a result of third 

parties failing to discharge their obligations. The credit risk at the investment stage 

of any potential investment was researched and assessed by means of a due 

diligence process, whereby the entrepreneur was evaluated, the viability of the 

enterprise was considered, and various other indications were established and 

verified. In addition, the NYDA implemented a credit policy which assisted in 

managing credit risk. It comprises the following key elements: 

• Approval process 

• Cash flow-based lending methodology 

• Attaching protective covenants to funding arrangements 

• Collections policy and procedures 

• Delinquency management 

• Monitoring 

• Mentorship 

There have been no changes in the exposure or the policy used to manage credit 

risk. 

 

 

 



 
 

164 
 

Maximum exposure 

During the period that the NYDA has exposure to a borrower or investee 

company, the Agency conducts an ongoing evaluation of the business and does 

not provide loans to any single entity in excess of R5 million. The NYDA places its 

cash reserves, which are in the form of cash and cash equivalents and rental 

deposits with the South African Reserve Bank and local financial institutions which 

have a minimum rating of AAA. Loans are advanced to individuals, small and 

medium enterprises and co-operatives located in rural areas. 

Investments in associates include investments in small and medium enterprises 

located in rural areas, as well as funds invested by local financial institutions, which 

have a minimum rating of AAA. Changes in credit exposure and the maximum 

credit exposure for all financial assets are detailed in the table below: 

Loans receivable from exchange transactions  2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Small Medium Enterprise - 31 

Micro loans, direct lending and intermediaries - - 

Co-operatives - - 

 - 31 

General   

Rental deposit 3 794 3 806 

Investment in associates - 5 127 

Receivables from exchange transactions 3 153 8 678 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 1 394 11 262 

Cash and cash equivalents 82 629 46 866 

 90 970 75 739 

 90 970 75 770 

  

Collateral and other credit enhancement on loans receivable 

The nature of the NYDA’s target market is black youth who have not 

accumulated assets which are significant, in relation to the loans advanced to 

them. Therefore, the value of tangible security offered is not adequate. For loans 

less than R100 000, a third party stands as surety and co-principal debtor for a 

portion (10 to 50%) of the loan. The surety provider must be in salaried 

employment with no record of defaulting on loans. During the year under review, 

the NYDA did not take possession of any collateral in respect of loans. There is no 
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collateral held for other classes of financial assets. The NYDA does not take 

possession of collateral for use in its own operations. 

2018 Neither 

past due 

nor 

impaired 

R’000 

Value in 

arrears 

for 1 – 

30 days 

R’000 

Value in 

arrears 

for 31 – 

60 days  

R’000 

Value in 

arrears 

for 61 – 

90 days 

R’000 

Value in 

arrears 

for >90 

days 

 

R’000 

Total 

 

 

 

R’000 

Assets       

Loans and 

receivables from 

exchange 

transactions 

      

Short term portion 

of loans and 

receivables from 

exchange 

transactions 

      

Rental deposit 3 794      

Investment in 

associates 

      

Receivables from 

exchange 

transactions 

   3 153   

Receivables from 

non-exchange 

transactions 

   1 394   

Cash and cash 

equivalents 

82 629      

 86 423 - - 4 547 - 90 970 

 

2017 Neither 

past due 

nor 

impaired 

R’000 

Value in 

arrears 

for 1 – 

30 days 

R’000 

Value in 

arrears 

for 31 – 

60 days  

R’000 

Value in 

arrears 

for 61 – 

90 days 

R’000 

Value in 

arrears 

for >90 

days 

 

Total 

 

 

 

R’000 
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R’000 

Assets       

Loans and 

receivables from 

exchange 

transactions 

- - - - - - 

Short term portion 

of loans and 

receivables from 

exchange 

transactions 

- - - - 31 31 

Rental deposit 3 806 - - - - 3 806 

Investment in 

associates 

5 127 - - - - 5 127 

Receivables from 

exchange 

transactions 

- - 8 678 - - 8 678 

Receivables from 

non-exchange 

transactions 

- 11 262 - - - 11 262 

Cash and cash 

equivalents 

46 866 - - - - 46 866 

 55 799 11 262 8 678 - 31 75 770 

 

Financial Instruments (continued) 

Loans past due but not impaired (loans renegotiated) 

During the year under review no loans were renegotiated. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the NYDA will not be able to meet its funding 

commitments and other financial obligations, as and when they fall due. The 

funding provided to small and medium enterprises is usually characterised by 

fixed maturities of up to five years, scheduled repayments and a limited 

moratorium on capital repayments and interest. One of the cornerstones of the 

lending practice adopted is consideration of the certainty of cash flows, and the 

ability of the borrower to absorb and service debt. The NYDA has adopted a 
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conservative cash-flow management policy to manage the risk of investment 

made in instruments which are not readily realisable, in order to keep a healthy 

liquidity position. 

The NYDA has the following mechanisms in place to ensure that it has the funds 

available to meet its commitments: 

 A strategic plan and a three-year budget are prepared and approved by 

the Board of Directors prior to the start of the financial year 

 At half-year, the NYDA conducts a revision of its annual budget and 

reassesses its liquidity needs. In addition, an application for recapitalisation 

is made to its Executive Authority and National Treasury. 

 On a quarterly basis, the strategic plan and budget are reviewed by a 

committee comprised of divisional heads, the Chief Financial Officer and 

Chief Executive Officer 

 Once a commitment has been made, NYDA keeps record of all gross 

commitments and drawn-down commitments or cancelled commitments 

and undrawn commitments. 

 A distinction is made between encumbered and unencumbered cash 

resources of the NYDA. 

 Three-year projections of cash flow, undrawn commitments brought 

forward, new commitments, cancelled commitments and undrawn 

commitments carried forward are prepared. 

 Disbursements on commitments are made in several tranches, based on 

individual project needs. 

Expected maturity dates: financial liabilities 

The NYDA’s short-term liabilities are mainly comprised of debts arising in the 

ordinary course of business and commitments to making grants for the 

implementation of National Youth Service and Skills Development projects. Debts 

arising in the ordinary course of business are normally settled over a period of not 

more than two months from the date of invoice. 

Grant commitments are usually made over a period of 12 to 18 months and 

finance leases over a period of 31 to 36 months. 

Expected maturity dates: financial assets 

The NYDA’s financial assets comprise mainly cash in current accounts with local 

financial institutions and loans due from small businesses. Except for loans due 
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from small businesses and restricted cash, other financial assets are very liquid and 

not subject to any notice periods for draw down. 

The NYDA’s exposure to illiquid assets is comprised of investments in unlisted 

entities and restricted cash flows. This accounts for less than 7% of the carrying 

value of financial assets 

The NYDA manages its liquidity risk by placing funds in short-term, highly liquid 

investments and ensuring that the maturities of financial assets match those of its 

financial liabilities. 

The balance of the loans receivable, outstanding as at 31 March 2017, is 

scheduled to be repaid as follows: 

Maturity period  2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Due within 12 months - 31 

Due thereafter - - 

Total value of loans - 31 

   

  

2018 Due 

immediately 

or within one 

month 

R’000 

Due later 

than one 

month but 

not later 

than 

twelve 

months 

R’000 

Due later 

than 

twelve 

months 

 

 

R’000 

Total  

 

 

 

R’000 

Receivables from 

exchange transactions 

 3 153  3 153 

Receivables from non-

exchange transactions 

 1 394  1 394 

Rental deposit 3 794   3 794 

Cash and cash 

equivalents 

82 629   82 629 

Total current assets 86 423 4 547 - 90 970 

Finance lease obligation  (706)  (683) (1 389) 
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Trade and other 

payables from exchange 

transactions 

 (66 215)  (66 215) 

Total current liabilities  (66 921) (683) (67 604) 

Net liquidity of continuing 

operations 

86 423 (62 374) (683) 23 366 

 

 

2017 Due 

immediately 

or within one 

month 

R’000 

Due later 

than one 

month but 

not later 

than 

twelve 

months 

R’000 

Due later 

than 

twelve 

months 

 

 

R’000 

Total  

 

 

 

R’000 

Receivables from 

exchange transactions 

8 678  - - 8 678 

Receivables from non-

exchange transactions 

- 11 262 - 11 262 

Rental deposit - - 3 806 3 806 

Cash and cash 

equivalents 

46 866 - - 46 866 

Total current assets 55 544 11 262 3 806 70 612 

Finance lease obligation - (179) (47) 227 

Trade and other 

payables from exchange 

transactions 

- (69 800) - 69 800 

Total current liabilities - (69 979) - 70 027 

Net liquidity of continuing 

operations 

55 544 (58 717) 3 759 (586) 
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Financial Instruments (continued) 

Market risk  

Market risk is defined as the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 

instrument will fluctuate, because of changes in market prices and includes 

currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk (which are factors other than 

currency and interest rate risk that may influence fair value of the financial asset). 

The entity is primarily exposed to interest rate risk. Its objective is to ensure that it 

minimises losses of interest income as a result of utilising cash which attracts 

interest at a variable rate, to invest in other financial assets bearing interest at 

fixed rate. Hence, not all its loans granted are variable rate loan. 

The NYDA is not directly exposed to currency risk as it does not enter into foreign 

currency transactions. 

There have been no changes in the exposure or the policy used to manage 

market risk. 

Interest rate risk 

Changes in interest rates will affect the revenue stream of the NYDA, as most of 

the financial assets’ returns are linked to the prime rate. 

Sensitivity analysis 

At 31 March 2018, if interest rates had been 100 basis points higher, with all other 

variables held constant, interest income would have increased by approximately 

R648 000 (2017: R469 000). Consequently, income and accumulated reserves 

would have increased accordingly. If interest rates had been 100 basis points 

lower, with all other variables held constant, interest income would have 

decreased by approximately R648 000 (2017: R469 000). Consequently, income 

and accumulated reserves would have decreased accordingly. 

The change would have occurred because of variable rate interest which NYDA 

earns from its financial assets which include cash and loans. 

The NYDA’s exposure to interest rate risk is as follows:  

 2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Small Medium Enterprise - 31 

Micro loans, direct lending and intermediaries - - 
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Cash and cash equivalents 82 629 46 866 

 82 629 46 897 

 

Fair values 

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit 

The NYDA measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects 

the significance of the inputs used in making measurement: 

Level 1: Quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable 

for the financial assets either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) 

Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data. 

Investments in associates    

Level 1 - - 

Level 2  - - 

Level 3 - 5 127 

 - 5 127 

 

Financial Instruments (continued) 

Gains and losses on investments in associates   2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Level 1 - - 

Level 2  - - 

Level 3 - 261 

 - 261 

 

Investment in associates is measured, using the discounted cash flow method and 

net asset-value method, which are not based on the observable market data. No 

transfers between fair value hierarchy levels took place during the current year. 

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities approximates their fair 

value. 
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Portfolio risk 

Portfolio risk arises as a result of loans and advances being concentrated in any 

particular industry, location or stage of development. The risk is managed through 

the steering committee which sets limits of exposure to the various industries. The 

portfolio allocation is reviewed on a quarterly basis, at meetings of the steering 

committee. 

The NYDA recognises that it may face the risk of over-exposing itself in certain 

situations and considers the following in determining concentration: 

 Overconcentration of loans to a particular industry 

 Overconcentration of loans to business controlled by common 

shareholders or grants to a single service provider 

 Overconcentration of funding in illiquid equity investments. 

Industry    2018 2017 

Building and construction 20% 20% 

Health 10% 10% 

Manufacturing 4% 4% 

Printing 1% 1% 

Retail 18% 18% 

Services 18% 18% 

Transport 6% 6% 

Hospitality and leisure  23% 23% 

 100% 100% 

 

Capital management 

The NYDA considers the annual government grant it receives as its capital and 

obtains its capital by making annual applications to the 

National Treasury. The funds which are received are held in money market 

instruments with local financial institutions which have a minimum AAA rating. 

NYDA has a formalised budgeting and forecasting process in place, which allows 

for monitoring monthly, of the cash reserves and commitments of the Agency. It 

maintains cash on demand, to meet forecasted monthly cash outflows with the 

residual being maintained on call accounts. The NYDA conducts rolling forecasts 

to anticipate its cash requirements to meet operating expenses, capital 

expenditure and draw-down requests, in respect of commitments made 
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regarding grants and loans. The NYDA tracks loan and grant approvals, 

commitments and undrawn commitments on a continuous basis, to provide a 

basis for anticipating capital calls. 

The NYDA makes commitments from its existing capital base, notwithstanding that 

it has an expectation that the National Treasury will recapitalise the NYDA on an 

annual basis. The NYDA continuously keeps record of reserves which are 

encumbered and restricted, to avoid deficits arising from the over commitment 

of funds. 

16. Interest income  2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Cash and cash equivalents 2 900 3 447 

Loans receivable – impaired 4 561 5 474 

Loans receivable – not impaired - - 

 7 461 8 921 

  

17. Other income    

Front end fees 24 58 

Other income 840 575 

Bad debt and legal fee recovery 12 194 

Recovery from fraudulent payments - 696 

 876 1 523 

 

18. Fair value adjustment    

Fair value adjustment to designated investments in 

associates  

42 261 

 42 261 

 

19. Auditor’s remuneration    

External audit fees  4 602 5 164 

Internal audit fees 998 1 455 

 5 600 6 619 

 

20. Depreciation and amortisation    

Depreciation   
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Depreciation – Computer equipment 2 026 1 698 

Depreciation – Office Equipment 1 015 508 

Depreciation – Furniture 754 627 

Depreciation – Leasehold improvements  1009 798 

Depreciation – Motor Vehicles 113 - 

 4 917 3 631 

Less: Attributable to project disbursements  (2 045) (1 635) 

Total depreciation 2 785 1 996 

   

Amortisation   

Intangible assets 1 581 1 381 

Less: Attributable to project disbursements (169) (124) 

Amortisation of intangible assets 1 412 1 257 

 

21. Employee related costs  2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Salaries and allowance 148 258 133 568 

Provident fund: Defined contribution 8 492 7 834 

Termination benefits 2 888 - 

Internship programme and temporary staff 708 1 174 

Travel and reimbursed expenditure 8 013 - 

Total employee cost 168 359 142 576 

Attributable to project disbursements   (120 513) (104 991) 

In the termination cost, is included a settlement to a former director for unfair 

dismissal equating to R1.1 million.  

 

22. Allowance for impairment of assets    

Small and medium enterprises 3 222 2 077 

Micro loans, direct lending and intermediaries  515 682 

Co-operatives 698 596 

 4 435 3 355 

Equipment impairment 166 133 

Intangibles impairment - - 

Trade and other receivables 1 069 - 

 1 235 3 488 
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Reversals of impairment     

Small and medium enterprises - - 

Micro loans, direct lending and intermediaries  - - 

Co-operatives - - 

 - - 

   

Trade and other receivables  - (917) 

 - (917) 

 

Write-off assets   

Loans receivable from exchange transactions  2 644 

Equipment written off 394 - 

Intangibles written off  - 

Trade and other receivables written off 383 913 

 777   3 557 

 

23. Operating lease  2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Buildings 22 393 23 453 

Less: Attributable to project disbursements (12 368) (10 422) 

 10 025 13 031 

Future minimum rentals under non-cancellable 

operating leases within one year 

13 924 14 273 

 

After one year but not more than five years 58 869 54 010 

 

The leases relate to the buildings occupied by the NYDA and the average terms 

vary from 5 - 7 years and the escalation rates range from 8 - 10%. There are 

renewal options up to the period of 2 years, there is however no option to 

purchase.   

 

24. Donor funding disbursements    

The respective donor funding disbursements are as 

follows: 

  

MERSETA - - 

Services SETA Internship Programme 150 5 299 
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The Young Patriots Programme 11 364 3 788 

Flemish government 4 789 914 

Independent Development Trust (574) 18 437 

Industrial Development Corporation - - 

Kwa-Zulu Natal ETDP 1 495 - 

Services SETA Apprenticeship Programme 838 - 

 18 061 28 438 

 

25. Grant disbursements    

The respective grant disbursements are as follows:   

Grant disbursements – individuals and cooperatives 29 502 25 941 

Grant disbursements – special projects 5 109 4 515 

 34 611 30 486 

 

26. Project disbursements    

The respective disbursements are as follows:   

Programme Design, Delivery and Development  187 615 202 345 

Corporate Partnerships and International Relations 7 709 4 720 

National Youth Service  20 807 23 033 

Research and policy 7 070 10 457 

Executive Directors Projects 16 782 5 750 

Total project disbursements 239 984 246 305 

 

27. Net cash flows from operating activities  2018 

R’000 

2017 

R’000 

Surplus / (Deficit) 27 943 6 320 

Adjusted for:   

Loss on sale of assets and liabilities 24 (40) 

Fair value adjustments (42) (261) 

Interest income (7 461) (8 922) 

Interest received 2 863 3 447 

Write-off assets 777 3 557 

Impairment loss 5 670 3 488 

Reversal of impairment loss - (917) 

Movements in provisions (189) (4 385) 
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Depreciation and amortisation 6 498 5 012 

Changes in working capital   

Increase / (decrease) in receivables from exchange 

transactions 

 5 525 1 922 

Increase / (decrease) in receivables from non-

exchange transactions 

9 868 (5 262) 

Increase in deferred expenses 1 288 2 843 

Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables (3 585) 13 803 

(Increase) / decrease in rental deposit  (12) (2 788) 

Increase / (decrease) in deferred income (2 290) 2 680 

 46 877 20 497 

 

28. Directors emoluments  

2018 Short term 

employee 

benefits 

R’000 

Bonus 

 

 

R’000 

Expense 

allowance 

 

R’000 

Defined 

contribution 

plan 

R’000 

Total 

 

 

R’000 

Board of 

Directors 

     

Chairperson of 

the Board – Mr 

Sifiso Mtsweni 

1 069 - 1 - 1 070 

Deputy 

Chairperson of 

the Board – Ms 

Bavelile 

Hlongwa 

913 - 1 - 914 

Member of the 

Board – Mr 

Yershen Pillay 

215 - - - 215 

Member of the 

Board – Mr Kenny 

Morolong 

258 - - - 258 

Member of the 

Board – Mr 

Ndumiso 

21 - - - 21 
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Mokako 

(resigned 31 

March 2018) 

Member of the 

Board – Ms 

Zandile Majozi 

191 -  - - 191 

Member of the 

Board – Ms Joy 

Maimela 

195 - - - 195 

Independent 

audit committee 

chairperson – Ms. 

Rachel Kalidass 

72 - - - 72 

Independent 

audit committee 

member – Mr. 

Tayron Tshitaudzi 

- - 1 - 1 

Independent HR 

member – Mr. 

Aobakwe 

Leepile 

45 - - - 45 

Chief Executive 

Officer – Mr 

Khathu 

Ramukumba 

(resigned 31 

October 2017) 

1 422 446 18 102 1 988 

Acting Chief 

Executive Officer 

– Mr Waseem 

Carrim (acted 1 

November 2017 

– 31 March 2018) 

753 - 44 37 834 

Executive 

Directors 
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Chief Financial 

Officer – Mr 

Waseem Carrim 

904 308 57 48 1 317 

Executive 

Directors 

     

Ms Nthuseng 

Mphahlele 

(resigned 31 

January 2018) 

1 129 261 4 61 1 455 

Ms Ankie 

Motsoahae  

1 250 261 2 72 1 585 

Ms Juliet Tshoke  1 034 285 - 171 1 490 

Mr Lwazi Mboyi 1 221 - 9 72 1 302 

Mr Siyabonga 

Mbambo (acted 

1 February 2018 – 

31 March 2018) 

157 - - 25 182 

 10 849 1 561 137 588 13 135 

 

29. Directors 

emoluments 

     

2017 Short term 

employee 

benefits 

R’000 

Bonus 

 

 

R’000 

Expense 

allowance 

 

R’000 

Defined 

contribution 

plan 

R’000 

Total 

 

 

R’000 

Board of Directors - -  -  

Chairperson of the 

TAA – Dr. Ntsiki 

Tshayinga Mashiya 

- - - -  

Deputy Chairperson 

of the TAA – Mr 

Pieter Pretorius 

- - - - - 

Member of the TAA 

– Mr Clayton Peters 

- - - - - 

Chief Executive 

Officer – Mr Khathu 

Ramukumba 

1 801 329 192 171 2 493 
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Executive Directors      

Chief Financial 

Officer – Mr 

Waseem Carrim 

1 372 206 48 81 1 707 

Executive Directors      

Ms N Mphahlele 1 084 189 58 140 1 471 

Ms A Motsoahae  1 164 76 7 68 1 315 

Ms J Tshoke  1 050 153 90 167 1 460 

Ms N Mabuza 

(Contract 

terminated: 30 June 

2016) 

260 - - 39 299 

Mr L Mboyi 

(Appointed 1 

March 2017) 

96 - - 6 102 

 6 827 953 395 672 8 847 
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30. Related parties 

Type Relate

d 

partie

s 

% 

Shar

e 

Nature 

of 

transacti

on 

Disbu

rsem

ents 

in 

2018 

Terms & 

Conditions 

Loan 

balanc

e 

before 

impair

ment 

Liabili

ty 

balan

ce 

Intere

st 

inco

me 

Admi

n 

fees 

Other 

expe

nse 

Other 

inco

me 

Impair

ment 

of 

loans 

 Jointly 

contr

olled 

assets 

with 

Mass

mart 

Holdin

gs 

50% The 

NYDA 

and 

Massma

rt 

contribu

ted R1 

million 

each to 

provide 

funding 

to 

entrepre

neurs for 

franchis

es 

costing 

less than 

R150 

000.  

Nil 

(2017: 

Nil) 

The NYDA 

will 

provide 

funding to 

entrepren

eurs and 

remit 

collections 

to 

Massmart 

as and 

when 

received.  

R582 

(2017: 

R679) 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

Nil 

(2017: 

Nil) 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

Nil 

(2017: 

Nil) 
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 Youth 

Devel

opme

nt 

Institut

e of 

South 

Africa 

(Unive

rsity of 

JHB) 

 The 

NYDA 

contribu

ted R4 

million in 

seed 

capital 

while 

the 

Universit

y of JHB 

contribu

ted the 

infrastru

cture. 

 YDISA will 

carry out 

high 

quality 

research in 

respect of 

youth 

developm

ent.  

Nil 

(2017: 

Nil) 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

R1 

359 

(2017: 

R2 40

4  

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

Nil 

(2017: 

Nil) 

Related parties (continued) 

Assoc

iates 

Franc

hise 

Fund 

(partn

ership 

betw

een 

NYDA 

and  

Busine

ss 

80% The 

NYDA 

has 

invested 

R100 

million in 

the 

Franchis

e Fund 

in order 

to assist 

 Franchise 

Fund will 

provide 

funding for 

franchises 

to SME”s 

and remit 

collections 

to the 

NYDA. 

Nil 

(2017:  

R5 127) 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

Nil 

(2017: 

Nil)  

Nil 

(2017

: 

R261) 

Nil 

(2017: 

Nil) 
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Partn

ers ) 

young 

black 

entrepre

neurs to 

start 

franchis

es.  

 Chick

en 

Kwas

a 

(Pty) 

Ltd 

26% The 

NYDA 

has 

granted 

a loan 

to 

Chicken 

Kwasa 

(Pty) Ltd 

for an 

approv

ed 

amount 

of R1.75 

million.  

 The 

interest 

rate on this 

loan is 

prime less 

2%. 

Participati

on fees are 

charged 

at the 

greater of 

1.25% of 

actual 

gross 

monthly 

revenue or 

R9 100 per 

month. The 

loan 

period is 

R2 136 

(2017: 

R2 136) 

 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

Nil 

(2017: 

Nil)  

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

R2 100 

2017:  

(R2 

100) 
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from 

March 

2005 to 

2010.  

 Vynid

e 

Invest

ments 

10% The 

NYDA 

has 

granted 

a loan 

to 

Vynide 

Investm

ents for 

an 

approv

ed 

amount 

of 

R3 millio

n. 

 The 

interest 

rate on this 

loan is 

prime plus 

2%. 

Participati

on fees are 

not 

charged. 

The loan 

period is 

from 

November 

2007 to 

December 

2012.  

R4 650 

(2017: 

R 650) 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

R950 

(2017

: 

R950) 

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

Nil 

(2017: 

Nil)  

Nil 

(2017

: Nil) 

R4 650 

2017:  

(R4 

650) 

 

 

Advances to former Directors and Key Management Personnel 
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A 

Lungis

a 

  Advanc

es to be 

repaid 

  R460 

(2017: 

R460)  

     R460 

(2017: 

R460)  

M 

Mashi

nini  

  Advanc

es to be 

repaid 

  R23 

(2017: 

R23)  

     R23 

(2017: 

R23)  
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31. Commitments     

Capital Commitments - 2 553 

 - 2 553 

 

32. Contingent liability and assets 

Contingent liability 

A contingent liability is an existing condition or situation involving uncertainty as 

to possible loss to an organisation, which will ultimately be resolved when one or 

more future event occur, or fail to occur. A contingent liability is recognised by 

the NYDA when that uncertainty will ultimately be resolved, if one or more future 

events occurs, not wholly within the agency's control, or fail to occur. Resolution 

of the uncertainty may confirm the loss or the incurrence of a liability. 

The NYDA has the following contingent liability which meets the definition as 

provided above: 

 Vouchers: The Agency has in issue R3.3 million vouchers which have not yet 

been utilised.  

 Contractual matters: The former landlord is claiming R5.6 million in loss of 

income because of the former property restoration not being completed 

on time. The case is being legally challenged. A travel service provider is 

claiming R270 000 in disputed invoices.   

 

33. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure  

 

  

Opening balance  5 859 5 378  

Late cancellation of contract 20  

Interest paid 71 1 

Staff loans - 480 

 5 950 5 859 

 

34. Irregular expenditure  

 

  

Opening balance 280 933 280 333 

Irregular expenditure incurred 3 600 
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Irregular expenditure condoned - - 

 280 936 280 933 

 

Irregular expenditure incurred during the current financial year results from non-

compliance with the Public Finance Management Act, Preferential Procurement 

Policy Framework Act and National Treasury Regulation with respect to Supply 

Chain Management prescripts. 

The agency has taken necessary action against individuals who contributed to 

the incurrence of irregular expenditure by enforcing disciplinary action.  

It was brought to management’s attention during the external audit process that 

potential irregular expenditure to the value of R485 000 was detected due to non-

declaration of interests. Management shall investigate the matters and make a 

conclusion and disclosure in the next financial year.  

35. Budget against actual expenditure: 

Variances: 

The reason for variances in budget against actual expenditure are the following: 

Interest income: The budget considers only interest that can be collected in cash 

while the financial statements accounts for interest which is recognised but 

subsequently impaired. 

Other income: The write back of creditors which had not claimed liabilities 

resulted in other income that was not anticipated.   

Communications and public relations: The communications and public relations 

costs were lower than expected because of the launch of the outreach vehicles 

with the Kwa Zulu Natal Provincial Government that was planned but did not 

occur.  

Employee costs: The resignation of the Chief Executive Officer resulted in a saving 

in employee costs.  

Depreciation, amortisation and write-off: These items are non-cash in nature and 

are not budgeted for.  

Project disbursements: The skills development project was not implemented 

because of the Services SETA subsidising the project on behalf of NYDA.   
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Budget adjustments: 

The Agency undertakes a budget adjustment process at half year which resulted 

in the following amendments to the budget: 

Information Communication and Technology (ICT): 

The ICT budget shortfall mainly arises from the need to implement Wi-Fi at all 

branches and the cost of the mobile Wi-Fi used during the office relocations 

where internet connectivity was not yet set up. Furthermore, the telephones 

budget is now centralised in ICT and therefore an additional costing from the 

branches must be reallocated back to ICT.  

Outsourcing and external services: 

In respect of Human Resources, there was a need to source an external service 

provider. The costs of travelling branch staff to Head Office and booking venues 

also resulted in a budget shortfall.   

An additional amount for Corporate Strategy and Planning was required to be 

allocated for risk related activities because of the vacancy of the Risk Manager. 

Administration: 

Utility costs which were slightly higher than expected once all final installations 

were done at the new building.  

Former landlords claim for building restoration which was catered for.  

Increased costs of repairs and maintenance required including costs for general 

admin of record keeping. 
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Notes: 
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Eastern Cape 

East London Full Service Branch 
2nd Floor, FNB. Building, 
73 Oxford street 
East London, 5241 
Telephone: 043 7044 600 

Port Elizabeth Full Sorvlce Branch 
Kwantu Towers. Market Square, 
Coven Mbeki Avenue 
Port Elizabeth 
Telephone: 041 503 9100 

Kwa-Zulu Natal 

Durban 
Sman Exchange Building, Ground Floor, 
6 Walnut Road 
Durban 
Telephone: 0313279900 

Emapangeni NRB 
Central Business District 
Cnr Main and Turnbull Road 
Empangeni 3880 

NewcaStle 
Civic Centre Newcastle 
38 Murchison Street 
Newcastle 2940 

Mpumalanga 

Nelsprult 
Office Number 7 & 8, lmbi.l'o place, 
Samora Machete Drive (N4) 
Mbombela/Nelsprult, 1200 
Telephone: 013 762 4628 

Ladysmith 
26 Keate Street 

t , 
nyda 

NATIONAL YOUTH DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

OUR YOUTH. OUR FUTURE. 

National Youth Development Agency 
64 Maxwell Drive. 

Woodmead Nonh Office Park. 
Woodmead, 2191 

POBox982 
Halfway Houso 

1685 

Fax: 086 606 6563 
Call center: 0800 52 52 62 

&-mail:info@nyda.gov.za www.nyda.gov.za 

NYOA FULL SERVICE BRANCHES 

secunda 
Shop 2. Gamepark Centre 
HO!Wood Street 
Secunda. 2302 
Telephone: 017 631 9500 

Wltbank 
Stand 172, 173 & 
17 4 Smuts Avenue. 
Emalahleni 
Telephone: 013756 0100 

GaU1eng 

Johannesburg 
Old JSE Building 
17 Diagonal Stree~old JSE building 
Johannesburg, 2001 
Telephone: 011370 1800 

Pretoria 
Shop 429, Shoburg Building 
Church Street 
Pretoria, 0001 
Telephone: 012 322 1375 

Soweto (Maponya mall) 
2127 Old Potcheststroom Road 
Soweto. 1809 
Telephone: 011 938 4104 

Limpopo 

Polokwane 
Shop 1 O, Crescent Building 
60 Schoeman Street 
Polokwane, 0699 
Telephone: 016 294 0801 

NYOA SERVICE CENTRES 

Grobbtersdal 
629 Van Reebeck Street 
Groblersdal 0470 

Tzaneen 
27 Agatha Stroot, Elita Flat no.5 
Central Parle, Tzsneen 

Thulamela Information centre 
Punda Maria Road 
Thohoyandou 
Telephone: 010 5931927 

W estern Cape 

Cape Town 
Shop P18 A Golden Acre 
No 9 Adderley Stroot 
Capo Town, 8001 
Tolophone: 0214152040 

Free State 

Bloemfontein 
Shop GF 125, Sanlam Plaza 
Cnr Charlone Maxeke & East Burger Streets 
Bloemfontein. 9301 
Tetephone:051 4119450 

Northern Cape 

Kimberly 
Old Telkom Building 
64 • 70 De Toil Span 
Klmbortey, 8300 
Telephone: 053807 1022 

North West 

Rustenburg 
39 Heystek str, (next to SARS). Rustenburg, 0299 
Telephone: 0 14 591 9600 

Thabazlmbl 
11 Jourdan Street Mollies Building 
Thabazimbi 




